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THE CATASTROPHIC STATE OF CATASTROPHIC
HEALTH CARE COVERAGE

THURSDAY, APRIL 16, 1987

U.S. SENATE,
SPECIAL COMMITTEE 01 AGING,

Birmingham, AL.
The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 9 a.m., in the Federal

Building, Birmingham, AL, Senator Richard Shelby presiding.
Present: Senators Shelby and Heflin.
Also present: Mr. Chris Jennings, professional staff member,

Senate Special Committee on Aging; Ms. Tricia Primrose, legisla-
tive assistant to Senator Richard Shelby; Ms. Leslie Ludwick, press
secretary to Senator Shelby; Mr. Andrew Dearman, State coordina-
tor for Senator Shelby; and Mr. Curtis Travis, legislative assistant
for Senator Shelby.

OPENING STATEMENT BY SENATOR RICHARD SHELBY,
PRESIDING

Senator SHELBY. I want to thank ell of you for being here this
morning and I welcome you to this first field hearing for the
Senate Special Committee on Aging. This hearing has got a good
topic to it, I think, an appropriate one. I'm interested in the cata-
strophic state of catastrophic health care coverage. I'm pleased that
Senator John Melcher from Montana, who is the chairman of the
Aging Committee, has authorized this field hearing in my home
State of Alabama. I believe this is the first field hearing of the One
Hundredth Congress for the Aging Committee.

It's good to be in Birmingham. A city, by the way, that has the
largest concentration of sensor adults of any city in Alabama.

I m also glad to see my distinguished colleague, the senior Sena-
tor, Senator Heflin, he is a senior citizen and a senior Senator. I
am glad that Senator Howell Heflin could be with us here this
morning. .

Much has been said over the years and much has been written
already about catastrophic illness and proposals by the administra-
tion and others for coverage. But what lies at the crux of this
entire issue is the fact that the American population is getting
older. And if we are to protect the seniors of today and the elderly
of tomorrow against this calamity then we need to act now.

Recent statistics released by the Department of H.:alth and
Human Services indicate that life expectancy after birth has
reached a new high of 74.7 years. For example, the Alabama State
Data Center projects that from 1987 to 1995 the percentage of the

(1)
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over age 85 population will rise 50 percent, from approximately
33,000 people here to 50,000. Not only is the number of people inthe over age 65 population growing, but longevity is also on the
rise. This, of course, is a wonderful thing. We all want to live long,
healthy lives. But if we are to truly enjoy our golden years we need
to erase the fear of catastrophic Illness from our minds.

I have three objectives that I hope together we can achieve
through this hearing. First, by holding a field hearing in Birming-
ham, I'm hoping to alert not just the elderly of Alabama, for they
are basically a truly informed group, but the entire population of
Alabama as well, to the devastating problems associated with cata-
strophic illness. The public needs to know what proposals exist in
the Congress, what services are available to them now and how
they can best protect themselves from the indiscriminate disrup-tion of a catastrophic illness.

Second, by listening to our distinguished panel today, I'm hoping
we can learn what services currently exist on the community level
for seniors and what associated problems are apparent and ensur-
ing that our elderly are properly cared for.

Finally, drawing on the expertise of our panels, I want to clarify
what requirements for services, research and education must be
met to formulate an effective, yet, physically responsive catastroph-ic health proposal.

On January 27 of this year, during his State of the Union Ad-
dress, we received word of the President's intention to offer a cata-
strophic health care proposal. While I must commend this adminis-
tration for taking this first step, I believe this proposal is just a cor-
nerstone for an eventual building that we have to construct. What
we in Congress need to do is to address the issue in the most con-
stant, comprehensive and yet, coordinated way possible. Already
the House Ways and Means Committee on Health has voted outtheir recommendation as to what the catastrophic package sh'uld
include. While this legislation represents a step forward beyond the
administration's proposal, I believe it's still limited in scope. It's
my strong belief, that before any such legislation is passed, all op-
tions must be closely evaluated and incorporated into a more en-
compassing plan. Cooperation between the Federal Government,
State governments, insurers and medical providers is a priority if
the plan is to succeed.

Results from this legislation would be much more responsive to
the needs of the elderly and more in line with the very real budget
restraints we face ir. the Congress and n.ore zdoptable to the de-
mands of a graying population. We need to have the foresight to
pass legislation that will not only help the 28.5 million people over
age 65 in America, of which close to three-quarters of a million are
Alabamians, but the under-65 population as well, who are also at
risk. Our legislation must be more than just a quick fix. We need
to possess the vision necessary to anticipate the Nations' health
care coverage needs well into the next century.

The demand for long-term and community-based care is increas-
ing steadily. Currently, 1.5 million Americans reside in nursing
homes. This figure is expected to jump to 2.2 million by the year
2000and by the year 2040, 4.5 million Americans are expected to
be in nursing facilities. In addition to these startling figures, 5.2
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million over age 65 Americans with a chronic condition, require
some assistance in performing the activities of daily living that
help them maintain their independence. These numbers are expect-
ed to reach 7.2 million in the year 2000 and 14 4 million by the
year 2050.

These needs, which are so clearly linked with the whole concep-
tion of a catastrophic illness, are the best indicators of the type of
coverage we need to provide in any proposal considered.

For a moment let us turn to the economics of this situation.
There is a tremendous financial burden associated with the previ-
ously mentioned figures for institutional care. To my right, is a
graph 1 that shows the breakdown of out-of-pocket costs for the el-
derly in excess of $2,000. As is clear from the abundance of the
bright red color, the nursing home section at -1.2 percent is clearly
the largest piece of the pie.

But what does this mean? Well above and beyond the substantial
sum of $2,000 in medical costs, the majority of the health care costs
of the elderly go for nursing home care. Obviously, there is a press-
ing need to include long-term care in any proposal and a need to
re-evaluate the out-^f-pocket expenses cap in the proposals current-
ly before Congress.

The graph on my left 2 displays the "dollars and cents" aspect of
catastrophic illness. The chart indicates the annual out-of-pocket
medical expenses for Medicare beneficiaries. We can see that the
Medicare beneficiary who has medigap insurance, has medical ex-
penses of $21,096 for just 1 year of nursing home care. Under the
Reagan Administration's proposal this Medicare beneficiary, who
has a medicap policy, is still paying $21,096 on nursing home can
in 1 year. The Administration's proposal dues nothing to ease the
financial burden of this truly catastrophic case.

If the Medicare beneficiary we have been talking about could not
afford this amount, then, under the present system, he or she
would be forced to "spend down" their life's savings before becom-
ing eligible for Medicaid assistance for nursing home care.

We should not allow catastrophic illnesses to penalize the elderly
for a lifetime of hard work and saving. We should not take away
the financial and psychological independence of any couple or
family, when one member becomes seriously ill. We should not
allow a catastrophic illness to dictate poverty to any American.

Yes, catastrophic illness has found the vulnerable segments of
our population and it's the elderly and the uninsured under age 65
American who won't be able to escape unscathed.

It is my sincere hope that the testimony heard today and submit-
ted for the official hearing record will provide a valuable tool for
the further analysis of this issue in the 100th Congress. I know
that we'll walk away from Birmingham today with clearer under-
standing of catastrophic illness coverage and the ways in which we
can be more responsive to the cries of help from a large portion of
our Nation's population.

At this time, I'm going to call on Senator Heflin who needs no
introduction to any of you, Senator Heflin.

See p. 44.
2 See p. 46
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STATEMENT OF SENATOR HOWELL HEFLIN

Senator HEFLIN. Thank you, Senator Shelby. I first want to con-
gratulate you on having this field hearing of the Committee on
Aging of the U.S. Senate in Birmingham, AL.

You know, now that we have a Democratic majority in the
Senate, the Senators from Alabama will be holding more field
hearings in Alabama. I think it is appropriate that we have field
hearings on matters dealing with the aging. I think we have en-
tered a new era relative to the aging. Certainly, the days of those
efforts to cut Social Security have passed. And now, I expect that
this new era will focus on efforts to improve the quality of life of
our senior citizens.

I would like to say, that Senator Shelby has started off in the
U.S. Senate with a bang. He has made himself known already. He
has established a reputation of being an extremely hard worker, in-
terested in his committee work and interested in the affairs of this
Nation and has taken an active part in the debate on the floor of
the U.S. Senate. I congratulate Senator Shelby for his fine work. I
know that he is going to be one of the truly outstanding Members
of the U.S. Senate. I look forward to working with him as a partner
for Alabama and as a partner for America. Particularly in order
that we might try to improve the quality of life for our senior citi-
zens.

Catastrophic illnesses have faced many, many families. They
have taken the life savings of many of our senior citizens who have
sought medical attention for illnesses that have occurred. We be-
lieve in Social Security. We believe in Medicare. The concept is
with us and the task at hand is to improve the quality of health
care for our senior citizens in a manner which is reasonable and
fiscally responsible.

I think this field hearing will touch on a very important issue.
Looking back over the time that I have been in the Senate, I can
recall numerous floor debates on health care for senior citizens.
When I ran for the U.S. Senate, I ran on a platform of providing
catastrophic health insurance for the Medicare cardholders. It has
taken a long time to try to get the movement going in this regard.

A few years ago, the President directed his Secretary of Health
and Human Services to come up with a catastrophic health plan.
And then in his State of the Union Address that he gave in Janu-
ary he advocated a catastrophic illness provision pertainiag to
Medicare. Many felt that it didn't go far enough. And one of the
things that these hearings will be looking at is whether it goes far
enough or are there omissions or are there things that should be
included in it.

One, already, that Senator Shelby has been advocating is looking
at the question of nursing homes. There are certain illnesses that
need to be looked at like Alzheimer's disease and others.

I think that this hearing is going to give people who have experi-
enced the ill-effects of Medicare, and the gravities of catastrophic
illnesses, an opportunity to present their views, and a record will
be made in order that the appropriate congressional committees
will have your valuable testimony which will be of great benefit to
those who will fashion the catastrophic health care plan.
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So again, Senator Shelby, let me congratulate you on having this
hearing. I hope that we can have a great number of hearings on
the problems of the aging in Alabama and I know that you are vi-
tally interested in this and will be holding hearings not only in Bir-
mingham but other places. And I hope that this hearing will pro-
vide testimony that will be very helpful in trying to formulate a
bill which will take care of the problems of catastrophic illness and
will aid and improve the Medicare issue, the Medicare facilities,
and the Medicare care provisions of the present law. In my judg-
ment, this is an area that needs a great deal of exploration tnd in-
vestigation as well as improvement.

Again, let me congratulate ;Oa. I wish I could stay but I have to
go to Winterbcnz). Some of you might not know where Winterboro
is. Winterboro is in Talladega County. If you go to the and of the
paved road, you take the third dirt road to the left to get there. So
we know, it's not that bad; Winterboro is a fine community, but it
is a small community. Again, I am delighted to be here and I wish
you well in this hearing.

Senator SHELBY. Senator Heflin, I appreciate you coming by and
participating and giving your statement regardin, this. I know
you're going to be all over Alabama. After this hearing today, I too,
will be in Decatur and later tonight in Huntsville. And, maybe,
we'll cross our paths again before we go back to the Senate Tues-
day

nator HEFLIN. I have a written statement I would like to put
in the record.

Senator SHELBY. Your written statement will be made a part of
the record, without objection.

Senator HEFLIN. Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Senator Heflin follows:]

TESTIMONY ON CATASTROPHIC HEALTH CARE BY SENATOR HOWELL HEFLIN

Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the oNortunity to make brief remarks regarding the
need for catastrophic health care for our elderly citizens.

I want to congratulate you, Senator Shelby, for your leadership on the Senate
Committee on Aging with regard to catastrophic health care.

Before I left Washington last week, the House Ways and Means Subcommittee on
Medicare voted 9 to 2 in favor of legislation to protect our nation's 31 million elder-
ly and disabled Medicare beneficiaries against catastrophic doctor and hospital bills.

As you of course know, just about everyone supports some form of catastrophic
health care for our senior citizens The measure adopted by the House Subcommit-
tee on Medicare is based on the proposal which was first brought forward by Dr.
Otis Bowen, Secretary of Health and Human Services. Dr. Bowen's proposal was
later endorsed 'ay the President.

Senator Dole has introduced the Administration's catastrophic health insurance
proposal in the Senate and the measure is currently pending in the Senate Commit-
tee on Finance. The President's proposal on catastrophic health insurance is a
follow up to his 1986 State of the Union Address whe:ein he set forth his intentions
to introduce a plan to provide health care to those elderly and disabled beneficiaries
who are on Medicare. The Senate version of the catastrophic health care plan repre-
sents the cumulative efforts of many who want to construct a basic approach that
balances many concerns, including our continuing commitment to the elderly and
disabled individuals.

The catastrophic health care proposals currently under consideration by the Con-
gress would improve benefits for short-term nursing care in a skilled facility, and
for mental health, hospital and home health care services The proposals would also
require state Medicaid systems to provide catastrophic illness protection for disabled
and elderly people with incomes below the poverty line In effect, these low income
people would be free of all Medicare-related cost for health care.
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The proposals under consideration by the Congress \ /mid also remove the existing
requirement that in order to receive Medicare-paid care in a skilled nursing facility
in connection with an acute illness, an individual first must be hospitalized for at
least 30 days. I think this old law of requiring a patient to be in the hospital for at
least 30 days is archaic and I am delighted that the new catastrophic proposal
would eliminate this.

The measure under consideration by the Congress would also change the allowed
number of days in such a facility from 100 days per illness to 150 days a year and
reduce the current out of pocket co-payment for such days from about $65.00 a day
to $24.00 and make it payable only for the first seven days of care. I must ..ay have
some problems with this aspect of the proposal. To my way of thinking, if the at-
tending physician certifies that an elderly person needs to be placed in a skilled
nursing home, the individual should be eligible to receive this care for an extended
period of time based on what the attending physician prescribes. I do, however, sup-
port the portion of the proposal which reduces the amount of the co-payment that
the elderly must pay.

The catastrophic health care measures pending in the Congress would increase
the number of free home health visits for Medicare beneficiaries by health profes-
sionals from 21 days annually to 42, and also increase the maximum mental health
benefit paid by Medicare from $250 a year to $1,000. The limit of 210 days of free
hospice care foi terminally ill Medicare patients would be removed.

I want to say at this point that I wholeheartedly support adequate catastrophic
health care coverage for our elderly citizens. This year, Medicare will spend almost
$80 pillion on medical care for the elderly but out of pocket medical expenses for
these individuals will be over $30 billion, not including long term care.

I have heard numerous complaints from senior citizens saying that when they
have reached a point in their lives when they can no longer take care of themselves
at home, they are confronted with the horrible choice of dying or giving up their life
savings and their homes in exchange for going into a nursing home. Where does this
leave the elderly spouse?

For low income elderly, the cost of catastrophic illness can qtckly wipe out a life
time savings, leaving huge debts to be paid. Last year, over 20% of senior citizens
spent at least 15% of their income on their medical bills, and 7% were forced to
spend 25% of their income on medical bilis.

It is clear to me that the so-called Medigap or private supplemental insurance
policies are not meeting the catastrophic needs of the elderly. Fear of bankruptcy
from a catastrophic illness has driven 70% of senior citizens to buying Medigap in-
surance. But the elderly believe that many of these policies are of questionable
value. Many policies do not cover the elderly fir preexisting health conditions. In
addition, some of the premiums are so high that the elderly can ill-afford to pay the
cost of an insurance policy.

Congress needs to expeditiously adopt catastrophic health care for both Part A
and Part B of Medicare, in order to give peace of mind to our nation's elderly citi-
zens.

I intend to work hard to see to it that legislation is adopted uy the Congress this
year to provide better health and financial security to our senior citizens. We need
to do all that we can to help our senior citizens meet the problems of prescription
drug cost, long term care in nursing homes and doctor bills.

I want to see a bill passed by the Congress which will cover long term care in
nursing homes for Alzheimer's patients, stroke victims, those with heart disease andothers.

It has become increasingly more apparent to me that we must begin to focus on
long term care for the elderly. Long term care has become the fastest growing seg-
ment of the U.S. health care industry. Average annual increases in our nations: ex-
penditures for nursing hoine care consistently exceeds the average for all other ex-
penditures including hospital care. Today, responsibility for long term care services
is shared almost equally by the public and private sectors. Public responsibility for
long term care is mainly confined to the Medicare program which pays about 42%
of all nursing home bills Rut of the remainder of this bill, more than $18 billion
comes directly from the pocketbooks of patients and their families. Private insur-
ance plays almost no role in the financing of long term care, nor does Medicare.

Congress must adopt a measure wh:ch will allow Medicare to completely cover
nursing home care for the elderly.

The legislation currently pending in the Congress pertaining to catastrophic
health care coverage is certainly not a panacea, but I believe it is something that we
can build upon. I am delighted that the Administration and the Congress are begin-
ning to address the problems of the gaping holes in the Medicare program and these

10
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holes must be quickly filled if we are to keep Medicare's promise of not allowing
high health care bills to jeopardize life long plans for a secure and dignified retire-
ment.

We need to address the problem of there being no upper limit on the out of pocket
expenses that senior citizens must pay for services covered by Medicare. To my way
a thinking, the present program's is awful because expenses paid by the most seri-
ously ill ederly individuals begin to rise sharply after 60 days of hospital care when
costly changes must be paid for each additional day of care, and on top of these ex-
penses, the Medicare program is filled with too many loopholes and confusing limi-
tations which scare the elderly to death.

M we begin to consider the catastrophic health care coverage, we must develop
an affordable way to pay for catastrophic illness, particularly, for those elderly indi-
viduals who are more susceptible to high health care cost.

Mr. Chairman, as the Congress seeks to develop a new health care catastrophic
plan, we need to make sure that whatever we provide is thoroughly understood by
our senior citizens and that we do not put out some complicated, bureaucratic com-
plex program that is difficult to understand. I think an important goal of cata-
strophic health care coverage should be to find a method to simplify the existing
Medicare plan and give the elderly some kind of assurance of what benefits are cov-
ered and what their obligations are whenever health care services are needed.

Mr. Chairman, again, I am delighted that you have given me the opportunity to
share my views and concerns regarding the need for catastrophic health care for
our elderly. I intend to fight on the Floor of the Senate for adequate health care
coverage for our senior citizens when I return to Washington next week.

Senator SHELBY. At this point I would like to make Senator Mel-
cher's statement part of the record. Senator Melcher is a Demo-
cratic Senator from the great State of Montana, and I serve with
him on the Aging Committee. He has graciously permitted me to
conduct this field hearing for the committeethe first one in Ala-
bama. I am also pleased to have some members of the Special Com-
mittee on Aging staff here with me from Washington, in addition
to a number of staffers from my own Senate office.

[The prepared statement of Senator Melcher, chairman, follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR JOHN MELCHER, CHAIRMAN, SENATE SPECIAL COM-
MITTEE C' AGING, "THE CATASTROPHIC STATE OF CATASTROPHIC HEALTH CARE COV-
ERAGE"

M the Chairman of the Senate Special Committee on Aging, I would like to take
this opportunity to commend Senator Shelby for taking the initiative to hold the
first Aging Committee field hearing of this historic 100th Congress. Ever since he
joined the Senate Aging Committeefrom our very first meeting this past January
through every hearing we have heldit has become clear that Senator Shelby s
strong commitment to older Americans will make him one of the most active and
effective members on the Committee.

The title of today's hearing is particularly appropriate. The state of catastrophic
health care coverage certainly is a catastrophe. Despite what as many as 80 percent
of the elderly think, Medicare does not cover the tremendcus expenses (now averag-
ing at $22,000 a year) associated with nursing home care. Indeed, Medicare also does
not cover the costs of drugs prescribed outside the confines of a hospital, routine
physical exams, many optical services, and hearing aids. What is even more alarm-
ing is the fact that the Administration's so-called "catastrophic" health care propos-
al does not include any protections against any one of these catastrophic costs.

To address the catastrophic health care cost issue, the Administration proposes a
plan which would protect those relatively few Medicare beneficiaries (between 8 to 4
percent) who experience a prolonged acute condition within the confines of a hospi-
tal and who must pay over $2,000 out of their own pockets for Medicare deductibles
and coinsurance. However, because this plan would not cover such expenses as nurs
ing home care and prescriptum drug costs, it is misleading to say that the proposed
$2,000 annual cap would protect older Americans, particularly elderly individuals of
limited means, from catastrophic health care costs.

It is an unfortunate truth that the Administration believes it doesn't need to or
can't go any further in this area. Well, in my mind, this step forward is not the step
of the world's richest and most compassionate nation, but the step of a mouse.
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As the baby bocm becomes the senior boom, much greater demands will be placed
on all segments of our health care industry. Although ()Illy about five percent of the
elderly are in nursing homes at any given time, 25 percent will need long-term care
assistance during their later years. In addition, the likelihood for institutionaliza-
tion increases with age. In 1985, an estimated 2 percent of the 65-74 population
versus 16 percent of the over 85 population was in a nursing home. The fact that
the over 85 population is the fastest growing age group in the nation (projected to
increase seven times between 1980 and 2050) has tremendous implications for public
health policy.

Unlike the Administration, I refuse to turn my back on this ever-increasing popu-
lation and ever-increasing need of older Americans. Simply stated, legislation which
does not include expanded federally-sponsored long-term care coverage should not
bear the name of "catastrophic protection."

In the upcoming months, we all must work together to fight for the inclusion of
long-term care protection. To accomplish this goal, we must educate the general
public about the shortcomings of Medicare and the Administration's proposal. We
must impress upon them the need to contact their representatives in Congress to let
them know hos-, important this issue is for them and the country as a whole.

There is no question that it will be difficult to find the funding we need to pay for
necessary long-term care coverage fer our elderly. However, to me, it is nothing but
a matter of priorities. This issue is a priority for many if not all of today's witnesses
and for Senator Shelby and myself. If all of us do our jobs, it will become a priority
for the general publ4., ant; as a result, the rest of the Congress and the Administra-
tion.

The witnesses assembled here will make an important contribution to our shared
goal of protecting all Americans, including older Americans, against the burden of
catastrophic health care costs. It is therefore with great anticipation that I look for-
ward to reviewing the testimony given to Senator Shelby at today's hearing.

Senator SHELBY. We're going to have a number of witnesses and
different panels to testify. I'm going to call on Dr. William
Bridgers. A lot of you know Dr. Bridgers, he is the Dean of the
School of Public Health at the University of Alabama in Birming-
ham.

Dr. Bridgers, if you would just come to the witness table. We're
certainly proud to have you participate in this field hearing. This is
a discipline that you know a lot about. You have spent your life in
it and you're recognized nationally on a lot of these issues. And I
1Gok forward to continue to work with you on a lot of issues regard-
ing health as I did in the U.S. House.

Dr. Bridgers, your written testimony will be made part of the
record in its entirety, as Senator Melcher's, Senator Heflin's and
my own statement was.

And if you would sum up orally your statemen and then open it
up to any questions or comments. We welcome you here.

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM F. BRIDGERS, M.D., DEAN, SCHOOL OF
PUBLIC HEALTH, UNIVERSITY OF ALABAMA AT BIRMINGHAM
Dr. BRIDGERS. Thank you, Senator. I am William Bridgers, Dean

of the School of Public Health at the University of Alabama at Bir
mingham. I also serve as the Director of a new Center for the
Study of Health Policy named in honor of one of your precedessors,
Senator Lister Hill. That's an effort, for which, by the way, your
colleague Senator Heflin was instrumental in helping secure Feder-
al fundir z from this last session of the Congress. Were the great
Senator still with us, he would applaud the efforts of yourself and
others who have determined that the time has come for surfacing
again the current major gaps, and our attention to, coverage for
catastrophic health care. I want to thank you for asking me to par-
ticipate. And I thank you for holding this hearing here in Birming-
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ham, home of one of the Nation's premier academic health centers,
one very active in caring for a lot of people who are unfortunately
part of the burgeoning statistics of catastrophic illness and injury.

As Secretary Bowen defined it in his report to the President, cat-
astrophic care refers to illness cost which cannot be borne by indi-
viduals or families without having to significantly change their
lifestyles or drastically modify their expectations of their living
standards in the future. By this definition, the poor, the underem-
ployed, and the underi I are especially vulnerable, and this
area of the country iE. Ally one with many such people.

Although indigent e... . tcl catastrophic care may be debated as
separate policy issues in States such as ours, they have !come one
problem all too often. If reality is that an individual must spend
down to Medicaid eligibility before outside help is available, it is
clear that even many employed persons are in fragile financial po-
sitions from which they may not recover if catastrophic illness
strikes. This threat of being forced to spend down may be the most
ominous in the minds of people at risk for a catastrophic episode.

It seems to me that the numerous potential options under discus-
sions by the Cengress, and the report to the President from Secre-
tary Bowen has 30 some odd pages listing those options, need to be
examined through a wide-angle lens in the broad context of public
health policy. And as a teacher, analyst, and minor participant in
health policy develop!, ent, I can state my bias: If I can sum it up
in a sentence, it is to worry a little more at this time about the
health of the people and a little less about the financial health of
the health care system. Measures to enhance the health of the
people will, in fact, enhance the health of the system.

It's important to note that catastrophes can occur literally from
cradle to grave, from the premature infant requiring a $150,000
worth of high technology just to get a start in life, to the 75-year-
old v'idow faced with the need for a nursing home that Medicare
won't cover.

I'm pleased to note that the Special Committee recognizes the
breadth and depth of the problem; that it does, indeed, extend from
neonatal intensive care to the hospice, although it is understand-
able that the immediate attention is on the facets that are most
relevant to Medicare. Whereas the main focus is to how to place a
stop-loss on an individual's financial risk, I see it as an opportunity
to consider another stop-loss: what, if anything, can be done to pre-
vent these catastrophes? Let's not spend all our energies and our
money to pay the piper after he has played his tune.

One cause for the increase in the problem is attributable to one
of the new sleeping giants of public health, namely our success in
extending life expectancy, resulting in a rapidly increasing popula-
tion. Many of the diseases that account for a high percentage of
catastrophic episodes are, in fact, acute exacerbation of ' ronic dis-
eases and are potentially pieventative or postponable. the latter
concept of postponement is of great economic importance because,
for me thing the average 65-year-old still has a life expectancy of
smile 17-plus years, and it is known from studies carried out by
HCFA that the cost of treating life threatening events declines
with age, contrary to a widely held view. It is a fact that the cost to
Medicare of the last year of life is lower the older one gets. The

.13
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cost per ;'ear for survivors increases with age; the very much great-
er cost for succumbers declines with age. Obviously, prevention and
postponement have rolls to play that have been ignored or at least
overlooked.

One of the flaws in Medicare evident since its adoption in 1965 is
that it contains a specific prohibition against reimbursement for
most preventive services. Medicare will pay for radical mastecto-
my, but not for screening with mammography for the early treat-
able breast cancer. Medicare will pay for treating a victim with a
stroke, but not for routine control of hypertension that might have
prevented it.

In the light of current evidence on the value of prevention, it
makes no sense that Medicare not recognize and pay for these
values of risk assessment and low tech preventive interventions.

I have two suggestions: First, an "entrance exam" when one be-
comes Medicare eligible is appealing as a way to begin the preven-
tion-postponement thrust. The great majority of people entering
their Medicare years are healthy and robust, yet that they may not
know about their risks, already apparent to a good clinician. And
they may not, therefore, know, which specific actions or activities
they need to engage in in order to reduce these risks. A careful ap-
praisal of risks could be carried out by any competent primary care
physician.

In my submitted statement I have listed some of the items that
should be included in the risk assessment. One benefit of the en-
trance exam would be to afford HCFA and other analysts data on
which projections in the future could be based. Presently, most esti-
mates on future outlays are based on past experience of users
rather than on the health status of the universe of beneficiaries.
These simple tests would also afford not only a base line from
which to evaluate events in the future, but would open up the op-
portunity to offer advice on risk reduction. Most people are moti-
vated by their doctor's "individualized advice."

A reasonable guess on the cost of the entrance exam is about a
$100 for males and $150 for females, for a total cost to Medicare of
about $250 million a year. This sounds like a lot until placed in the
context of the $77-plus billion annual outlay for Medicare. It is not
a rounding error, but nevertheless, it is only about three-tenths of
a percent. This cost could, and probably should, be spread over all
Medicare beneficiaries because they allindeed, all of us, stand to
gain from the savings brought about by reductions of catastrophic
episodes. These costs could be covered as one option with an add-on
of less than a dollar per month to the Part B premium. I suggest
this idea receive consideration as a compliment to whatever stop-
loss provision is ultimately adopted.

In order to prepare for this new prevention era for Medicare, I
recommend that as a first step consideration tie given to the estab-
lishment of a Commission for Preventive Services, a rough counter-
part of ProPac. This body of experts, which would need input from
other agencies which I named in my submitted testimony, could
keep HCFA and the Congress updated on new preventive technol-
ogies and on their cost, and they could weed out ineffective or out-
moded strategies.

14
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In closing, may I note that these very modest changes of Medi-
care could teach us how to most effectively incorporate a preven-
tion service system into our very fine, albeit very expensive, thera-
peutically oriented health care system. The payoff could be not just
financial health, but, indeed, our health status itself. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Bridgers follows:]

15
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TESTIMONY BEFORE A HEARING
CHAIRED BY SENArCR RICHARD SHELBY,

MEMBER OF U.S. SENATE SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON AGING

April 16, 1987, in Birmingham, Alabama

William F. Bridgers, M.D.
Dean, School of Public Health

University of Alabama at Birmingham

I am William Bridgers, Dean of the School of Public

Health at the University of Alabama at Birmingham, and

Director of a new center for the study of health policy

named in honor of one of your predecessors, Senator Lister

Hill: The Lister Hill Center for Health Policy. Were that

great Senator still with us, he would applaud the efforts of

yourself, other members of the U.S. Senate Special Committee

on Aging, many others in the Congress, and those in the

Executive Branch, who have determined that the time has come

for surfacing again the current major gaps in our attention

to, and coverage for, catastrophic health care.

I am honored that you have asked me to participate in

this, your first chairing of a hearing in your role as a new

member of the Special Committee, and it is especially

significant that you are holding the hearing here in

Birmingham, home of cne of the nation's premier academic

health centers--The University of Alabama at Birmingham--a

medical center very active in caring for a lot of people who
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are unfortunately part of the burgeoning statistics on

catastrophic illness or injury.

As Secretary Bowen defined it in his Report to the

President (Catastrophic Illne-s Expenses, Department of

Health and Human Services, November, 1986) catastrophic care

refers to illness costs which cannot be borne by individuals

or families without having !-0 significantly change their

life styles or drastically modify their expectations of

living standards in the future. They may face evertualities

such as losing their homes, terminating their plans for a

college education, or living out their days impoverished in

a nursing home.

By the Bowen definition, the poor, the underemployed,

unemployed, and/or underinsured are especially vulnerable,

and this region of the country is historically one with many

such people. Although indigent care or uncompensated care

and catastrophic care may, strictly speaking, refer to

different phenomena, in states such as ours they become one

problem all too often. If the reality is that an individual

must "spend down" to Medicaid eligibility before much

outside help becomes available, and taking into account that

Medicaid eligibility in Alabama is presently set ...t 16 per

cent of the Federal povs!rty level, it is clear that even

many employed persons are in a fragile financial position

from which they may never recover if catastrophic illness

1 7
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strikes. This threat, of being forced to spend down, may be

the most ominous in the minds of people at risk for a

catastrophic episode. Nursing home care illustrates this

point all too well. For those Medicare eligible, this

program covers only 2 per cent of the nationwide yearly

expenses. Private insurance covers only half that much,

Medicaid covers about 42 per cent, and patients pay for half

of the total. It is obvious from these figures that

impoverishment is virtually a precondition before most can

be assured of receiving financial assistance with nursing

home care. And, of course, the need for nursing home care

often leads, sooner or later, to the meeting of this

precondition.

My testimony will focus on the problem of catastrophic

care only from my perspective: public policy, health

policy, public health, or to put it all toge.her: public

health policy. I am not a clinician caring for individuals

suffering with acute or chronic catastrophic disease, nor am

I a health economist or expert on the financing of this

care. There have alreaay been several hearings highlighting

these important aspects, and there will be many more that

will contribute to the debate on what, when, and how to do

something about the problem. As Secretary Bowen pointed out

in his Report to the President, "The options that can be

developed to enhance catastrophic illness coverage for

Americans are for all practical purposes limitless." He
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devotes over 30 pages (of a 117 page report) to them, and no

doubt there are others and combinations that could be added.

It will be extraordinarily challenging for the political

process to select the options which are at once adequate,

equitable, economical, and not to:, disruptive in terms of

the cascade of effects upon other facets of the system, such

as primary care, private insurance,
Medicaid, maternal and

child care, etc.

It seems to me that all the potential options under

discussion in the Congress need to be examined through a

wide angle lens in the broad context of public health

policy, and as a teacher, analyst, and minor participant in

health policy development I can state my bias: if I could

sum it up in a sentence, it is to worry a little more at

this time abon.c the health of the people and a little less

about the (financial) health of the health care system. If

we as a nation were to suddenly find the silver bullet which

led to success in bringing the U.S. health service system's

costs under control, but this came about at the expense of

large numbers of people effectively locked out of the

system, we would have achieved not success but fainre.

That, I am now convinced, we will not let happen. Ten years

ago, perhaps even five, if one timidly suggested that it was

time to come to grips with an expansion of coverage for

those presently denied optimal use of the system, the

response would have been: not now; not until costs are

I
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contained. It is heartening that we've matured beyond that

reflexive rejoinder.

In our race after costs, not unlike those sleek dogs at

the track hot on the heels of the mechanical rabbit, gaining

on it but not quite catching it, we now glance over our

shoulders and notice that some of the participants have

slowed down, and some have fallen by the wayside. Notably,

we see that the numbers of the potentially medically

indigent, of those underemployed or underinsured, threatened

with the spectre of an inability to purchase care, should it

be required, are increasing. The uninsured Low number over

30 million and it could be that one in three of us are

potentially medically indigent (based upon our capacity to

cope financially with a devastating illness). A number of

people--even those who tried to plan for their

futures - -could have their dreams shattered by the spectre

becoming a grim reality: a catastrophic illness or injury.

It is often stated that in any given year the probability of

any one family having to deal with one of these catastrophes

is small. True enough, but that is not the relevant

question to ask. Rather, what's the probability over 3

years, 10, or 15? If we had the data, there's little doubt

that the proportion of families at risk over any reasonable

period of time is substantial.

20
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These realities have, I believe, also caused us to

pause--not as a manifestation of our failure in our health

policy but as a reaffirmation of our fundamental egalitarian

precepts. The public dialogue has now reached a new

plateau: not whether to lend a hand, but how. This, I

believe, represents a maturation in our deliberations.

Presently, we subsume much of this concern under a

broad and somewhat vague term of catastrophic health care

coverage. (It might be helpful at this point in the debate

if someone could coin a three letter word for catastrophic

care. We seem to prefer to debate policy options, even very

complex ones, by referring to them by initials: DRG, HMO,

PPO, IPA, and PRO, being good recent examples.) The

catastrophes can occur literally from cradle to grave: the

premature infant requiring $150,000 worth of high technology

just to get a start in life; the young child requiring a

liver transplant or the college girl requiring a new kidney;

the high school boy with a severed spinal cord from diving

into a pond and guilty of nothing more than youthful

exuberance; a young adult at the height of his creativity

struggling with his own immune system in a hopeless battle

against AIDS; a prematurely failing heart in a middle aged

business man; a nun with metastatic cancer of the breast; a

75 year old widow faced with the need for a nursing home

that Medicare won't cover.
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All of these and many more from the neonatal intensive

care unit to the hospice, fit the defini'_ion of catastrophic

health care coverage sorrows. I am pleased to note that the

Special Committee recognizes the breadth and depth of she

problem, although it is understandable that most of the

immediate attention is on the aspects of it most relevant to

the elderly and other Medicare beneficiaries. Secretary

Bowen took a bold step in bringing this to the front burner

as one aspect of our social security that cries out for

attention. Many have joined him in support of the idea that

the time has come, although how far to go in coverage and

how to pay for it is far from settled. Some see it as a

straightforward issue in how to go about placing a stop-loss

on an individual's risk of financial catastrophe. Some view

it as step one in facing the music: the inevitability of

the need for rationing certain kinds of care. Let us hope

that that dismal possibility does not loom too large too

soon. Sume see the initiative as another step closer to the

slippery slope of national health insurance. I see it as an

opportunity to ask an important question: from the public

health perspective, what, exactly, are the causes of these

catastrophic episodes and their high costs and what, if

anything, can be done to prevent them?

While we worry through how to pay for this care, let's

give equal time to the causes and to the potential for

intervention before the fact. From one view, the reason why
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catastrophic illness is now such a massive problem is

because we're now capable of intervening with high

technology diagnostic and therapeutic tools and skills not

even imagined a few years ago. Another cause is

attributable to one of the new sleeping giants of public

health: our success in extending life expectancy, resulting

in a rapidly increasing population of elderly people--most

living fulfilling and vital lives, but at risk for a high

tech catastrophe, or, even more commonly, a low tech one,

such as nursing home care.

This facet of the system--nursing homes--is no longer

viewed as just place to warehouse old, worn out people but

as a site for restoration--a temporary abode and not the

final rusting place. I will interject here a suggestion

that deserves exploration by the Congress. We seem about

ready to face the need for more nursing home and other

chronic care beds at the same time that we are not facing

the fact that we have too many acute care hospital beds.

(With nationwide occupancy running around 60 per cent, and

even ignoring the evidence of a significant numbei of

medically questionable admissions, it is obviou., that we're

all paying the acute care hospital sector quite a lot to

maintain those empty beds.) One could wonder to what extent

it might be possible to convert unneeded acute care beds

into needed chronic care beds, saving on both sides: less

outlays for empty acute care beds and less outlays for
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construction of needed chronic care beds. To my best

knowledge this sort of tradeoff has not been studied

adequately by the private sector or by the Congress. (The

concept of "swing beds" being experimented with in some

rural areas may be more an attempt to have cne's cake and

eat it too than to find a definitive solution. At any rate,

so far as I know even the swing bed notion has not received

much attention outside rural America.)

Before I return to my main thrust on the need to look

to prevention or postponement as one valid strategy in

dealing with catastrophic illness, let me say a bit more

about their causes. It is customary to classify chronic,

debilitating disease into groups. First are those resulting

from self-imposed risks such as smoking or other

.elf- destructive behaviors. Second, there are those

resulting from societally-imposed risks such as exposure to

asbestos and other toxics, including numerous chemical or

physical risks in the environment, including the air, the

water supply, the food chain, the workplace, and even the

home. Third, we shouldn't overlook those coming about as a

consequence of the health care system itself, such as drug

reactions or diagnostic or therapeutic mishaps. And

finally, there is a category of causes that are, simply, a

matter of luck. This seemingly unscientific classification

is really quite useful: one's luck begins when one's

parents are chosen: genetic potential for, or protection

24
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against, a host of disease conditions is not a matter of

choice, but luck. Other conditions as much attributable to

luck as to any other cause would be many unintentional

injuries, whether one is born rich or poor, whether one is

unknowingly exposed to risks for toxic shock syndrome,

legionnaires or tans (to name but a few recent examples),

and the list could be expanded. To a significant extent,

many medical catastrophes fit into this criterion of

simply, bad luck. We as a nation have a long history of

helping those who have been dealt a bad hand by lady luck.

I mention this simplified classification of causes

because in pondering a solution to the problem of

catastrophic care we need a dual thrust: a way to pay for

them when they occur, while at the same time taking positive

steps to reduce their incidences. We know from studies

from, for example, the Carter Center that up to two thirds

of premature mortality (arbitrarily defined as death before

age 65) is potentially preventable. All our attention

should not be devoted to how to pay the piper after he's

played his tune.

To a significant extent, many of the diseases that

account for a high percentage of catastrophic episodes

(cerebrovascular accidents, or strokes; c(ngestive heart

failure; septicemia; malignant tumors; chronic obstructive

pulmonary disease; coronary artery disease; diabetes;
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chronic renal disease; accidents) are acute exacerbations of

chronic disease and are potentially preventable or

postponable. The latter concept, of postponement, is of

great economic importance because it is known from stuOies

carried cut by the Health Care Financing Administration that

the cost of treating life threatening events declines with

age, contrary to the widely held view. (Apparently, less

heroic measures are taken when a very serious illness

becomes manifest in the very old than when it occurs in

those under 65 or in the youngest of the old. Whereas the

reasons for the decline may not be fully understood, it is a

fact that the cost to Medicare of the last year of life is

lower the older one is at that time. The cost per year for

"survivors" increases with age; the very much greater costs

for "succombers" declines with age.)

Should it not, therefore, be considered prudent public

policy to couple the insuring against catastrophic illness

with compfrion provisions that attempt to prevent them from

taking place or at least postpone them? The answer is, "it

depends." If the start-up costs are not too great and there

is a reasonable probability of a savings down the road, it's

worth consideration. I oelieve the evidence is very

favorable, and I have a suggestion on how to start this

preventive initiative.
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1,

An "entrance exam" when one becomes Medicare eligible

makes sense as a way to begin the prevention-postponement

thrust. The great majority of people entering their

Medicare years A-e healthy and robust, yet they may not know

about the risks already apparent to a good clinician and

they may not therefore know which specific actions or

activities they need to engage in in order to reduce these

risks. A careful appraisal of risk could be carried out by

any competent primary care physician. This would include

measurements of height-vs-weight, visual and auditory

acuity, blood pressure, blood cholesterol and lipids,

mammography in females, a careful history of symptoms of

preclinical or manifest disease states, and an appraisal of

personal habits of nutrition, self-prescribed drug taking,

and substance abuse. These and other simple tests would

afford not only a baseline from which to help appraise

events in the future but would open the opportunity to offer

advice on risk redlction. Some might ignore the advice, but

most people are motivated by their doctors when given

individualized advice, whereas they might be co,dused by the

barrage of free "advice" the receive from advertisements

and articles in the lay press. If they can see that certain

risk factors apiy to them and not just to all those others

their age they might heed the advice. (It has been called

to my attention that the Harvard Medicare Project (Medicare:

Coming of Age, A Proposal for Reform, Cambridge, MA, Harvard

Press, 1986) calls for an annual physical limited to much

27



24

-13-

the same items as I have noted, estimated by them to cost

about $1 billion per year. I question whether a full risk

assessment workup could be carried out that inexpensively.)

The cost of an entrance exam for new Medicare

beneficiaries? A reasonable guess is about $100 for males

and $150 for females. Because each year about 2 million

people become Medicare eligible, the total cost to Medicare

would be about $250,000,000 per year. This sounds like a

lot until placed in the context of a $77+ billion annual

outlay for Medicare; it certainly isn't a rounding error but

nevertheless is only about 0.3 per cent. It makes sense to

spread this cost over all Medicare beneficiaries because

they all, indeed, all of us, stand to gain from the savings

brought about by reductions in catastrophic episodes. This

cost could be covered by an add-on of less than a dollar per

month (to the Part B premium). I suggest this idea as one

deserving consideration as a coupling to whatever stop-loss

provision is ultimately adopted.

In closing, may I note the real, fundamental problem

and an opportunity. One of the flaws in Medicare, evident

since its adoption in 1965, is that it contains a specific

prohibition against reimbursement for preventive measures

(with the recent exception of coverage for pneumococcal

vaccine and flu shots). Medicare will pay for radical

mastectomy but not for screening with mammography for early,
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treatable breast cancer. 'Sedicare will pay for treating a

victim of stroke but Jot for routine control of the

hypertension that might have prevented it. In the light of

current evidence on the value of prevention, it makes no

sense for Medicare not to recognize, and pay for, these

values of risk assessment and low tech preventive

interventions.

In order to prepare for this new prevention era for

Medicare, I recommend that consideration be given to the

establishment of a Commission for Preventive Services, a

rough counterpart to PROPAC. This body of experts, with the

needed input from other agencies such as the Centers for

Disease Control, the National Institutes of Health, the

Congressional Office of Technology Assessment, the Office of

Disease Prevention and Health Promotion in the Department of

Health and Human Services, and the National Center for

Health Services Research and Health Care Technology

Assessment could keep HCFA and the Congress updated on new

prevention technologies and on their costs and could weed

out ineffective or outmoded strategies. Such a commission

could give a heightened attention and visibility to

prevention, presently the stepchild of the health care

system. The beneficiaries would not be just those in

Medicare.

i.
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In closing, I will summarize my view of where we should

go from here. I agree that the time has come to air the

issue of catastrophic care and how to remove its spectre of

financial ruin. I ask, however, that we not devote

exclusive attention to how to pay for it, but give some

attention to the power of prevention as a way to preclude

some of the need to pay. I propose a modest change in

Medicare, but a change which could teach us how to most

effectively incorporate a prevention services system into

oir very fine, albeit very expensive, therapeutically

oriented health care system. The payoff could be not just

our financial health but indeed our health status itself.

Thank you.
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Senator SHELBY. Dr. Bridgers, we certainly are indebted to you,
for not only your work in public health, preventive medicine that
we have worked with you on in other Congresses, but for appearing
here today.

Just fcr the record, I want to introduce, without objection, I
trust, your resume here and I want to share a part of it.

Dr. Bridgers is a graduate of the University of the South, re-
ceived a Bachelor of Arts degree in German, studied bio-chemistry
in post-graduate school at Duke University. Attended Washington
University School of Medicine, St. Louis, received his M.D. degree
there in 1959. After a 2-year fellowship in preventive medicine at
Washington University, he joined the faculty in St. Louis as an as-
sistant professor of public health and preventive medicine. He
served 2 years, 1966-68, at the University of Miami School of Medi-
cine before joining the faculty at the University of Alabama in Bir-
mingham.

Dr. Bridgers, I have several questions for you. I have some that I
might submit to you in writing just for the record.3 We'll keep
open the record until April 30 for any written testimony, additions,
.:,sr addendums to anything that anybody wants to put in the field
record. And that, of course, includes all the witnesses.

Dr. Bridgers, anticipating the tripling of the over age 85 popula-
tion by the yea- 2020, what are the implications this has for the
Nations' health care and the support system, particularly these
people and these organizations and businesses and so forth dealing
with long term care?

Dr. BRIDGERS. I think the most serious spectre is this phenome-
non of "spending down" that I noted earlier.

Senator SHELBY. Give us an example of this. Just a typical
middle-class Alabamian or Nebraskan or Montanan or Connecticut
citizen it's everywhere is it not, doctor?

Dr. BRIDGERS. Yes, sir. The scenario is usually very similar. After
a person reaches a state of needing, say, skilled nursing facilities
care, he or she (and more often shewe men die a little sooner)
discovers very quickly that Medicare will cover only a minuscule
part of the cost of this care. Presently, Medicare covers about 2
percent of all nursing home care costs; the private insurance covers
only about half of that or about 1 percent; Medicaid, if one can
spend down to become Medicaid eligible, then picks up some 42
percent. And about half of the costs are borne by the individuals or
their families. And I think that that is, as I said, the greatest spec-
tre that faces the elderly as they approach the stage where chronic,
supervised care may be required.

Senator SHELBY. Dr. Bridgers, have you found that many of our
citizens all over the Nation, and particularly since we're here in
Alabama, have been shocked that Medicare and certain insurance
policies don't cover nursing home long-term extended care? They
haven't had to consider it until it's on them, have they not?

Dr. BRIDGERS. I think that has been the common experience ev-
erywhere. We have called these "war stories" and they are all too
real and all too common. I don't know why the public has not been

3 See p. 30.
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better informed on the limited coverage of long-term care in Medi-
care. And I think it's an issue long overdue. I am delighted that
you and others are addressing it now.

Senator SHELBY. Doctor, I have a couple of other questions for
you. It's my understanding here at UAB, where you're very active,
that the University of Alabama Center for Aging has submitted a
research proposal to the National Institute of Aging, NIA, for an
Alzheimer's disease research grant. Because this insidious mind-de-
stroying disease affects approximately 2Y2 million individuals each
year in the United States and the costs are over $30 billion a year
in trying to treat this, can the number of Alzheimer's patients be
expected to grow and what can we do about it?

Dr. BRIDGERS. The reason why Alzheimer's disease is still in the
research mode is this: We understand really precious little about
this newly recognized entity. It's only through efforts such as those
of Dr. Schnaper at the Center for Aging and other investigators
that we quite possibly will soon get a handle on this problem, fac-
toring out from other forms of dementia. And then, obviously, once
we understand the cause perhaps we can approach a cure or a way
to prevent it.

Senator SHELBY. Do you believe that the fear of long-term illness
and its associated very expensive health care cost, in addition to
the fear that there, you know, might be or will be a financial and
emotional burden on their families, contributes to a lot of the sui-
cide problems of older Americans?

Dr. BRIDGERS. We know that suicide in the elderly is associated
with depression.

Senator SHELBY. Is it one of the higher ones in the United
States?

Dr. BRIDGERS. Yes, sir. And we know that the financial problems
and burdens can certainly lead to a situation of depression. So I
would say they have to be in some way related.

Senator SHELBY. Dr. Bridgers, I know you're not a financial
expert or analyst, but when we approach this legislation we need
to try to bring about a comprehensive bill. We're going to have to
fund it and we're going to have to pay for it some way. Do you
have any thoughts on that?

I know that Medicare is inadequate for long-term health care. I
believe that the proposal by the administration does not speak to a
lot of the real issues that you have mentioned here today.

Dr. BRIDGERS. The major proposal to date by the administration,
of course, is the very straightforward stop loss on existing Medicare
coverage. (And their estimates on cost continue to rise slightly as
new calculations are made by the CBO and others.) The last figure
I have heard is some $6 plus a month as a mandatory add-on to the
voi.untary part B premium. As to the total cost, if we went so far as
to include chronic care, I am simply not an expert on this topic.

Senator SHELBY. Do you have any numbers as to, approximately,
how many Americans, elderly Americans, would have to have long-
term extended care, such as in nursing homes, out of our popula-
tion say of 240 million?

Dr. BRIDGERS. Of the 26 million people over 65, about 1.5 million
reside in nursing homes. This increases with age: About 2 percent

32



29

of those 65-74 will be in such facilities, 7 percent of those 75-84,
and 16 percept of those 85 or older.

I would like to make another point, one that I think is often mis-
understood, and I had it in my written testimony and did not have
time to mention it here: A lot of people "pooh pooh" the thought of
having to spend down to cover a catastrophe within one's family,
pointing out that there is a very small percentage of families each
year who will experience such a catastrophic illness, slich as a need
for an organ transplant or some other disaster.

That's not the point. The point is, over a period of time, 5 years,
10 years what's the chances? And there are some estimates that as
high as 1 in 3 families may be faced with such a catastrophe. And
that's really the scenario that I think we need to focus on.

Senator SHELBY. You are familiar with the administration's pro-
posal

Dr. BRIDGERS. Yes, sir.
Senator SHELBY. Dealing basically with Medicare part B. As I un-

derste.nd it, and it was my concern. this doesn't address at all the
long-term extended nursing home problem or the spend-down that
you just alluded to, does it?

Dr. BRIDGERS. It carefully avoids addressing that.
Senator SHELBY. Carefully avoids it. So a lot of people would

probably be misled into thinking, again, that their bills will be
taken care of if they pay $5 a month or whatever it is in addition
to what they're paying now and that would not be true at all,
would it?

Dr. BRIDGERS. I agree completely, that's right.
Senator SHELBY. It just seems to me Doctor, that with 240 million

people there is some way financially for us to come up with the
numbers, the right numbers, for all of us to pay a little to help a
lot of people that will be victimized through no fault of their own.

Dr. BRIDGERS. Even those of us who aren't yet at risk because
we're not 65 or older, are nonethless at risk because we have
family members and some day we'll all be there. And I couldn't
agree more, that it's a burden the entire Nation should bear.

Senator SHELBY. Dr. Schnaper, the director of the Center for
Aging at UAB, could not be here today, but we're going to leave
the record open for any testimony or questions or statements that
he also might want to include for this hearing. And I wish you
would inform him of that.

Dr. 73RIDGERS. I certainly will.
Senator SHELBY. Dr. Bridgers, we appreciate you being here. As I

have indicated, I'll add your testimony to this hearing mcord and
your concerns and let's keep working together to bring about a
comprehensive health care package. Thank you very much.

Dr. BRIDGERS. Thank you, sir.
[At this point, Senator Shelby would like to make part of the

hearing record the follow-up questions for Dr. Bridgers and his sub-
mitted responses.]
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FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONS FOR DR. BRIDGERS

Senator Shelby: It is my understanding that only one-third of

those potentially at risk far nursing home care now reside in a nursing
home - -the remainder are cared for at home, frequently by their
families. In any mind, these families deserve credit and support.
However, one criticism of expanding Medicare to includ, :.c-?rage of
long-terra care (including nursing home care and home- and

community-based care) is that federal support in this area would

produce a disincentive for families to care for individuals capable of

remaining in the home.

Although there is some research in this area which disputes this

argument, have you found this to be the case?

Dr. Bridgers: The same studies the.t suggest that there are
people in community settings who could or should be in nursing homes

also suggest the converse: there may be about the same proportion in

nursing homes who could be in community settings. Thus, any changes

in policy on reimbirrsement for long term care in any one setting would

most probably have impact upon all uthers.

Senator, the key to a meaningful answer to your question is the

term you wisely chose, of being potentially at risk, and this must be

coupled with risk for long stays in nursing homes, not just a few days
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of convalescence now and then. The overwhelming majority of the

elderly reside in the community; only about 5 percent are

institutionalized at any one time. It is indeed true that a goodly

number of the noninstitutionalized receive care from community based

caregivers or from family members. However, research on these

alternative sources of care shows that few who use home- and

community-based long term care services would have been long-stayers

in nursing homes. The long stayers are older, sicker, more dependent

and poorer in social resources. (The latter factor, of course is

wherein lies one major concern, as I discussed in my testimony.)

Thus, it is unlikely that adding Medicare benefits for community or

home-based services will significantly reduce total nursing home costs.

Home and community care benefits would allow increased care in settings

other than nursing homes, but these should be understood to be

add-ons, not replacements for nursing home care.

Whether a proposal to cover home- and/or community-based care

would discourage or encourage families from caring for their elderly

parents would depend upon the specifics of the program. A system

that paid professional providers for such care, but did not offer

compensation to family mcmber caregivers, might indeed have the effect

of reducing family willingness to provide care. By contrast, a program

that allows payments to family members would almost certainly encourage

family care. In some ways such a system already exists: it is not

uncommon for mom to move in with daughter's family, contribute her

Social Security to the family resources, and allow the family to claim

her as a tax deduction. Providing more resources for family caregiving

would strongly encourage many healthy elderly to live with their
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children. In my view this may be good social policy, but it will be

expensive if further subsidized.

It is difficult to design research that would address all of hese
complex trade-offs; however, until our insights are clearer, I would be

inclined to be cautious in proposing any major changes in coverage.

The problem demanding attention first is the inadequacy of payment

systems for needed nursing home care for those requiring extended

stays, and this is where I recommend the main attention be devoted.

Senator Shelby: In your prepared testimony, Dr. Bridgers, you

mentioned the importance of adding a prevention component to the
Medicare program and convincingly argue that the long-term cost

savings would justify the initial relatively substantial investment. I am

very interested in this suggestion and compare it to the importance of
investing in biomedical research, (which down-the-road has the

potential to to save millions of dollars when scientists find cures and
treatments for diseases).

The idea of investing in preventive measures has been repeatedly

suggested by knowledgeable people such as you. Why do }ou

think policy-makers have hesitated in the past and, for the most

part, continue to hesitate to invest in this area?

Dr. Bridgers: Senator, I have pondered this question more than

any other single health policy issue, and I believe the reluctance is

primarily related to the abstract nature of the primacy of prevention.

When we claim that a disease or dependency state has been or could be
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prevented in groups at risk, one must always wonder: how do I know

that I wouldn't have avoided that condition even if some measure hadn't

been taken to prevent it? This uncertainty, coupled with the reality

that, if a preventive measure is successful, nothing happens -- there's

been a non-event, if you willleaves peonlo with an unczrtainty about

what they're paying for when they purchase prevention. Contrast this

with the critically ill person with the need for, say, a new set of

coronary arteries, and the outcome of the policy-making process is

understandable: treatment gets the nod and prevention gets ignored.

But there is a certain unassailable logic which shows that this is a

short sighted way to view the evolution of a balanced health policy.

The bottom line is hidden in the meaning of the terms incidence and

prevalence, and I am afraid those of us fostering prevention have done

a poor job of pointing out the fundamental difference between the two.

The incidence rate is the number of new cases that develop in, say, a

year. Prevalence is a measure of the total cases present at any point

in time. Therefore, these two terms are related by the length of time

that a disease may last: prevalence is the product of incidence and

duration. Treatment strategies deal with new (incident) cases as they

occur; however, treatment by definition can do nothing to reduce the

incidence--the next cases will occur right on schedule. Treatment,

therefore, can reduce the prevalence of a disease only by shortening

its duration. Prevention, in sharp contrast, reduces prevalence by

reducing incidence. The unassailable logic is that, when it is possible

to do so, prevention is the strategy that can reduce the number of

cases that prevail: if the case is prevented, the duration is zero. Jt

follows that, when it is possible to prevent, one has achieved the
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ultimate in cost-containment: no disease, no treatment required, no
associated dependency costs; and this can be accomplished through

inexpensive, "low-tech" risk assessment and preventive measures.

Stated another way in more familiar terms, because the total costs

for the health care system are the product of the price per episode and

the number of episodes, we might want to devote a little more attention

to strategies that can reduce the number of episodes of illness, because

we've not made much progress trying to reduce the prices (and some

analysts would argue we can't). On the top of the list of ways to
reduce the number of needed episodes of care is prevention. At least,

it's a strategy we haven't tested as fully as we might.

Senator Shelby: There is no question that any changes in

Medicare coverage will be limited, and understandably so, by our

federal deficit. Understanding this, but also knowing there are

great health care needs that simply are not being met can be

extremely frustrating for those of us in the Congress. If we

switched places for today and you had to prioritize the need for

nursing home coverage, the need for more liberal home health

benefits, the need for investment in preventive health care

services, the need for better catastrophic protection for the
elderly person who suffers a major catastrophic acute disease, the

need for more non-medical caregiving services, the need for

better coverage of prescription drug costs, and the many other

unmet needs of our elderly and non-elderly population, where

would your priorities fall?
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Dr. Bridgers: Senator, you have posed an extraordinarily

complex question, and my response will, I am afraid, not be entirely

satisfying to you, myself, or anyone. Even in medical care it is

impossible to do everything for everybody. Further, because everyone

has different health problems, the mix of insured services that might be

right for one individual may be of only limited help to another. It is

my view, however, that people--including the elderly--are, by and

large, able to make appropriate decisions about what is best for them,

and this ability extends to which health services they require. The

problem, of course, is that the wherewithal to purchase such insurance

or even its availability if one does have the resources to purchase it is

presently inadequate, disjointed, or for some services nonexistent.

Senator, I first tried to analyze your question on priorities by

taking into account the several factors that must enter into one's

judgment call. These include: (a) the size of the problem; how many

people would it affect? (b) The urgency of the problem if left

unaddressed; (c) the severity; is it life-threatening? (d) the effect

upon others, such as family members; (e) the cost of correcting the

problem; (f) the effectiveness, including the short-term and long-term

payoff from correcting the problem. This analytical approach might

show that, for example, home health care would get the highest "score"

(affects a significant portion of the elderly but not all; is presently

inadequately covered but not especially expensive; is, however, not

usually dealing with an urgent health matter; f.s, for its purpose,

probably effective). But is it reasonable to try to sum up these

factors and arrive at a priority? Probably not, unless one is

comfortable adding apples and oranges. Is it reasonable to Attempt to
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quantitate parameters which are, in some cases, qualitative issues (such
as "urgency")? Thus, after giving this matter of scoring and setting a

rank-order of priorities some considerable thought, I have decided that

we should arrive at our judgments on a less rigorous basis and ask a
simpler question: would addressing any given issue (say, home health

care, catastrophic coverage, preventive services) be a reasonable thing
to do at this time, given our state of knowledge, our financial
constraints and the political support for it, both within the Congress
and from those citizens to be affected? and how many such initiatives
can (be address?

One tempting recommendation would be a sweeping and broad
system of capitation that would allow individuals the flexibility to choose

from a wide range of insured coverages, including catastrophic, long
term, drugs, and all the rest. The hard policy question, given this

option, would then be how much can we as a society afford to put in
the kitty for each elderly person? In the light of all our other needs
(i.e., the tradeoffs between social or domestic and defense programs,

retiring the debt, etc.) the issue is one on which reasonable people

may disagree, and it would be very difficult to arrive at a reliable cost
estimate before the fact. Stating the solution in this way also begs the

question of whether a pervasive system of capitation woull be popular

with the majority of the elderly and providers. I am not certain it
would be. Additionally, because it is not at all clear that a capitated
scheme will become the predominant organizational arrangement for the

non-elderly, would we then be at risk of ending up with a type of
schizophrenia in the system: one scheme for those under 65, and

another when one becomes Medicare eligible? At this time, I believe
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that this could be the result if care for the elderly were completely

cpaitated. Thus, until it is clearer whether the hopes of some, (that a

capitated scheme will become the pervasive form of organization

throughout the system) will be realized in the near future, which I

very much doubt, or continue to be frustrated, which seems far more

likely, I don't btli:.:ve that a proposal to globally capitate health care

needs for the elderly can be defended (albeit its limited use for those

who prefer it shouldn't be discouraged).

I will therefore address your question on priorities in a different

way, bearing in mind your caveat that any changes in Medicare

coverage must be limited (as long as the federal deficit looms so large).

I will state my preferences in order. As a first priority I must urge

adoption of risk assessment and forecasting coupled with simple, mostly

non-medical, preventive interventions. In keeping with our tradition of

incremental changes, in my testimony I suggested that we commence this

heightened awareness of the power of prevention by establishing a

Commission for Preventive Services and by a program of "entrance

exams" for new Medicare beneficiars. My reason for selecting this as

a top priority is that until we vigorously iursue programs to prevent

catastrophic episodes they will continue to occur on schedule and at

ever-increasing costs. All the other possible new coverages, important

though they may be. are addressing roblems created because the horse

has already left the barn.

After preventive services, my priority would be to offer coverage

for catastrophic care, using the Bowen definition, as I noted in my

testimony. I deliberately choose this definition because, if literally

interpreted, it would include not only the high tech, high cost
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interventions for seriou. , acute diseases but also extended nursing

home care for many indigent or potentially medically indigent

people--let's call them low-tech catastrophes as opposed to what we
usually think about, but catastrophes nonetheless. If catastrophic

expense is defined as that which exceeds 15 per cent of income, about

a quarter of the elderly are at risk each year for such acute care

services alone, and if long-term nursing home expenses are included,

which they should be, those at risk are many more. I do want to point

out, in addition, that using this definition, outpatient prescription

drugs expenses are included as among the items that would be included

for those most in need. Further, for those with very low incomes the

Bowen proposal on a $2,000 stop-loss would greatly exceed the more

reasonable cut-off of 15 per cent of income, and I therefore favor the

latter approach.

I am aware that placing catastrophic coverage in a higher priority

than, say, explicit provisions for prescription drugs for all Medicare

Iloneficiaries, may not presently have as pervasive a base of public

support; it can be argued that not as many people would benefit as

soon. But those who would require catastrophic coverage are among

the most critically in need of relief, and all would benefit by the peace

of mind that they're now protected. These two, then, Senator, are, to

my way of thinking, the most important (for the near term) as Medicare

amendments deserving prompt action: a coupling of coverage for

catastrophes with a program to reduce their incidences via prevention.

Senator Shelby: I believe that you and I both agree that there is

an urgent need to place more emphasis on the study of geriatrics and
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training in this specialty. What incentives can you suggest that would

help attract talented individuals into this field? And further educate

the public about its importance?

Dr. Bridgers: It is w'U known that the elderly now consume a

disporportionate amount of the nation's health care resources, as shown

by the elderly constituting about 11 per cent of the U.S. population

(slightly higher in Alabama) yet consuming about 30 per cent of the

total health dollar. Two-thirds of this expenditure is from public

funds. With the increased competition, both by individual health care

providers and institutions, for the patient dollar it is apparent that the

elderly offer a source of income. It is anticipated that there will be an

increased direct recruitment of the elderly patient by providers.

Coincident with this activity is the increased sophistication of the

elderly population as to their expectancies for health care services.

This "education" has come about as a result if many activities:

participation in informational programs such as those offered by the

Area Agencies on Aging, and influence of younger family members and

acquaintances who are knowledgeable about geriatric resources. It is

expected that future patient populations will be even more

knowledgeable and more selective as to providers of geriatric care.

It can be expected that in the near future we will see an

acceleration of publicity about individuals who have special geriatric

training because of their obvious value to the elderly. Thus, to

answer your question, the market itself will provide the major

incentives for doctors to seek such training and indeed, those

completing quality geriatric programs are already in great demand.
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The issue of how to educate the public is a fairly easy one to
address. The Geriatric Education Center here in UAB's Center for

Aging are major resources with access to the membership of professional

associations representing almost all disciplines in the Medical Center,

with newsletters that circulate throughout Alabama, and with a growing

network of individuals located throughout the state who have

participated in our training programs. We have access to thousands of

elderly through our cooperative relationship with Area Agencies on

Aging, through the identification of rosters of elderly who have been

screened through our research programs, and through cooperative

relationships with the media (TV, radio, newspapers). I do not know

how regions of the country without such resources can go about

educating the public, but if they are not already tapping into the
GEC's they should.

Senator Shelby: The Institute of Medicine (IOM) will soon publish

a study on the need for geriatric leadership in 'he United Stetes. We

understand that among the study's recommen&dons is a suggestion that

comprehensive geriatric research and training centers should he

established. In your opinion, would such centers be a suitable vehicle

for addressing the country's 'tic leadership needs9

Dr. Bridgers: A major 1 - cc to the geriatric field is currently

available and in place, with 22 geriatric education centers (GEC) located

throughout the country. This program must be one of the best

bargains with the biggest "bang for the 'Jock" of any federal program

currently active. The Bureau of Health Professions spend& about 12
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million annually across all centers and gains from this modest sum

numerous effective programs including development of geriatric

curricula, many of which are quite excellent. These curricula include:

marketing strategies that publicize geriatrics; development of resources,

such as trained faculty, library holdings, etc. The GEC programs must

be reauthorized the next year as part of the bureau's reauthorization.

Specific language supporting the GEC progmis will go far towards

meeting the geilatric manpower's needs our country faces.

The question becomes one of whether it is best to expand the GEC

to include research (which could be accomplished in our situation at

UAB very easily), or should centers of excellence in geriatrics be

created as new entities. The creati: of separate entities with dir rent

goals makes no economic or programmatic sense to me. The history and

current status of geriatrics at UAB leads me to believe our best chance

for further progress lies in making the GEC a central player in

expanding geriatric activities and incorporating with these centers the

clinical geriatric research activities.

Senator Shelby: Have you conducted any longitudinal studies on

the elderly and the process of aging specifically: How they cope with

the whole idea of being or getting old? What their outlooks are for

their elderly years? What they fear: health, income, isolation,

dependence/loss of independence, loss of spouse, loneliness'

In association with the Alabama Commission on Aging, our center

at UAB wider the leadership of Dr. Glenn Hughes recently completed a

needs survey of Alabama's elderly by interviewing over 1,000 elderly
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selected in such a way that they represent the elderly population in

Alabama. This survey was designed to evaluate the needs status of

Alabama's elderly in order to produce a policy document that will be

available to legislatures, agency heads, etc. The data will allow

statements on the elderly's coping success, quality of life by an
algorithum to be developed, and identification of specific deficit areas.

As soon as the analysis is completed I would be happy to share their

findings with you. In addition to our data there are several existing

reports that describe the elderly's coping success and identifies the

areas they fear most; most surveys identify health as number one, with

income number two, in regards to areas of importance.
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Senator SHELBY. We have a panel that was supposed to testify, a
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Turner, and I understand they have had to take
someone to the hospital and they may be unable to attend.

Ms. PRIMROSE. They have just come in.
Senator SHELBY. They're here now. Well, that is good. If they can

come on up to the table, we would appreciate that.
Are you situated okay, yes?
Mr. TURNER. Yes, sir.
Senator SHELBY. While we are waiting for the second panel, I

want to state that the chart on my right here that you're facing,
. most of you can see, except the people in the jury box over here on
the extreme right, is a graph. This graph shows the breakdown of
the out-of-pocket costs for the elderly in excess of $2,000. As it is
clear from the abundance of the bright red color there, the nursing
home section at 81.2 percent, is clearly the largest piece of the pie,
if you want to describe it as a pie.
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Medical Expenses of Elderly
With Over $2000 in Annual

out of pocket costs
HOSPITAL 10%

DRUGS 1.2%

DENTAL 1.7%

PHYSICIAN 5.9%

NURSING HOME 81.2%

Source: Rice and Gobel, Health Affairs, FA 1986
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Well, what does this really mean? Well, above and beyond the
substantial sum of $2,000 shown there in medical cost, the majority
of the health care cost for the elderly goes for nursing home care.Obviously, there is a pressing need to include long-term care in anylegislative proposal and a need to re-evaluate, I believe, the out-of-
pocket expenses caps in the proposals that are curreatly before the
U.S. Congress.

:he graph on my left, that I hope you can see, displays the dollar
and cents aspect of catastrophic illness. It's certainly an integralpart of it. The chart on the left indicates the annual out-of-pocket
medical expenses for a Medicare beneficiary. We can see that the
Medicare beneficiary, who has medigap insurance, has medical ex-
penses of $21,096 for just 1 year of nursing home care.



Dollars

CHART 2

ANNUAL OUT-OF-POCKET MEDICAL. EXPENSES
FOR THREE MEDICARE BENEFICIARIES

(1987)

rt
N1,1r

pm gm

Medicare Beneliciory: Medicare Beneficiary:
Two Hospliolizotions/ Two Hosplializotions/
Medigop No Medigop

Medicare Beneficiary.
No Hospitolizoilons/
Medigop/Nursing Home
Resident

Source: Based on Congressional Budget Office preliminary estimates.
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Under the Reagan administration's proposal, this Medicare bene-ficiary that I am referring to over here, who has a medigap policy,is still paying $21,096 on nursing home care in 1 year.
In other words the administration's proposal does nothing to easethe financial burden of this truly catastrophic case, it doesn't evenapproach it. If the Medicare beneficiary we have been talking

about here could not afford this amount, then, under the presentsystem that we have, he or she would be forced to spend down ev-erything they have including their home, just like Dr. Bridgers tes-titled here to. They would have to spend their life savings, if any,before becoming eligible for Medicaid assistance for nursing homecare. They would have to be almost penniless.
I don't believe that we should allow catastrophic illness to penal-ize the elderly for a lifetime of hard work and saving in this coun-try. I don't believe that we should take away the financial and the

psychological independence of any couple or any family when onemember becomes seriously ill. We should never allow a catastroph-ic illness to dictate poverty to any American.
I wanted to point these charts out for you because they graphi-

cally show some things that are hard to articulate otherwise.
Our second panel will help "us turn away here from the manycompelling statistics that I just mentioned and focus in on thehuman aspect of the catastrophic health care cost issue. We willlearn about the hardships that our friends and our neighbors and

our families have tried to overcome. It's very likely that everyonein this room today, either has a personal experience with or knowssomeone who has had similar difficulties. In preparation for thisfield hearing today, we came across a number of very distressing
stories which rather graphically illustrated the many problems sur-rounding the issue that we have been trying to talk about.

They range from a proud Southern woman nearing her 70th
birthday, wh' while caring for her 92-year-old mother has watchedher mother's life savings of over $150,000 be spent and exhausted
on health care, to an 81-year-old man who called my Birmingham
office yesterday who has been forced to sell his home and spendmuch of his family's life savings to pay for the care of his wife, af-flicted with Alzheimer's disease.

Of "course because of their caregiving responsibilities and theirown personal physical problems, these people, I believe, are heroes.And there are other victims out there, many that could not be herewith us today. We're fortunate, however, to have some witnesses
who have found time, sr,' t'-'11^ have taken time from their sched-ule, to share their personal catastrophic health care stories with ustoday.

We have Mr. and Mrs. Jim Turner. I want to welcome you tothis Senate hearing. Any written testimony that you have or willhave regarding your concerns and thoughts will be made a part ofthe record. The record, as I said earlier, will be left open until
April 30.

If you wouldeither one of you that wants to start, I won't
chooserelate to me for the benefit of the people here, your con-cerns.

Mr. TURNER. Senator, we thank you very much for allowing us toattend this panel. If I may, I would like to speak for my wife who
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has been awake all night at the hospital attending her father who
was admitted on an emergency basis yesterday.

Senator SHELBY. You go right ahead.

STATEMENT OF MR. AND MRS. JIM TURNER,
PLEASANT GROVE, AL

Mr. TURNER. I'm Jim Turner, my wife is Jerry and we're very
glad to be able to present this to you this morning. This is very,
very important to us.

My mother-in-law is Sadie Gray, is 73 years of age. She is
presently in a nursing home and she is afflicted with Alzheimer's
disease. My father-in-law is 78-years old, he is an invalid, he re-
quires care at home. My wife has five brothers and three sisters.
She is the one that is responsible for handling the entire problem
that we're now facint At this time there are family problems,
which I will not go into, but these things do have a tendency to
cause the family to pull apart simply because none of us can agree
on what we think should be done, especially, from a financial
standpoint.

My father-in-law and my mother-in-law had, approximately,
$14,000 in their savings account. And I would like for you to keep
in mind their age at this time, they're both well above 70 and
$14,000 is nothing, but that's all they had, that was their entire
savings and this is gone and was gone in no time at all. Once we
finally had my mother-in-law approved by Medicaid to be paid at
the nursing home, the entire resources had been spent down to less
than $800.

We understand right now, that even though she was approved in
October, that medically, that none of the funds have been paid. I
would like to say, that the nursing home that we have her in has
been very, very helpful to us. Although they have not received any
of their money, they are not sending us any bills and that's a great
help from that standpoint.

We have other things that we have to pay for such as laundry
services, a few prescription drugs that are not covered, every day
personal items thatthey're just not covered at all. My mother-in-
law's Social Security check is only $251 and most of that goes
toward the nursing home anyway. So you can see there, there is
nothing left.

My father-in-law receives, approximately, $500 a month from his
Social Security. He does live at home, the home is paid for. Howev-
er, we have power bills, phone bills, gas bills, we have groceries, we
have to pay an individual to come in and stay with him on a daily
basis. Now, he does not require around-the-clock service, but he
does require someone to come in and help him everyday, as far as
his meals and so forth go.

We have considered putting Mr. Gray in a nursing home also,
but what we failed to mention in our letter, Senator, is this, we've
just found out that if we put Mr. Gray in a nursing home that Mrs.
Gray would be removed from Medicaid. And we just found this out
and this was told to us by the folks in Montgomery. We had such a
hard time having her approved in the first place, that we're very
relty_tant now to enroll Mr. Gray for fear of taking her off. We
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have also been told that if we have to sell the home that that re-source or those resources will have to go strictly for medical careuntil it's spent down, there again, to $1,500. And then we have tore-apply to have Mrs. Gray put back on Medicaid.Senator SHELBY We appreciate your coming here today and sharing
your personal experience which could happen to any of us and allof us. You found out firsthand that Medicare doesn't cover verymany things, have you not?

Mr. TURNER. That's correct.
Senator SHELBY. And you have also found out that there is noblanket out there, safety blanket, in between Medicare, what theypay, what your hospital insurance will pay, and then trying to getdown to Medicaid itself. In other words, if you qualify for Medicaid

you have just about got to be down to zero, have you not?
Mr. TURNER. Yes, &r.
Senator SHELBY. So you're in a catch-22 situation there with bothof the people, are you not?
Mr. TURNER. Yes, we are.
Senator SHELBY. Am I right in saying, that the medical expensesfor both your father and mother cost over $45,000 to date?Mr. TURNER. Yes, sir.
Senator SHELBY. And there is no limit in sight, is it?Mr. TURNER. No, sir, there is not.
Senator SHELBY. None in sight?
Mr. TURNER. No, sir.
Senator SHELBY. In addition to the care that you give your fatherin his home, what other care is he receiving? Is he receiving carefrom outside sources?
Mrs. TURNER. He has a housekeeper that stays with him duringthe week. I was hoping to find some type of nursing facility just tocheck on him.
Senator SHELBY. Community based care?
Mrs. TURNER. Right.
Senator SHELBY. Home care or something?
Mrs. TURNER. Just check his blood pressure.
Senator SHELBY. How old is he now?
Mrs. TURNER. He will be 78 next month.
Senator SHELBY. 78-years old. And up until rather recently, what-ever recently means, were both your mother and father in fairlygood health?
Mr. TURNER. Yes, sir, they were fine.
Senator SHELBY. Worked all their lives?
Mrs. TURNER. Yes, sir. Raised 9 children.
Senator SHELBY. Nine children?
Mr. TURNER. Yes.
Senator SHELBY. Financially, would it be more advantageous foryou to keep your father in his home rather than a nursing home?Mrs. TURNER. I can't answer that.
Senator SHELBY. Is that a hard question?
Mrs. TURNER. Financially, it would be better for him to stay athome, but for his care and for his protection, he needs to be in anursing home.
Senator SHELBY. He has reached that point where he needs long-term care?
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Mrs. TURNER. Yes. But he is a very brave person, he does not
wanthe wants to help in any way he can.

Senator SHELBY. But you get to the point that you can only do so
much for yourself?

Mrs. TURNER. That's right.
Senator SHELBY. I'm going toI have just had a note given to me

by the lady who works with me on this. I wanted to inform you,
that we're going to have our field office look into your father's and
mother's eligibility for nursing home care. I don't know if there
will be anything there, but we will try to continue to help.

Mrs. TURNER. Thank you.
Senator SHELBY. The legislation we're talking about, until it's

comprehensive in nature, won't do a lot for you. That's why we're
holding this hearing.

We appreciate you appearing here with us today and giving us
your testimony.

Mrs. TURNER. Thank you for asking.
[The prepared statement of Mrs. Turner follows:]
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Testimony

of

Mrs. Geraldine T rner

My name is Mrs. Geraldine Turner and I am glad to be

able to present this testimony on behalf of my mother and

father. My mother, who is 73 years old, is presently jn

a nursing home afflicted with Alzheimer's dis-ase. My

father who is 78 years old, is an invalid who requires in-

home care which I and a housekeeper provide for him.

Even though I have 5 brothers and sisters, I handle

all the responsibilities of caring for my parents through

a power of attorney. I must also note that this has placed

a burden on my family relationship. At this time, two of

my brothers will not speak to me and have accuse, -e of

doing away with the family savings. At this time we have

spent the $14,000 that my family had saved, and when my

father goes into the nursing home we will have to sell the

family home with contents and car to the state. These

resnarces together should bz valued at approximately $40,000.

Up to this time I feel that we have spent an excess of

$40,000 on the medical needs of my parents.

Mother's care in the nursing home is provided for by

medicaid with her social security check going toward paying

for resources at the nursing home. Resources are laundrying

and nt:er Da:AC services that are provided by the nursing

home. Sadie's social security check is $251 per month.

Father's care is provided for by myself and a housekeeper

who I pay $70 to $80 a week to care for him from his social

security check. Ed is in very good mental condition, but

he is an invalid.
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I really hate to have to put him in a nursing home, but I

don't have the resources to care for him and this may be

the only way I can continue to provide for him. I feel

that if he is placed in a nursing home with his mental

condition, he will probably be much worse off being in this

environment and it will pull him down considerably.

I feel that there should be more home health care

available to the public. I don't have available to me a

nurse that will visit maybe twice a month, just to provide

some type of health check-up to my father. Before we placed

mother in the nursing home, home health care made one visit

and did not return.

I feel that there should be some way for some agency to

exist to inform people what to do when this problem is

encountered. If it wasn't for the doctors, I would have

not known what to do or how to go about trying to get Sadie

in the nursing home. As it is now, there are no funds to pay

for clothes, dental work, or eye check-ups. I have bills

that I must pay out of my pockets. There should be some type

of supplemental income to pay for these needs. At the present

time, I feel that there is no one to take up for the elderly

people. They are older and have a lot of pride in themselves,

and they will not ask for assistance, often doing without a

lot cf basic needs. My father, Ed Gray receives $545 per month

from social security.
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Senator SHELBY. Mrs. Fuller, we also appreciate you coming to
the hearing today and accepting our invitation to testify. I know
that you have faced a very difficult crisis in your life over the past
few months.

It's my understanding, and you correct the record here, that on
January 19 of this year your 48-ye old husband suffered a mas-
sive heart attack which has left him ta,verely incapacitated.

Mrs. FULLER. Yes, sir.
Senator SHELBY. In the months since then, you have found out

firsthand about the devastation of catastrophic illness, what it will
do for you, what it will do to destroy what little money that fami-
lies accumulate.

Mrs. Fuuzat. Yes, sir.
Senator SHELBY I would like to hear from you for the record.

Any written testimony that you might have will be made a part of
the field hearing record for the U.S. &nate in it's entirety. And
you just testify here to what you want us to hear.

STATEMENT OF KATHY FULLER, BIRMINGHAM, AL

Mrs. FULLER. OK. My name is Kathy Fuller. I'm married with two
children, a girl, 16, who is physically handicapped and mentally
retarded, and a boy who is 11.

On January 19, 1987, my husband Tommy, who is 48, suffered a
massive heart attack resulting in severe brain damage because of
the lack of oxygen to his brain.

Tommy was in the hospital for a total of 36 days ing around
$50,000. My family and I were told that his prognosis of him ever
coming out of this were very poor. After my husband had been in
the hospital a few weeks, we were told by the hospital that we
would have to find a nursing home for him because I would not be
able to take care of him in my home.

The hospital social worker gave us a list of five nursing homes.
We found one that we liked, but we're told that they were full. We
found another one, but again, they were full. But the same compa-
ny that owned them also owned another one who had a vacancy.
We visited the nursing home and was told that they could take
care of my husband.

At that time, we went back to the hospital social worker and
were told that this was a good nursing home. And after she made a
phone call to the nursing home we were told that they could,
indeed, take care of my husband.

We transferred him on February 11, 1987, carrying the doctor's
orders with us. Ana after we had bftn there a few hours, we were
told by the nursing home administrator that they would not be
able to take care of him because they were not informed by the
hospital that he had an airway and they did not have the staff to
take care of him. On the advice of his cardiologist he stayed over-
night fearing that the trip back to the hospital would be to trau-
matic on him.

Tommy was transferred the next day back to the hospital.
During the next few days we, again with the help of the hospital
social worker, started looking for another nursing home. We were
told by the social worker that all of the nursing homes in the Bir-
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mingham area were either full or would not take Tommy because
of his age and because he was a total care patient, with the excep-
tion of one. We were told that this was the only nursing home that
would take my husband. When we toured the nursing home, we
found that it was no better or no worse than the others tbit we
had looked at. But we were told because Tommy was a tot . care
patient, our cost per month would be $7,000. My husband does have
some insurance that would cover a skilled nursing facility. He also
has a ceiling amount on his insurance of $500,000 in his lifetime.
We have been told by his doctor, with Tommy's condition, he could
stay this way for a week, 5 years, or even 10 years. Being that he
would need additional hospital care in the future and that $7,000 a
month for a nursing home, it would not take long for his insurance
to be depleted. We felt that this charge was unreasonable since all
the other nursing homes we had looked at were going to charge us
$1,500 to $2,000 a month. We did not want the insurance company
to be charged unfairly and we did not want to use up all of his in-
surance.

Since then, with the help of ombudsman, my husband has been
placed in a good nursing home getting excellent care at a reasona-
ble price. This was my first experience with a nursing home. Nei-
ther I nor any other of my family or his family had any knowledge
of nursing homes. It was bad enough on our family emotionally to
have to suffer through the days of not knowing whether Tommy
was going to live or die, but to have us or any other family go
through what we went through just to see that our loved one got
the best, reasonable and affordable care, was unjustified.

I thank you for the opportunity to tell mine and my family's
story. I know there are a lot of people and families who have suf-
fered in the same situation as ours. With the help of our Govern-
ment, maybe, in the future, we can save another family from going
through what we did in this very emotional time of our lives.
Thank you very much.

Senator SHELBY. Mrs. Fuller, we appreciate that. I also want to
acknowledge Mrs. Judy Cooley, who is seated there with you, Mrs.
Fuller's sister-in-law, for coming and sharing with us. You have
been involved in this too, as a part of the family.

Mrs. Fuller, you know that my field office staff is looking into
your Social Security disability. We are certainly going to try to
help you in that regard. And we have had pretty good luck in the
past, we hope it goes this way, it sounds like a case of error.

Mrs. FULLER. Yes, sir.
Senator SHELBY. I have got several questions just for the record.

Assuming that your husband had not been covered by his compa-
ny's health plan, would you have been able to afford the amount
and the quality of care that Mr. Fuller is now receiving?

Mrs. FULLER. No way. Not with two children.
Senator SHELBY. So you're fortunate to a point
Mrs. FULLER. I am fortunate to the point that he does have some

insurance.
Senator SHELBY. But to the best of your knowledge, if the insur-

ance company does not extend your husband's stay at the nursing
home facility, what other options are open or available to you?

58



55

Mrs. FULLER. There is really nothing because Tommy is tooyoung for Medicare.
Senator SHELBY. He doesn'the is not covered at all by Medi-care?
Mrs. FULLER. No.
Senator SHELBY. I want to make that point. If your husband is

covered by Social Security disability you're not covered by Medi-care; is that right?
Mrs. FULLER Right.
Senator SHELBY. And your husband, at 48 years of age, has suf-

fered a massive crippling heart attack, he hasn't received Medicare
or Medicaid assistance?

Mrs. Arum. No.
Senator SHELBY. So there is a gap in the coveragethat's what

we're trying to point outregarding any possible catastrophic
health coverage for the futta-,..

Mrs. FULLER. Right.
Senator SHELBY. Mrs. Fuller, to the best of your knowledge, isthe only option that you would have open would be to return

return home to your family and bring him home if the insurancedidn't work?
Mrs. FULLER. Senator Shelby, I don't even know whether thatcould be done. He needs around-the-clock 24-hour care, 7 days aweek. I do have two children, I do work, I do have to support them.
Senator SHELBY. Yes.
Mrs. FULLER. I would have to hire around-the-clock nurses.
Senator SHELBY. That would be prohibited, wouldn't it?
Mrs. FULLER. Yes. He is also on tube feeding, he needs skilled

care. He has to be turned, he is on oxygen, and he has to be pickedup and carried, moved.
Senator SHELBY. That would be hard for you to do then?
Mrs. FULLER. There would be no way that I could do it. We have

thought about it, the thought did cross my mind. Nursing homes
are not one of my better subjects, I know how he feels about nurs-ing homes.

Senator SHELBY. But there comes a point thr'ugh in time that we
have to do what we have to do?

Mrs. FULLER. Right. I knew there .ould be no way that we couldtake him home.
Senator SHELBY. Well, we appreciate your coming here and par-ticipating, as I have said earlier in this field hearing for the U.S.

Senate, and we will continue to work for you.
My reason to hold these hearings, as I said earlier, is to have

input from the people of Alabama into the legislative process toshow that there is a gap or a need for a comprehensive bill. And
your testimony will certainly bear fruit in that direction. Thank
you for appeasing. We appreciate you too, Mrs. Cooley.

We have our next panel and we want you all to come up to the
table, I'il call you one by one. This is a distinguished panel of
people that are dealing with this issue all the time. I appreciateyou all coming here.

Dr. George Layton, vice presidentchairman of the State Legis-
lative Committee, Alabama Association of Retired People.
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Dr. Raymond Walter, National Association of Retired F'xleral
Employees, he is the president.

Mrs. Amelia Heath, executive director, FOCUS on Senior Citi-
Zen&

Mrs. Barbara Bonfield, executive director of the Jefferson County
Office of Senior Citizens.

If you people would come to the witness table, we have some
people there that will help you get set up. I want all of you to give
your oral statement. Any written testimony that you might have
today or will have between now and April 30, will be put in the
record in it's entirety and made part of this hearing. I welcome you
here because all of you on +his panel have had extensive experi-
ence. And I would guess, fairly, similar experience in advocating
for the needs of the elderly in Alabama.

I have a series of questions that I would like to ask all of you. I
hope you feel free here today to answer any or all of these ques-
tions.

What are the priorities of the members of your various organiza-
tions?

We would likewe would all love to reduce the catastrophic
$2,000 cap proposed by the administration. Extend the long-term
coverage and include prescription drugs. What can we really do?

What do you think a catastrophic health plan must include
before it can really be called a catastrophic health insurance and
so forth?

Those are sr-ne of the questions I hope you will address as you
get into your testimony.

Who wants to go first? Dr. Layton?

STATEMENT OF DR. GEORGE L. LAYTON, VICE CHAIRMAN, ALA-
BAMA STATE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE, AMERICAN ASSOCIA-
TION OF RETIRED PERSONS

Dr. LAYTON. Thank you, Senator Shelby. First of all, I would like
to express our appreciation to you for arranging to have these
hearings in Alabama and welcome you back to Alabama and it's
good to see you today.

Senator SHELBY. Thank you.
Dr. LAYTON. At the beginning, Senator Heflin mentioned about

Winterboro?
Senator SHELBY. Yes, sir. Over in Talladeganear Talladega.
Dr. LAYTON. Yes, sir. That's almost home. I was principal of a

high school there for a number of v'ars and my youngest daughter
was born there.

Senator SHELBY. That's a fine community. You know, Senator
Heflin is going today, but anyone who has run for the U.S. Senate
has been in just about every community four or five times in Ala-
bama and the speaker here is no exception.

Dr. LAYTON. Right. Anyway, I started to go with him.
Senator SHELBY. I'm glad you didn't because we want you to tes-

tify first. We'll try to get a car for you to catch up with him.
Dr. LAYTON. Thank you, sir. Of course, my remarks today will

behave been prepared and a more comprehensive statement will
be filed with our office.
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Senator SHELBY. That will be made part of the record, in it's en-
tirety, as I have already said.

Dr. LArroN. Then my remarks here will be very brief. I will
focus my remarks this morning on four areas of concern.

One, the major source of catastrophic cost for older Americans;
two, acute care cost; three, the association's response to the Admin-
istration's catastrophic proposal; and four, the association's own
recommendations.

The most critical need for a catastrophic protection for older
Americans is help with the cost of long-term care. I believe that iswhat you were asking awhile ago.

Nursing home stay accounts for 80 percent. Your chart shows a
little more than that, but about 80 percent of expense incurred by
older Americans, which seems vcfry high for out-of-pocket medical
costa.

For most older Americans, acute care illness is less likely than
long-term illness to result in the catastrophic burden. For Medicare
coverage of acute care is by no means complete. Beneficiaries must
pay deductibles and co-insurance for Medicare coverage services.And must bear the full weight of the cost of noncovered medical
services and goods. About 70 percent enrolled have purchased pri-
vate supplemental insurance protection for themselves for the gaps
in Medicare coverage. But there is a great liability in coverage of-
fered by such plans as we know. They seldom provide protection
against the cost of prescription drugs or balance billing by doctors,
dental, eye care, and nursing home care. Further, their cost in pre-
miums may vary from high to low and all kinds of costs. It iE reas-
su ing to believe that the Medicaid Program will protect elderly
people from catastrophic acute costs, but this is not the case. In
1986, only 27 percent of the elderly people with family income
under $5,000 were covered by Medicaid.

Who among the elderly are the most vulnerable to acute care
catastrophic cost? The answer must be in the 21 percent of Medi-
care beneficiaries whose insurance protection is not supplementedby medigap or Medicaid. These individuals tend to be very old and
poor. Another group of particular concern is the 44 percent of poor
Americans who feel compelled to buy medigap insurance, but who
surely most forego day-to-day essentials in order to do so.

Certainly, Secretary Bowen's catastrophic proposal represents an
important first step in the development of the vital range to pro-
tect beneficiaries from acute catastrophic cost. With this proposal,
now the administration's proposal is a minimal one.

This $2,000 cap of co-insurance deductibles would hardly protect
an elderly person on limited means from financial catastrophes.

Further, the payoff is not the protection for extended nursing
home care, prescription drugs, balance billing by doctors and vision
and hearing. The administration's proposal may strengthen Medic-aid care, but is misleading as a catastrophic protection plan.

The Association advocates the development of a benefit improve-
ment that incorporates the catastrophic cap, but it is more compre-
hensive than the administration's plan. Our proposal better bal-
ances the need for acute care protection with a need for a long-
term care protection, and it also includes critical protection for
long-term beneficiary.



58

The American Association's packet consists of three parts. Our
acute care proposal includes, hospital deductible per year; the
elimination of hospital co-insurance on a lifetime limit; 61 day and
90 day; a $1,000 cap on Medicare part B costs sharing; a prescrip-
tion drug benefit; Medicaid improvements, which we view as in-
separable from the gap.

For the transitional period, two, we recommend improvement in
the skilled nursing facility benefit and the home benefit as well.
And a new rested benefit, people like to have a little time off.
Three, a long-term care component would include protection
against impoverishment of the spouse, the husband and wife. And
No. 2, extension of home and community base options, this would
be :ptions for the States. We recommend that if you mix over fi-
nancial situations to support these proposals, which would improve
the Medicaid and Medicare, to include catastrophic illness, one,
wer'd be to increase the tobacco tax on the Federal level. And then
the extension of the health insurance coverage for Federal and
State employees, which are not covered now as I understand it.
And then an increase in part B which is the doctor part of the
Medicare.

We appreciate this opportunity to present these proposals. And
we're happy that you are working toward a solutis,n to this social
problem.

Senator SHELBY. Doctor, we appreciate your testimony here
today.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Layton follows:]
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Thank you, Senator Shelby. On behalf of the :71-,,e than 24 milll-n

members of the American Association of Retired Perwns, 1 wish tl

thank you for this opportunity to state the Association's views

on the problem of catastrophic illness.

Before I begin, however, I would like to say that the Association

is gratified by the current congressional and public interest in

the problem of high cost illness and its impact on the citizens

of this country. We believe that the public debate on

catastrophic illness will lead to a more complete and more

accurate understanding of the problem; the debate itself is, in

our view, a critical step in the development of workable,

appropriate solutions to a complex but hardly intractable social

problem.

Let me say, at the outset, that the Association commends Senator

Shelby and the members of this committee for your work towards

the development of catastrophic health protection for the

American public.

I will focus my remarks this morning on four areas: the major

source of catastrophic costs for older Americans; the nature of

the acute care catastrophic experience among older Americans;

proposals by the Administration and Congress to address elemerts

of the catastrophic problem; and finally, recommendations by
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the Association, building in part upon the work of Secretary

Bowen, and proposals emerging from the Senate and the House.

THE MAJOR SOURCE OF CATASTROPHIC COSTS FOR OLDER AMERICANS

Let us be clear this morning about the source of catastrophic

costs for this country's senior citizens. Indisputably, the most

critical need for catastrophic protection for older Americans is

for help with the costs of long-term, chronic illness. As Chart

1 indicates, nursing home stays account for over 80% of the

expenses incurred by older people who experience very high

out-of-pocket costs for health are (over 52,000 per year).

The need for long-term care leads almost inevitably to an

unmanageable financial burden because the costs of care--be it in

an institution or in the home--are often enormous. Chart 2 shows

the amount that an individual would pay for a 12-month stay in a

nursing home and for modest medical expenses during that year.

At more than $20,000 each year, few families could survive such

expenses without severe financial hardship. Medicare and private

insurance combined pay only a miniscule proportion of nursing

home costs (less than 3% in 1985). More than half of nursing

home costs are paid out of the pockets of residents or their

families. Most of the remaining costs are paid under Medicaid, a

means-tested welfare program. To qualify for Medicaid, one must

-2-
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either be poor or reduced to poverty in the process of trying to

pay for care.

Few people can afford the expense of an extended nursing home

stay, so many eventually end up on Medicaid, but only after

financial catastrophe has occurred. Fully one-half of Medicaid

dollars for nursing home care is spent on behalf of persons who

enter nursing homes as private paying residents. The process of

"spending-down" one's income and depleting one's assets to

qualify for Medicaid can occur very quickly. A 1985 study

conducted for the House Aging Committee found that approximately

2/3 of single older persons and 1/3 of older couples in

Massachusetts were impoverished after only 13 weeks in a nursing

home.

As such statistics indicate, the impoverishment of a spouse in

the community in order to finance the care of an institutiona-

lized mate is one of the most serious problems facing older

couples today. To be eligible for Medicaid, couples must often

spend-dowr their combined income and assets, leaving one spouse-

usually the wife--destitute. Many of the same women who are

caught in the spend-down problem have spent years taking care of

ill and disabled husbands at home.

Personal care services of indefinite duration in the home are not

covered at all by Medicare, and the amount and type of home care
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services, and (2) expe.iditures for non-covered medical services

and goods. It is important to distinguish between these two

categories of liability since most of the catastrophic "cap"

plans that have been proposed permit the former (coinsurance and

deductible amounts) to be counted toward the cap but exclude the

latter (expenditures for non-covered services and goods). And

the second category of liability is by no means insignificant;

we estimate that, on average, for e iry $1.00 beneficiaries incur

in coinsurance and deductibles, they spend an additional $.50 to

$1.00 for non-covered services and goods.

1. Deductible and Coinsurance Liability

Under Medicare Part A, beneficiaries are required to pay a

hospital deductible in each benefit period approximately equal to

the cost of one day of hospital care ($520 in 1987). They are

a'so responsible for coinsurance for days 61 through 90 equal to

one-fourth of the hospital deductible. For each lifetime reserve

day (days 91 through 150), beneficiaries are required to pay an

amount equal to one-half the Part A deductible, or $260 per day

in 1987. While there is no deductible for skilled nursing

facility (SNF) services, Medicare beneficiaries this year will

pay $65 per day to satisfy coinsurance requirements for days 21

through 100 in a SNF.

Approximately 23% of Medicare enrollees are admitted to a
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provided under Medicaid is extremely limited in most states.

Even those who can afford to pay For home health and other

in-home services face often insurmountable barriers in locating

competent, trained personnel. As a result of both limited access

to home care and the very high expense of nursing home care, many

older persons live in fear of becoming a burden on their

families, or being forced to enter a nursing home and spend their

lifetime savings in order to pay for care.

THE ACUTE CARE CATASTROPHIC EXPERIENCE

AMONG OLDER AMERICANS

For older Americans who have Medicare coverage, an acute cake

illness is less likely to result in a catastrophic burden than a

long-term illness. But Medicare's coverage of acute care is by

no means without significant gaps, gaps which if not supplemented

by other forms of insurance, leave individuals vulnerable to

devastating medical costs. Chart 2 shows that a Medicare

beneficiary with two hospital stays would, on average, incur

out-of-pocket expenses that would ti......1 nearly $3000 without

private supplemental insurance and would even result :n expenses

over $1600 with an average insurance policy.

Medicare beneficiaries' liability for acute care medical costs

consists of two components: (1, Medicare cost-sharing

requirements (i.e., deductibles and coinsurance) for covered
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hospital at least once in a given year. But only about .5% of

Medicare enrollees (158,000 in 1984) use more than 60 hospital

days in a year, thereby triggering hospital coinsurance

requirements.

In 1985, Medicare beneficiaries incurred $3.2 billion in Medicare

hospital deductible and coinsurance liability. This amount

represented an increase in such aggregate liability of more than

100% between 1980 and 1985. The largest portion of total Part A

cost-sharing liability is attributable to the Part A hospital

deductib e.

Beneficiaries also share heavily in the cost of Medicare Part B

-,ervices. Each beneficiary must meet a $75 annual Part B

deductible, and is also responsible for 20% of the amount that

I. dicare deems "reasonable" for a particular Part B service. (In

addition, beneficiaries whose doctors do not accept assignment

are fully responsible for the amount their do.::tor charges

above the Medicare-approved rate.)

Cost-sharing requirements under Medicare Part B represent a far

greater financial burden on Medicare beneficiaries than do

cost-sharing requirements under Part A. In 1986, Medicare

beneficiaries incurred $5.7 billion dollars in Part B coinsurance

liability and $1.7 billion dollars in Part B deductible

liability. The most striking rate of increase in physician-
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related liability has occurred in coinsurance liability which in

the aggregate has risen by 170% since 1980. Moreover, increases

in Part B coinsurance expenditures have far outpaced increases

in Social Security benefits.

Whereas only about one - forth of Medicare beneficiaries will

incur liability from the use of hospital services in a given

year, 80% will incur liability from the use of physician services

during the same period. Further only .5% of benef:ciaries will

trigger hospital coinsurance costs, but fully 60% of

beneficiaries will incur coinsurance liability for physician

services.

2. Medical Services Not Covered by Medicare

In addition to Medicare's cost-sharing requirements

for covered services, beneficia also face significant

out-of-pocket costs for those acute care medical services and

goods which Medicare does not cove,. :se which, in the case of

certain services, are subject to Medicare's durational limits.

These acute care services include:

o Balance billing by physicians on non-assigned claims

o Dental services/products
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o Optical ,ervices/products

o Hearing care services/products

o Routine physician examinations, influenza shots, Pap

smears.

Out-of-pocket expenditures for these non-covered acute care

services can be stagering: almost 83 billion for balance

billing ':.; physicians; more than $2.3 billion for dental care;

and more than $1.4 billion for eye care.

3. Prescriotion Drugs

In addition, Medicare does not cover outpatient prescription

drugs. Out-of-pocket expenditures for outpatient prescription

drugs were more than :7 :..!lion in 1986.

Older persons consume a disproportionately Large percentage of

prescription drug products. Although those 65 and older

constitute about 12% of the U.S. population, they consume about

30% of the nation's prescription drugs.

Prices of prescription drugs began to skyrocket in 1981 and have

far outpaced other items in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) every

year since. For the period January 1981 - June 1985,
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prescription prices rose 56%, compared to 23% for the overall

CPI. In 1986, prescription prices were again the highest of all

medical care components, increasing at a rate of 8.6% per year,

compares to the overall rise in the CPI of 1.91.

HARP surveyed its members in 1985 and again in 1986 concerning

prescription drugs.

In both 1985 and 1986, about 62% of those over 65 said they were

taking prescription drugs on a regular basis. Of those taking

drugs regularly, about 45% said that they received some

assistance paying for those drugs from insurance or other health

coveri..,:c. This finding was also unchanged from 1985 to 1986.

A significant change occurred, however, in the percentage of

people age 65+ paying more for prescription drugs who get no

assistance. The number of people who paid more than $41 a month,

or over $492 a year, increased by 42 per cent in one year (i.e.

10 percentage points).

4. Home Health Care

Because patients are now discharged earlier from hospitals, home

health care is an important component in continuing needed care.

By most measires, home health use has grown greatly. Rut, the
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rate of increase in home health ependitures has moderated

sharply in the past few years and has not matched previous and

expected rates of growth. This fact :. puzzling in light of

reductions in the average length of hospital stay, the aging of

our population, and previous growth rates.

One possible explanation for declining growth rates in home

health outlays is that the Health Care Financing Administration

(HCFA) is reducing access to this benefit by means of claim

denials and the application of vague eligibility criteria. There

is some evidence that coverage decisions are arbitrary and

capricious and the denial rate certainly varies greatly by

geographic area.

HCFA has failed to sponsor careful studies of the impact of

prospective payment for hospital care on the need for and use of

post-acute care services. Consequently, it is difficult to

assess the extent to which the home health services now being

provided satisfy demand.

It is clear, however, that Medicare beneficiaries face serious

problems in trying to take advantage of this benefit. First,

home health care providers are not effer ively regulated and

quality control and consumer protections are weak or

non-existent. The absence of outcome-oriented quality control

measures is a 5ignificant weakness in the government's oversight
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most offer coverage of the former. Finally, the plans may impose

their own deductible of up to $200 per ;ear for Part B coverage.

In spite of the Baucus amendment, there is great variability in

the depth and scope of coverage provided by Medigap plans. Most

Medigap plans provide little or no coverage of prescription

drugs, balance billing by physicians, dental services, and

extended nursing home care. Moreover, the Baucus amendment does

not apply to employment and labor organization-related group

insurance, conversions from group plans to individual policies,

and policies in effect before July 1, 1982. Finally, some plans

may b.t very costly relative to the benefit returned to the

insured.

It should be noted that supplemental coverage tnrough a Medigap

plan is positively correlated with income and education. Yet

almost half of elderly people with less than $5000 pcc year in

family income purchase Medigap plans (see chart 3). Even if the

coverage selected is modest, the premium payments for such plans

must constitute a terrible drain on already meager resources.

Let me at this point clarify the Assc,ciation's position on the

ability of the private insurance industry to protect older

Americans from the inadequacies of Medicare's coverage. The

Association offers its members a Medicare supplemental insurance

plan that fills many of the existing gaps in Medicare coverage.
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We believe, however, that filling such gaps through the Medicare

program is inherently the most efficient way to insure against

acute care catastrophic costs. Accordingly, we welcome any

meaningful improvements in the Medicare program that will reduce

the need for supplemental insurance plans or make them

unnecessary.

6. Medicaid's Role in Protecting Beneficiaries Against Acute

Care Catastrophic Costs

It is reassuring to relieve that the Medicaid program serves to

protect elderly beneficiaries from potentially catastrophic acute

care out-of-pocket expenditures. But this is not necessarily the

case. The Congressional Budget Office (CBO) reports that in 1986

only 278 of elderly people with family incomes below 85000 were

covered by Medicaid (see chart 3). How can this be? We have

only to look to the variability in Medicaid's eligibility

requirements across states for an answer. There exists no

national mandatory income standard for Medicaid eligibility, no

mandated coverage of the "medically needy", and no uniformity in

eligibility for a Medicaid "buy-in" of Medicare Part B coverage.

7. The Vulnerable E.derly

Who among the elderly are most vulnerable to acute care

catastrophic costs? Surely the answer must include those who are
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not able to afford Medigap coverage, but who also do not qualify

for Medicaid coverage. Such individuals tend to be frail,

low-income, and uniquely vulnerable to the cumulative financial

burden resulting from Medicare coinsurance and deductibles and

from the costs of all ion- covered services and goods. For nearly

21% of the elderly, Medicare represents the only source of

protection (see chart 4).

A second group worthy of particular concern includes the

poor/near poor who feel compelled to buy Medigap insurance but

who can ill afford it. One can only surmize that such

individuals must forego certain day-to-day essentials in order to

purchase such protection (see chart 3).

THE ADMINISTRATION PROPOSAL

Lie Association is encouraged by the demonstrated interest of the

Administration and the Congcsss in finding solutions to the

problem of high cost illness for older Americans, although we are

disappointed over the almost exclusive preoccupation with costs

arising from acute care illness. The Administration proposal

based on earlier recommendations of Secretary Bowen addresses

only acute care costs, providing beneficiaries with unlimited

hospital coverage subject to two deductibles each year and

"capping" annual out-of-pocket expenditures For Medicare

coinsurance and deductibles at S2000.
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The Association recognizes that, through his recommendations to

strengthen the Medicare program, Secretary Bowen took an

important first step in the development of a viable plan to

protect beneficiaries against acute care catastrophic costs.

Nevertheless, it must also be recognized that the Secretary's

catastrophic proposal -- now the Administration's catastrophic

proposal -- is a minimal one. The $2000 cap on coinsurance and

deductibles would hardly protect an elderly person of limited

or even moderate means from financial catastrophe. Nor is it

likely to persuade Medigap holders to drop their supplemental

plans and self-insure for the first S2000 in coinsurance and

deductibles.

Further, under the Administration plan, no out-of-pocket costs

for the following services and products would count toward the

annual cap: long-term nursing home care, out-patient

prescription drugs, dental services, home health services,

physical examinations, balance billing by "non-assigned"

physicians, and optical supplies and services. The

Administration plan may thus offer some improvement in

Medicare's coverage, but it is misleading to suggest that it

would provide older Americans with protection against

catastrophic health care costs.

Secretary Bowen in developing his catastrophic proposal has given
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a matter of critical social significance visibility and

credibility. He deserves credit for animating discussion and

debate on the full range of catastrophic illness issues.

Catastrophic proposals developed in the Congress advance this

critical exchange of diverse ideas and help us to refine the

elements of a workable, comprehensive plan.

AARP S CATASTROPHIC PACKAGE RECOMMENDATIONS

One of the dilemmas policymakers face in attempting to set a

protective "cap" on catastrophic costs is pinpointing the

appropriate level for such a cap. Get the cap high, and the

benefit can be financed without great difficulty; but as is clear

from chart 5, few are protected under such an arrangement. As

one pushes the cap down, the protective scope of the cap expands

but the cost rises proportionately. Severely restrict the

elements of liability which count toward the cap, and the pian

becomes more affordable; the danger in this arrangement, of

course, is that beneficiaries may wrongly assume that their

total out-of-pocket liability in a given year will not exceed

the cap level. As they gradually come to realize that a full

range of essential medical services and products do not even

count toward the "catastrophic" cap, they are apt to feel

disappointed, if not duped.
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It is important, then, that any plan that lays claim to

providing any level of catastrophic protection must identify and

appropriately address actual sources of vulnerability. The

Association believes that long-term care is the real source of

catastrophic costs for older Americans, including middle-income

older Americans. We also believe that while acute care costs- -

for both coinsurance and deductibles as well as non-covered

services and goods including prescription drugs-- can threaten

the financial security of many older Americans, they are

potentially devastating to low-income elderly.

Given these concerns, the Association advocates the development

of a benefit improvement that incorporates a catastrophic cap but

is more comprehensive than the Administration plan and that, in

our opinion, better balances the need for acute care catastrophic

protections with the need for long-term care catastrophic

protections. It also includes critical protections for

low-income Medicare beneficiaries.

We do not delude ourselves in advancing the following set of

recommendations that we have solved the catastrophic problem for

older Americans. We do believe that in many respects our

proposals expand, refine, and improve upon the efforts of others

who have also grappled with this complex issue. Our proposals

represent an earnest attempt to fulfill the President's pledge to

protect Americans against catastrophic health care costs.
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The benefit structure of the Association's package can be divided

into three pieces:

1. Acute Care

2. Transitional Care

3. Long-term Care

Under the acute care component, we propose the following:

o One hospital deductible per year;

o Elimination of hospital coinsurance;

o Elimination of lifetime limits on hospital care;

o A $1000 cap on Medicare Part B cost-sharing (i.e.,

deductibles and coinsurance);

o A prescription drug benefit with a $200 annual

deductible and a copayment on each filled

:,cescription:

o Improvement in the Medicaid program through the

establishment of a uniform mandatory income

standard for Medicaid eligibility, and expansion of
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coverage through the Medicaid "buy-in" of Medicare

Part B services. We view this element of the

package as inseparable from the cap which, at

$1000, is too high to adequately protect low-income

beneficiaries.

Under the transitional care component, we recommend:

o Elimination of SNF coinsurance;

o Elimination of the three-day prior hospitalization

requirement for SNF eligibility;

o An expanded home health care benefit;

o A respite benefit (carrying a 50% copaymenti to

provide assistance to caregivers.

Our long-term care component would include:

o Protection against spousal impoverishment including both

income and liquid assets;

o Expansion of home and community-based services; and
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o Exploration of the feasibility of capping out-of-pocket

costs associated with long-term care.

FINANCING THE BENEFIT PACKAGE

The Association recognizes that, given a burgeoning federal

deficit, the kind of improved benefit package we are recommending

must be self-financed. Further, results of a recent AARP survey

indicate a willingness among a majority of older people to pay

increased premiums in return or significantly expanded benefits.

Nevertheless, the full burden of the costs of the improved

package we are advocating should not fall exclusively upon the

elderly. To pay for the improvements we have described above, we

propose using an assortment of financing sources, some targeted

on improvements in the Medicare program and others targeted on

Medicaid remedies. These potential revenue sources include:
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Potential Revenue Source Target Estimated Yield

o Doubling of the tobacco tax Medicaid $2.9 billion (1988)

o Extension of HI coverage to

state and local employees

Medicare $1.3 billion(1988)

$5.1 billion over

3 years

e Increase in the Part B Medicare Up to $3.7 billion

Premium not to exceed an

additional $10/month

To. 7.9 billion (1988)

The package we have proposed, would probably not represent a

replacement for a typical Medigap plan. We benuie, however,

that responsible private !n-wrers would respond with a

corresponding offset (i.e. reduction) in Medigap premiums to

match their reduction in risk e;_posure. Thus, the net additional

cost in premiums to the 70% of Medicare beneficiaries carrying

supplemental insurance could be minimal As a comp_ mentary

measure, our recommended Medicaid improvements would serve to

protect those not currently covered by Medigap or Medicaid.

The proposal offered by some members of Congress to finance a

catastrophic plan by taxing the actuarial or imputed value of

that portion of the Medicare benefit that is not paid for by the

employee during working years or through the Part B premiom
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represints a radical departure from the financing mechanisms

which presently support the Medicare program. While we encourage

the exploration of innovative financing approaches to fun

catastrophic protections, we are not convinced that a modest

benefit package justifies the adoption of such a radical change

in existing financing mechanisms. We believe that other

finan:ing options should be exhausted before we consider such an

approach.

CONCLUSION

I would like to concl5de my remarks this morning with two

observations. First, we focus our attention here today on the

plight of older Americans, many or whom struggle daily under the

crushing weight of catastrophic medical costs. Initial action to

address their plight is appropriate and, indeed, long overdue.

But ler us not forget the suffering of some 37 million

Americans under the age of 65 who have neither public nor private

health insurance and the 15 million who do not have adequate.

Surely a nation as richly blessed as ours in material wealth,

wisdom, and compassion can sum'.ton the resolve to correct this

terrible and intolerable social wrong. For our part, we cannot

in good conscience support filling the "gaps" In Medicare's

coverage, while at the same time ignoring inadequacies in health

insurance coverage for working Americans and our nation's

children
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Finally, as we convene this mor-ing, we do so with the

realization that Congress is poised for action on catastrophic

protections for older Americans. Whatever the outcome of this

year's initiative on catastrophic illness, let us be scrupulously

correct in characterizing to the American public what we have

accomplished and, perhaps more importantly, what we have not

accomplished in our efforts to come to grips with one of this

country's most pressing social needs.

-23-



CHART 1
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CHART 3

MEDIGAP COVERAGE FOR THE ELDERLY POPULATION BY FAMILY INCOME, 1986
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Dr. Raymond Walter.

STATEMENT OF DR. RAYMOND L WALTER, PRESIDENT,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RETIRED FEDERAL EMPLOYEES
Dr. WALTER. Senator Shelby, this is a real good thing and Ithank you very much on behalf of NARFE, the National Associa-

tion of Retired Federal Employees. I will give you some specific in-stances of what we think are catastrophic health conditions thatneed some help.
We have here in Alabama, and since, as being president of thisorganization, I represent more than 10,000 people, most of whom

are over 65, and many of them are really in need of financial help
because of the illnesses that they are encountering. I have threedifferent cases that I want to discuss with you. But since arrivinghere, I find the case of Mr. Holcomb here in Birmingham is EA-tremely important and it contains some factors that I think also
need to be considered. I will get this to you later on.

Senator SHELBY. We will keep the record open on that and I
would appreciate that.

Dr. WALTER. The first case I have is one of Mr. Abner McGehee,
who is a dairy fanner south of Montgomery. He and his wife have
no children. He has been ill with Alzheimer's disease for the past10 years. His wife has been taking care of him. He had to stop allfarming and his farm is running down. So they have already lost aconsiderable amount of their estate. In the past 10 years, dairyfarming, in that particular section of the State, has disappeared be-cause of the cost of running it. So they can't even sell their farm.There is no one to buy it.

Mrs. McGehee is in good health, but is aging and is slowly show-ing the effects of the strain of caring for her husband. To help withthe work, they hire a nurse for 4 hours a day, 7 days a week, at acost of a $112 per week. Mr. McGehee must be fed through his noseand this costs $6 per hour. This is being done by a private nursethree times a day, 365 days a year.
Mr. McGehee stills pay the monthly premium for Medicare,

which includes his wife, $35.80, and this comes out of Social Securi-ty. They have a $5 cost ftr catastrophic illness premium, but thisdoes not provide enough for their remaining costs and they expectthis cost to go up to $10 in the next year.
It now appears that Mrs. McGehee will outlive her husband. Andsince they have no children, they cannot dispose of the farm andMrs. McGehee faces practically no means of support upon the

death of her husband. This is the brief of one particular case.The second case is the case of Mr. Allen McGee, no relation tothe first and the names are veiled differently. He is 66 years old.In 1973 he had a severe life-threatening stroke and was left almost
completely paralyzed. Allen and his wife have no children. Allen isa veteran with a disability occurring during World W.:: II. In 1985,Allen's wife passed away leaving Allen almost completely nelpless.
Allen's brother and wife took care of him until about a year agowhen it became necessary to place him in a nursing home for con-stant care. This was done with the advice of a physician. Allen wascompletely helpless. In addition to the strcke he has epilepsy.
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Total cost of the nursing home at the present time is approxi-
mately $1,870 a month. This expense is not quite equal to his
monthly incomebecause he has a Federal retirement. Incidental-
ly, he does not have Social Security I need to point out, that many
of the people whom I represent are over 65 and do not have Social
Security. They have worked, given their lives solely to the Govern-
ment and as such were not eligible for Social Security. There is
little hope, however, Mr. Ivit:yee's income will ever increase unless
the Federal Government adds that. His only income is from his
Federal retirement plus interest which comes from his wife's
assets. While she was alive she made a will and the beneficiary of
this will became her brother, but with the stipulation the interest
be given over to the care of Allen.

So when Allen needed care, his brother, Jason, took him and
cared for him, but they did not care for hiia all of the time. When
the doctor said he had to go to the nursing home, that relieved
some of the strain from Jason.

Allen and his wife owned a home. However, this home, without
proper care, was badly in need of repair, and Allen's brother,
Jason, paid for the renovation of home. It is being rented out,
but practically all of the rent has to go to maintaining it and keep-
ing it in proper repair. This ends the second ease.

The third case ja a very, very sensitive one so far as the Mil-
brook-Prattville coil. unity and also part of Montgomery is con-
cerned.

A Mrs. Ruff is 43-years old. She has emphysema. She was told
last October that she had only 6 months to live. Six months are up,
but she is still alive. Her doctor and the people in the Mil lbrook-
Prattville community have helped her in many ways. Because of
her husband's work causes him to travel, Mrs. Ruff stays with
friends in Montgomery-Prattville and other places.

Shr weighs, at the present time, only 90 pounds. She is trying to
get a double lung traneolant. Five such transplants have been per-
formed, three in England Paid two in Canada, none in the United
States. In order to obtain a transplant, Mrs. Ruff must pay $20,000
which has been raised by the various churches in Prattville and
the Montgomery, Millbrook areas. One contributor was the high-
way patrol people.

I need to say, Mr. Ruff is working and has to travel, but he has a
moderate salary. I was not able to get the exact amount of his
salary. They have two children, one in high school, one in c )liege.
The $20,000 was raised and given to the necessary people in
Canada. Now, they're asking for $180,000, the total bill is $2( 0,000.
The likelihood of them raising this amount is very small.

So here is a case where catastrophic health care is needed imme-
diate rather than long-term, this is an important factor. I think it's
probably overriding so far as the need is concerned. This concludes
my statement.

[The prepared statement cf Dr. Walter follows:
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Three Cases Of Catastrophic Illness

By Raymond L. Walter, J. D. Alabama NARFE President

Mr. Chairman -- Senator Shelby. I represent the National Association of Retired
Federal Employees-NARFE for short. Many people in NARFE are concerned about
their future. There are in Alabama

over 9,000 NARFE members and the vast majority
are over 65. Right now we have many who are concerned about Alzheimer's disease
but there are a number of other ailments or disabilities which require much
money on a monthly basis and providing this

money is causing them to eventually
become without any additional money to meet their expenses.

We have to think of castastrophic illness as both a short term, high cost
situation as well as a lon2 term, but still very expensive illness.

I have three cases which I want to discuss. Right now I am limited to cases I
know about in the Montgaomery, Alabama area. However, on May 21 and 22 NARFE
will hold a convention in Tuscaloosa and at that time I can and will canvass the
entire state for more examples. Our examples are not limited to NARFE members,
however.

1. Mr. Abner McGehee was a dairy farmer with no children. He has been ill with
Alzheimer's Disease for the past 10 years. His wife has been taking care of
him. He has had to stop all farming and his farm is running down so they
have already lost considerable of their estate. While dairy farming was
common in the area about 10 years ago there is none in the area today. They
have tried to sell the farm but can get no one to buy it. Mrs. McGehee is
still in good health but is aging and showing the effects of the strair of
caring for her husband. To help with all the work they hire a nurse for
four hours a day, seven days a week at a cost of $112 per week. Mr. McGehee
must be fed through the nose, and this costs $6 per hour. This is being
done by a private nurse. Mr. McGehee still pays a monthly premium for
medicare of $35.80 out of his Social Security. This covers both Mr. and
Mrs. McGehee.

The $5 cost for a castastrophic illness premium does not provide enough
return to cover the remaining costs. This is expected to go to $10 in the
next year.

It appears the wife will outlive Mr. McGeh-e. Since they have no children
and they cannot dispose of the farm Mrs. McGehee faces oractically no mean,
of support upon the death of her husband.

2. Mr. Allen McGee is 66 years old. In 1973 he had a severe life threatening
stroke and was left almost completely paralyzed.

Allen and his wife had no
children. Allen is a veteran with a disability cccuring during WW 11. In
1985 Allen's wife passed away leaving Allen almost completely helpless.

Allen's brother and wife took care of him until about year ago when it
became necessary to place him in a nursing home for conctont care. This was
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done with the advice of a physician. Allen is completely helpless. In

additicn to the stroke Alan has epilipsy.

The total cost of the nursing home at the present time is approximately

$1870 per month. This expense is not quite equal to his monthly income.
However, the nursing home and related medical care costs are continually
escalating. There is little hope, however, his income will increase. His
only income is from his federal retirement plus some interest which comes
from his wife's assets. His wife's "will" put her money with her brother

but with the interest going to Allen.

Allen does not have social security and for some reason the V. A. hospital
has terminated any further assistance. The information I have for the refusal

is th.t Alan still owns a home which is huily in need of repair. No one
will do the repair without payment and Alan does not have any money which
can be used to repair the house. His brother paid for the rennovation out

of his own income. However, the rental money is little more than enough to

keep the house in living condition.

3. Mrs. Ruff, a 43 year old lady with emphysema, was told last October she has
only six months to live. Her doctor and people in the Millbrook/Prattville
community have helped her in many ways. Because of her husband's work

causing him to traavel Mrs. Ruft tays with friends in Montgomery, Prattville

and other places in Alabama.

Mrs. Ruff has been trying to get a double lung transplant. Five such

transplants have been performed, three in England, two in Canada but none

in the U. S.

She presently weighs 90 pounds. In order to obtain the transplant Mrs. Ruff

must pay $20,000 now Just to continue to be eligible. This amount of money

has been raised by various organizations such as churches, Highway Patrol

etc. Now the Canadian Hospital and doctors need an additional $180,000. We

do not know if there is any poss'Olity of Mrs. Ruff getting this amount.

Mrs. Ruff has two children, :nc in high school and the other in college.

Mr. Ruff works but is in .1 business which provides Just enough money for

the family to live.
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Senator SHELBY. Doctor, we appreciate your testimony and the
examples that you have given us.

Mrs. Amelia Heath. Amelia, welcome to the hearing. I haveknown Mrs. Heath and worked with her for maLy, many years.She has been active as the executive director of the FOCUS onSenior Citizens.
Amelia, your written testimony, if any, will be made part of thehearing record without objection. And if you want to add anythingto it we will leave the record open, as I have said already several

times here today, until April 30.
Go ahead.

STATEMENT OF AMELIA HEATH, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, FOCUS
ON SENIOR CITIZENS OF TUSCALOOSA COUNTY, AL

Mrs. HEATH. Thank you, Senator Shelby. I appreciate the oppor-tunity to come here today. I did submit something in writing toyour office several days ago.
I want to tell you first of all just a few facts about FOCUS, asyou have expressed an interest in the community-based services tothe elderly. FOCUS is a countywide agency for persons age 60 andabove which was established in 1972 by a concerned community

group shortly after the 171 White House Conference on Aging.WF" not strictly a health service agency, many of our services arehea,ti related. Our goal today, as it was 15 years ago, is to help theelderly remain in their own homes as independent as possible andto a..day or to prevent institutionalization.
Many of our services are funded in part by Title 3 of the OlderAmericans Act. Namely congregate and homebound meals, trans-portation, senior centers and information and referral. In addition,

we receive funding from ACTION for the Retired Senior VolunteerProgram. We have developed many other programs over the yearsto meet the varying needs of the elderly in Tuscaloosa. We werethe first agency in Alabama to sponsor the Vial of Life, a homealert program to aid emergency personnel to best serve the elderly
in their homes in emergencies.

FOCUS also sponsors Telephone Reassurance, the buddy systemfor congregate housing areas, case management and EDGE, an em-ployment service for people over age 55 who want to work andneed to work.
One of our newer programs is CASA, Care Assurance System forthe Aged, which, through the use of volunteer groups, assists theelderly at a time when they are most vulnerable; when they arerecouperating from an illness or surgery at home after acute carein the hospital.
We are also the provider of homemaker and unskilled respitecare under the Alabama Medicaid Program. So, as you can see, weinteract with all types of elderly people in many, many differentcircumstances.
Some of the issues we see include the following: The elderly needhelp with nursing home expenses. As it stands now, a senior citizenhas to become indigent to qualify for help. Is this what we want?No wonder the e'4erly give up when they go to a nursing home.

What does the future hold for them?
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The elderly need for all of us to work together to provide a con-
tinuum of care, from active prevention-based health and psycho-
social programs, to long-term care facilities. Guidelines of program
flexibility should be aimed at positive, affirming, and family sup-
portive directions. This continuum of care can actually be less ex-
pensive than the restrictive, gap-filied programs of today.

We need the cooperation of the medical community in helping
the elderly manage their limited health dollars. Are doctors aware
of the fact that the elderly are terrified of going into the hospital
and losing control? When specialists (who never seem to take Medi-
care as full payment) are called in, expensive tests, which may
have been done by one physician, are done again with little or no
explanation. When that happens, the catastrophe seems to be at
hand.

What about the accepted knowledge that with old age comes
hearing, eyesight, and dental problems; many of which have a de-
vesting impact on quality of life and cause other resulting prob-
lems. These common but serious concerns, the solution to which is
beyond the income capability of a significant number of elderly
persons, need to be addressed.

Other needs include coverage for the victims of Alzheimer's dis-
ease, both in-home and institutional; spousal impoverishment pro-
tection; and lastly, a recommendation that physicians who do not
elect to accept Medicare as full payment do so if the patients'
income is 130 percent or less of the poverty index.

As a point of entry agency for many elderly persons, we are
acutely aware of the impact of illness on the elderly and their fain-
Hies. We ask, that in respect to this sturdy, independent and de-
serving group in our society, realistic and humane solutions be de-
veloped. Thank you for this opportunity.

[The prepared statement of Mrs. Heath follows:]
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My name is Amelia Heath and I am the Executl e Director of

FOCUS on Senior Citizens of Tuscaloosa Count,. FOCUS, a county-

wide service agency for persons aged 60 and aonve, was established

in 1972 by a concerned community group shor-1, aer the 1971 White

House Conferenc.1 o^ Aging. Wnile not strictly 1 health service

agency many of our services are health related. Our goal .oday,

as it was 15 years ago, is to help the elderly remain in their

own homes, as independent as possible, and to delay or pre,,ent

institutionalization.

Many of our services are funded, in part, by Title III of the

Older Americans Act, namely congreaate and homebound meals, trans-

portation, senior centers, and information and referral. In

addition we soonsor ACTION's Retired Senior Volunteer Program.

We have developed many other programs over the years to meet the

varied needs of the elderly in Tuscaloo,a. We wore the first

program in Alabama to sponsor the Vial of Life, a home alert

program to aid emergency personnel to best serve the elderl" in

home emergencies. FOCUS also sponsors Tel.-2niene Reassurance, the

Buddy System for congregate housing areas, Case Manpgemen.- and

EDGE, and employment service for those elder11, able and wanting

to work. One of our newer programs is CASA, Care As=urance System

for the Aged, which,, through the use of volunteer groups, assists

the elderly at a time when they are most A,ulnerable; when they

are recuperating from an illness or surgery it home after acute

care in the hospital. We are also the proider of Hom,>maxer and

Unskilled Respite on0,sr the Alab,,ma Modi,.11 I Pr-otdm.
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2.

So, as you can see, we inteqact with oil t\:,, et -loerly

people in man" many different circumstawos. Som.- et tne issues

we see Include:

The elderly need help with nursing nome expenses. As it

stands now a senior citizen has to become indig-nt to qualify

for help. Is this what we want? Mn wonder the ,thlorly "give up"

when they go into a nursing home. What does the future hold for

them?

The elderly need for all of us to work together to provide a

continuum of care from active prevention-based health and psycho-

social programs to long term care facilities. Guidelines and

program flexibility should be aimed in positive, affirming and

familv-sunportive directions This contir.w.m of care can actually

he less expensive than the restrictive gap - filled;' oaiams of today.

We need the cooperation of the medical community in helping

the elderly manage their limited health care dollars. Are doctors

aware of the fact that the elderly are terrified of going into

the hospital and the resulting loss of control' When specialists

(who never seem to take Medicare as full payment) are called in

expensive tests (which may hive been done by one physician) are

done again--with no explanation, the catastropne seems to be

at hand.

What about the accented knowledge that with old age come

hearing, eyesight and dental nroblems, many of which have a devas-

tating impact on quality of life and cause other resulting problems?

These common but serious concerns, the solution to which is

beyond the income capability of a signifiant number of elderly

persons, need to he addressed.

96



95

3.

Other needs include coverage for victims of A17nimors Disease,

both in-home and institutional; spow..al impw,r1,1 1,n.- protection

and lastly i recomm^ndltion that phy telans who do no elect to

accent Medicare as full payment do so if tne patients income is

130% or less of the no,,erty index.

As a point-of-entry agency for many eldprl\ porsons we are

acutely aware uf the impact of illness on the elderly and their

families. We ask ..hat in respect for this sturdy, independent

and deserving group in our society, realistic and humane solutions

be developed.

Thank you for this opportunity to address an is,ue of greatest

national. Importance.
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Senator SHELBY. Thank you, Amelia. Out next panelist is Mrs.
Barbara Bonfield. Barbara I want to personally thank you for all
the work that you have done to help us bring about this hearing
and also for agreeing to testify before this panel today. Your writ-
ten testimony, I'll go ahead and say this for the record, will be
made a part of the record in it's entirety.

You now have an opportunity to say anything you want to re-
garding the proposals that will be floating around Congress and
how you feel about them and what you think we should do.

STATEMENT OF BARBARA BONFIELD, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
JEFFERSON COUNTY OFFICE OF SENIOR CITIZENS ACTIVITIES

Mrs. BONFIELD. Thank you, Senator Shelby. And I compliment
you on bringing this hearing to Je4'ierson County, to Alabama, and
giving us an opportunity to make comments and to share with you
these significant problems that w: must deal with.

I can't let pass that, along v ith George and Senator Heflin, I
have roots in Talladega County, having finished Lincoln High
School there. And would love to be joining Senator Heflin to visit
my mother who still lives over there.

Senator SHELBY. That's a beautiful county and a big one, too.
Mrs. BONFIELD. Thank you. It is an honor to have the opportuni-

ty to comment to you today on the issue of catastrophic health care
and, specifically, about the administration's proposed legislation to
restructure Medicare, particularly par'.. B, to address catastrophic
health care needs. You have my written statement and I am just
going to highlight today what I have said in that.

Senator SHELBY. You go ahead.
Mrs. BONFIELD. Certainly, the plan has merit. And it's an impor-

tant first step, as many have said, in helping the elderly pay for a
devastating cost that you have heard about from some of our wit-
nesses. It doesn't, however, provide what President Reagan de-
scribes as "the last full measure of security for elderly people." The
part of the plan that would address the 60th day plus of hospital
care is going to affect about 2 percent of the 27 million people that
are on Medicaid, that 2 percent that will be in the hospital for day
60th plus. The other 26.5 million people are out there dealing with
the catastrophic problems in the community, trying to deal with
how to take care of themselves and their older relatives.

Some of the aspects of the President's plan, such as encouraging
personal savings for long-term care have merit for those who can
afford them. The purchase of IMA's will affect the elderly of the
next generation. They probably wo help what we're looking at in
this decade, as will the encourage :lent of purchase of long-term
care insurance. And we have heard what long-term insurance care
can do to buffer the situation for someone with catastrophic illness.

But this last recommendation, the purchase of long-term care in-
surance, must take into consideration the experience of the elderly
with gap insurance. The confusion, inadequacy, and downright
fraud, which has permeated the gap policies, raise a strong issue
about what will happen with long-term care policies. And I would
suggest that there needs to be very strong regulation, both at Fed-
eral and State level, if we go to, and which I expect we will, long-

Ito
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term care insurance. I would recommend a voluntary part C under
Medicare, under the new plan to provide for the long-term. I,
frankly, would rather see the Federal Government maintaining an
oversight in this area.

But there is one problem with the whole thing that we're talking
about, more moneyFederalto the private health care system.
Despite the $75 billion that the Government will spend this year on
Medicare, the elderly will still spend more out of their own pockets
than they did in 1965 when Medicare was established. For that
reason, it is essential that we, today, give consideration to the
effect that any more patches cr band-aids to Medicare will have.
For too long the policymakers and the general public have accepted
either hospitalization or nursing home care as the only alterna-
tives. And as I look at that chart4 in front of us, it shows 91.2 per-
cent of the funds going into either hospital or nursing home care.
I'm increasingly made aware of this problem.

Dr. Robert Butler discussed this institutional bias of the health
care system in his book, "Why Survive, Growing Old in America."

I think that the health care industry, without some ceiling on
the top of this pump of new money into the system, will be pre-
pared to soak up those dollars. Be they private insurance, taxpayer
dollars, or whatever, as many as you are prepared to send their
way. But I want to suggest to you and to your committee that you
consider another approach, at least for the majority of older people,
who that I mentioned earlier, are going to need some coverage for
catastrophic care. With proper assessment and proper services out
in the community there are other ways that the majority of older
people can be maintained in the community.

Let's admit that we are on the beginning edge of a crisis of a
major proportion. And unless we make considerable changes, there
is no way that Medicare can meet the needs of those like myself
who are middle-aged today. We have a brief period to prepare as
those of us who were born in the 1920's and the 1930's pass
through the system. Those were the low birth years. But by the
year 2010, the boby boom generation will overwhelm the health
care system.

Added to the demand of the baby boomers and what they will
place on the system, will be the impact of the AIDS epidemic and
we have to consider that hand in hand with the demographics re-
garding aging. That's going to begin to hit us in about 6 years ac-
cording to what the experts have told me. And without a cure, that
situation is expected to escalate right off of the charts. And it's
going to impact Social Security and Medicare through disability
payments.

It's time to look for more basic models which can provide good
quality care, though not necessarily acute and highly skilled medi-
cal care. I invite you to look at three relatively simple and com-
paratively low cost options for addressing the same needs which in
the past we have relegated to nursing homes and hospitals. You're
going to be involved in re-authorization of the Older Americans
Act. And in looking at what the "aging network should be charged

'Seep 44.
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to do" I ask that the committees of the Senate and the House to
charge area agencies on aging with the responsibility and encour-
age them where necessary, if you have to with funding, and regula-
tory authority tn, (1) develop assisted living facilities throughout
their communities; (2) develop concentrated powerful cadres of the
young elderlythose that are 55 to 70, just retiredto address the
needs of the older elderly; and (3) expand upon Medicare and Med-
icaid waivered services options to provide more in-home and day-
care alternatives.

I base the first recommendation on the experience of our area
agency. After hearing from social workers about the concerns of
the frail elderly who are in need of protective living arrangements,
but who will be driven into poverty by an expensive long-term
nursing home stay, we put together an assisted residential living
facility; which is aff,rdable and which offers an array of social
services.

The total monthly cost to all the parties involved and there are
Federal parties and private parties involvedin making this facili-
ty available is $506. Not the $1,500 in the nursing home, not the
$2,000 in the nursing home, $506 per person. That includes some
Older Americans Act dollars through Title IIIB, and some section 8
dollars through HUD. And then with the older person sharing part
of the cost, paying $250 a month out of their own income, they're
still left with money of their own. There is an emphasis on preven-
tion and rehabilitation in the setting so that a person can get
better and can get back out in the community.

I have provided you with a breakdown cn the cost effectiveness
of this program in an exhibit (A) to my written testimony.

The second option I have mentioned is that of developing a corps,
somewhat like a domestic peace corps of the younger elderly to
serve the older more frail group. This is the group that is going to
have the time to give to volunteer work in the future. With
women, younger women having gone to work, we're going to be de-
pendent on our younger elderly for the volunteer activities that areundertaken. I would propose that this activity provide, maybe,
small, part-time stipends if necessary. If not, go straight volunteer,
to recently retired people who will in turn provide respite, compan-
ionship, and other in-home services to their older counterparts.

The three-fold benefits to this plan are, that you're going fo in-
crease the income of these recently retired; provide a purpose to
them while drawing on their maturity and experience; and ensure
supportive services for frail elderly and the caregivers. And that
makes it an especially appealing opti.-n.

I know that you have a wealth of information to support the
third option of providing home health care to the elderly. Experi-
ence in the Hospice Program of keeping the elderly at home
throughout a terminal illness has shown that dying at home can bedone with dignityand at a lower cost. You have various demon-
stration programs which have all been evaluated to show the cost
saving benefit of in-home care.

Senator Shelby, these comments represent the major portion of
the points that I want to make today. And I will be glad to enter-
tain any questions which you may have.

The prepared statement of Mrs. Bonfield follows:)
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Mr. Chairman, and members of the Special Committee on
Aging, it is an honor to have this opportunity to comment to
you on the issue of catastrophic health care and specif-
ically about the administration's proposed legislation to
re-structure Medicare Part B to address catastrophic health
care needs.

I must say that the whole area of health care in this
country is in a catastrophic state. Like all of our once
familiar services, whether it be air travel, telephone or
financial services, our services are in upheaval and we are
confronted with unfamiliar and myriad choices wherever we
go. Do we stay with AT&T for long distance, or use MCI,
measured, or regular local service? Do we put our money in
an IRA or a money market account, or opt for a deferred comp
plan?

For the older person, attempting to fathom all of these
choices is bewildering enough. But making decisions about
health care, and particularly health care insurance, becomes
an impossible task. I have become acutely aware of the
problem older people face in looking at Medigap insurance
plans.

Our Area Agency on Aging, in attempting to help older
people learn more about shopping for gap insurance, has
recently conducted several forums to explain the various
options, and particularly to look at a proposed competitive
medical plan which the Health Care Financing Administration
is considering for Alabama.

Now, along with the problem of choosing between AT&T,
MCI, Sprint, and all of the other phone service alphabet
soup, an older person is asked to make an informed choice
between 600 Medigap policies, HMO's, PPO's and now a CMP. I
even heard of an HMG the other day.

Consider what happens when into this bewildering hodge-
podge of health care choices there appears, to help the
unwary older person, a smooth talking, reassuring,
insurance salesman. He has with him a variety of appealing
policies which do more (according to him) than the one the
person already has. And, he has every reason to want to
sell a policy since he may get 60 percent of the first
year's premium as commission. Is there any wonder that in
an elderly high-rise one block from our Area Agency on\Aging
there are older people with three, four, and sonetines\more
Medigap policies?

Once he has crossed the hurdle of selecting a gap
policy, the older person is confronted by a barrage of
beckoning hospitals, seeking him out and enticing him with
their services. Competition for the elderly and their
Medicare reinbursals is intense in this area and every
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hospital administrator and his staff have burnt midnight oil
thinking up ways to attract the elderly.

When he gets to the hospital, what may he expect? Fre-
quently, if we are all honest, he will find a large
beautifully structured hospital with the latest ln
equipment, operating at 60 percent occupancy with a portion
of the nursing staff laid off. If he needs to re fed his
meal, he would be wise to have a family member with him, or
a private duty nurse, because staff is stretched and
overworked. When the limit of stay for his DRG is reached,
he or hib family will be told that he must 1 °ave the next
day.

The hospital social service department will begin
diligently helping the family to locate supports. If he is
very ill and needs nursing home care, the social worker will
have to shop, begging, bargaining and caroling. Some
nursing homes won't take patients who need oxygen, who are
tube fed, or need to be turned every two h,zrs.

If the patient cannot afford nursing home care, the
case worker may look for an unlicensed boarding home with an
owner who is known to give good, if not appropriate, care to
this type of patient. Sometimes the social worker may have
to find such a facility in another county because the ones
in her county are already filled. So the desperately ill
patient may be placed in an ambulance and sent ta the other
county. And, sometimes, g:ntlemen, a patient dies en route
in an ambulance to a county not his own.

This is the situation I see, and our long term care
ombudsman tells me about almost daily. There are boarding
homes in this county where there are sick patients, with
infected decubiti. mhey are there because they cannot
afford nursing home care and they cannot afford, nor or they
at an appropriate level, for licensed domiciliary care.
Some have been sent here from other counties which have been
unable to find resources for them.

Against this backdrop, I will now turn to consider
President Reagan's proposed plan to address catastrophic
health care needs of the elderly. As I understand it, the
plan proposes to (1) restructure Medicare Part B allowing
the alderly to purchase for a premium protection from
exorbitant costs for hospitals and doctors for treatment of
long tern acute illness, (2) encourage personal savings for
long tern care through IMA's and (3) encourage the develop-
ment of long term care insurance tnrough tax credits.

Certainly, the plan has merit and is an important first
step in helping the elderly pay the devastating costs of a
major illness. It does not, however, provide as President
Reagan has described, "tne last full measure of security to
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elderly people." The plan provides for amounts over $2,000
in hospital and doctor bills to be picked up by Medicare
after a long term hospital treatment for an acute illness.
This part of the plan will help about two percent of
Medicare'a 27 million elderly who will be hospitalized for
more than 59 days.

Aspects of the President's plan, sucn as, encouraging
personal savings for long term care, have merit for those
who can afford them. Of course, purchase of IMA's will have
affect on the elderly of the next generations as will the
encouragement of purchase of long term care insurance.

The latter recommendation must take into consideration
the experience of the elderly with gap insurance. Con-
fusion, inadequacy, and fraud which have permeated gap
policies make one consider t:le of long term care
insurance carefully. Educating the elderly regarding the
need, as well as, how to shop for such policies, will be
essential. A voluntary Part C under the new plan, to
provide for long term care needs, would perhaps be a better
option in that it will retain the oversight of the federal
government in the long term care area.

There .s one obvious problem however with this whole
trend toward adding more money, federal or private, to the
health care system. Despite the $75 billion the government
will spend this year on Medicare, the elderly will spent
more out of their own pockets than they did in 1965 when
Medicare was established. It is ironic that this program
established with the intention of protecting the elderly has
allowed a situation where health care costs are inflated and
are so devastating for the elderly.

For that reason, it is essential that this committee
give serious consideration to the effect that any further
band-aids to Medicare may have. For too long, policy makers
and the general public have accepted either hospitalization
or nursing home care as the only alternatives for frail
older people. Dr. Robert Butler discussed this institu-
tional bias of our health care system in his bcok Why
Survive? Growing Old in America.

The health care industry is prepared to soak up more
Medicare dollars or private insurance dollars as many as you
are prepared to send that way. But, I would like for the
committee to consider another approach at least for the
majority of older people who can be maintained quite com-
fortably in their own homes or in assisted living
facilities.

First, let's admit that we are on the beginning edge of
a crisis of major proportion. Unless we make major changes,
there is no way that Medicare can meet the needs of those of
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us who are middle aged today. We have a brief period to
prepare as those people born in the 1920's and 30's (low
birth rate years) pass through the system. But, by 2010 the
baby boom generation will overwhelm the health care sector.
Today 12 percent of the population is over 65 and consumes
one-third of all health care spending. In 2030, 21.1
percent will be over 65. Added to the demand this group
will place on the system, will be the impact of the Aids
epidemic which will begin to hit us in about six years and
which without a cure is expected to escalate right off the
charts and impact Social Security and Medicare through
disability payments.

It is time for us to look at more basic models which
can provide good quality though non-technical care.
invite the committee to look at three relatively simple and
comparatively low cost options for addre ling the same needs
which in the past we have relegated to nursing homes and
hospitals. I ask that you charge Area Agencies on Aging
and encourage them where necessary with funding and
regulatory authority to:

1) develop assisted living facilities throughout
their communities.

2) develop concentrated powerful cadres of the young-
elderly (55 to 70) to address the needs of old-
elderly.

3) Expand upon the Medicare and Medicaid waivered
services options to p.,.Ivide more in-home and day
care alternatives.

I base the fist recommendation on the experience of
our Area Agency on Aging. After hearing from social workers
about the concerns for those frail elderly who are in need
of a protective living arrangement, but who wil: be drive-
into poverty by an expensive long term nursing home stay, we
put together an assisted living facility which is
affordable, and which offers an array of social services.

The total monthly cost to all parties involved in
making this facility available is $506.00 per person. This
includes the Area Agency on Aging's share from Title III-B
(OAA), the Housing Authority with Section 8, (HUD) moneys
and the older person who pays on the average $250 from his
income. In this setting, the individual receives meals,
twenty-four hour supportive staff, assistan,:e with taking
baths, medication management, transportation, recreation and
counseling from a social worker. There is en emphasis on
prevention in this setting. If the older person has been
hospitalized, the staff will see that he receives his
medication appropriately, and that he receives good
nutrition to help the healing process, and exercise to
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encourage recovery. Home health care can bu delivered in
this setting more cost effectively because nurses and aides
can see more patients and have reduced mileage to make the
visit, etc. Hospital days are reduced and nursing home care
is postponed, all at a considerable savings to the various
entitlement programs. For details on the cost saving,
please see the attached Exhibit A to this testimony.

The second option I mentioned is empowering area
agencies, to develop a corps, somewhat like a domestic peace
corps, of the younger elderly to serve the older more frail
group. This activity will provide part-time salaries to
recently retired people who will in turn provide respite,
companion and other in-home services to their older
counterparts. The three-fold benefits of this plan,
increasing incomes, providing a purpose to the recently
retired, while drawing on their maturity and expertise, and
ensuring ..upprtive services for frail elderly and their
care givers make it especially appealing.

A wealth of information is available to support the
third option of providing home health care to the elderly.
Experience of the hospice programs in keeping elderly at
home throughout a terminal illness has shown that dying at
home can be done with dignity - and at a lower cost.
Various demonstration programs have all been evaluated to
show the cost saving benefit of in-home care.

One other area which I ask you to explore is shared
cost. When Medicare was enacted it was expected that the
federal government through Medicare would pay about 50
percent of the doctor bills while the elderly through
premiums would pick up the other 50 percent. Today the
Medicare program relies on the federal government through
general revenues to pick up 75 percent of the cost.

To address and offset this shift I recommend that the
Medicare program set co-payments on Medicare costs based on
the beneficiary's ability to pay. It has been my experience
that older Americans who can afford it, want and expect to
contribute something toward the cost (DI: what they receive.
For the elderly of comfortable economic means this is a
small price to ask. For policy makers and leaders in the
field of aging this policy may seem daring, but I have
confidence in the wisdom of older citizens and their desire
to share equitably the burden of health care costs and my
experience with donations made by older people to Older
Americans Act programs makes it possible for me to make this
recommendation with confidence. For this recommendation to
be credible, however, it oust be accompanied by strict
regulation of health service provider costs. The elderly
will share equitably in the cost only to the extent that
they are charged equitably.
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:,!:-,IED RII;I:,%1IAL LIVING FACILITY (ARLF)

Needs Identification:

The Office of Senior Citizens' Activities, the designated

Area Agency on Aging 'fferson County, annually conducts a

public hearing to do the needs of the elderly population.

A need identified by professionals, as well as consumers, at 1979

hearings was that .)f congregate housing. While two section eight

facilities had been built and more were in the planning stages,

housing with services was not available. The need for a

congregate housing facility as defined by Housing and Urban

Development gidelinas, to provide supportive services such as

meals, housekeeping, health, personal hygiene, and transportation

was identifited. These services are required to assist impaired,

but not ill, elderly residents to maintain or return to a semi

independent lifestyle thus avoiding institutionalization as they

grip,: older.

Funding congregate housing was adopted as a major objective

by the Office of Senior Citizens' Activities for the FY' 78-79

area plan. At that time OSCA committed $6,000.00 for operational

funds and offered technical assistance in the development of the

facility. The Young Womens' Christian Association agreed to

provide the eighth floor of its ten st'ry building in downtown

Birmingham. Following negotiations with OSCA Staff, the

Birmingham Housing Authority agreed to provide a rent subsidy

under the existing section eight programs. The Jefferson County

Commission provided 518,000.00 in Revenue Sharing funds which went

toward the renovation of the facility to meet HUD housing

standards. An additional $8,000.00 in Older Pmeric is Act fund

was provided by OSCA for renovation. Volunteer help from within
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the c,mmunity was provided from seve-a1 sources. The AFL-CIO

Appalachian Council Youths Skill Center provided demolitionists

and carpenters; a local technical school provided plumbers; a

local architect donated the architectual drawings; and youth

groups assisted with painting. The ARLF was ready for occupancy

on October 1, 1979.

Program Description:

The facility is located on the eighth floor of the YWCA

building which also houses the Office of Senior Citizens'

Activities and ElderGarden, the County coordinated Multi-purpose

center ElderGarden, through a cooperative effort of public
)

and/or private agencies, provides social, nutritional, health,

recreational, and legal services for the elderly of Jefferson

County. The close proximity of the hRLF to ElderGarden enhances

residents' access to these services. Presently ElderGarden

provides all supportive services while the YWCA manages the

facility.

The ARLF consists of rineteen rooms, fifteen of which are

being subsidized through the existing section eight program.

These fifteen units have private baths, four of the rooms share a

bath. There is a large central dining and living room, a laundry

room, and a country style kitchen.

Each room is equipped with an emergency call system which can

be activated from the resident's bathroom or bedside. The

emergency system can be monitored from the resident man'ger's room

and the ElderGarden switchboard. The panel is monitored at all

times. The entire facility has carpet and wallcovering and

furnishings which provide a cozy homelike atmosphere. To further

promote this atmosphere, the residents have been encouraged to

bring their own furnishings.
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Resident Population:

The resident population is all female with an average age of

76.9 years. At least half the residents were in a nursing home

facility before coming to the ARLF. The majority of the older

residents were on waiting lists to be admitted to nursing homes.

These individuals were not in need of skilled health care, and

needed less intensive health and/or supportive social services.

Basic services required by most residents were homemaker,

transportation, meals, health screening, and counseling. The

income of this population is in the low to moderate range.

Average length of stay in the facility has been 13 months with

some residents having resided there the full five years of its

existence.

Social/Psychological Benefits:

It is recognized that instruments used to measure psycho-

logical and/or sociological benefits are often inadequate.

However, the social worker, in an attempt to gain this type of

information, has developed a monthly assessment chart. In the

tenant selection process an assessment tool developed by the

Center for Urban Affairs for the Area Agency is utilized, to

evaluate the resident's level of functioning. Similar guidelines

are used in the regular assessment to determine if changes have

occurred. According to these assessments the majority of the

residents have shown physical, psychological and social improve-

ment. In addition, through intera'tion with an observation of the

residents, staff persons report a general improvement in the

overall adjustment of the residents.
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Cost Saving Benefits:

The cost of maintaining an individual for one month in the

Assisted Residential Living Facility is $506.47. This includes

the resident's contribution and all participating agencies'

contributions. In contrast, it would cost an average of $1,100 to

$1,400 per month to maintain an individual in a local nursing

home. Computed over a one year period for nineteen (19)

individuals with the amount paid for institutional care at $1,000

per month, the total cost of nursing home care is $226,000.

Savings to the taxpayer, assuming that the nursing home care were

financed through Medicaid, is $163,824.84. ($228,000 -

S64,175.16).

TOTAL ANNUAL COSTS (BASED ON NINETEEN RESIDENTS)

SALARIES $ 32,200.00
RENTAL 39 360.00
BOARD 34,200.00
MEALS 9,215.00
MISCELLANEOUS 500.00

$115,475.00

TOTAL ANNUAL COST TO ALL PARTIES $115,475.00

TOTAL MONTHLY COST TO ALL PARTIES $ 9,622.00

TOTAL MONTHLY COST PER INDIVIDUAL. FOR ALL $ 506.47
PARTIES

Average outof-pocket cost to each resident at ARLF is $225.00
(S150.00 for board, $75.00 for rent.) The remainder to be picked
up by the housing subsidy and tne nutrition project to the elderly
is 5261.47. Annual cost in federal funds is 564,175,16.
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COST ANALYSIS
FOR

ASSISTED RESIDENTIAL LIVING FACILITY

I. Staff Salaries
Manager $13,000 (100% of time)
Additional staff $19,200 (night and weekend staff)

TOTAL SALARIES $32,200

II. Rental Costs
192 x 15 x 12 = $34,560
100 x 4 x 12 = $ 4,800

TOTAL RENT $39,360

III. Board Charges
A. $150 x 19 x 12 . $34,20.

B. Value of weekday lunches
19 x 250 = 4,750
mels per year

$1.94 per meal = 9,215

IV. Miscellaneous Costs $ 500
TOTAL COSTS $115,475

15 residents are paid
under the section 8
program at a rate of $192
per month. Four are
housed in rooms which do
not qualify for section 8
(no private baths) and are
only charged $100.

Each resident pays a flat
fee of $150 per month
toward the household
budget. In return she
receives three meals per
day, seve-. days per week.
The wcakday lunches are
provided, however, from
the Nutrition Program for
the Elderly. See below.
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Senator SHELBY. Thank you for your testimony and your candor
As a matter of fact, Barbara, you mentioned the aging to the com-
mittee earlier and also reauthorization of the Older Americans Act.
We're going to have an Aging Committee hearing in Washington
later this month regarding that program. I'll certainly keep your
comments in mind when I do this.

Some of you have already touched on your priorities, but just to
sum them up briefly for the record, what are the priorities of the
members of the various organizations regarding catastrophic
health care?

Dr. Layton, do you want to start again and just sum it up?
Dr. LAYTON. Of course, I would like to improve both Medicaid

and Medicare, but to have a provision to take care of some prob-
lems like we have heard of here today. In other words, catastrophic
illness would be a top priority there. And then to also take care of
long-term care. Those are our priorities.

Senator SHELBY. Dr. Walter.
Dr. WALTER. Our priorities, of course, are taking care of people

who are reaching past 65 and to make certain that they have an
opportunity to live a reasonably happy, secure life. We in NARFE
are doing a number of things for that, we're concerned about our
people, and we're helping them out in every way possible.

For example, I didn't tell you about a telephone call from Mrs.
Lofton. Her husband has Alzheimer's disease. This call came
within a week after it was announced there is a new drug which
promises hope. She asked if I could possibly get her husband in the
experimental drug program. I contacted Mr. Pigg who is our first
vice-president, living in Birmingham and who earlier contacted the
University of Alabama in Birmingham, the medical school about
Alzheimer's disease research. There is some research being done
there. I gave the telephone number and the name to Mrs. Lofton.
And I said, however, you will have to pursue this further through
your own doctor, which she did. Her husband now is on the re-
search program at the University of Alabama here in Birmingham.

This month, April, is NARFE Alzheimer's &ease month. We are
raising funds for it. I think it will be of interest to you to know
that a city, Fort Payne, north from here, has 66 members in
NARFE and they have raised over $2,0G0 to provide research in
this particular area. We hope to have a considerable amount of
money raised among our own members for this research.

We made efforts to get this money, at least, as much of it as pos-
sible, kept in the State of Alabama for research. We do want to
help the national Alzheimer's disease research too. But our pro-
gram is to provide, not for just simply members of NARFE, a rea-
sonable living after 65, but for all people.

Senator SHELBY. Thank you. Amelia Heath, just briefly, what is
your priority regarding this?

Mrs. HEATH. Well, I think that that's pretty easy for me to say
because one of the things that I hope this insurance will do is
something that Barbara alluded to and that is, to provide a real
continuum of care. One of the things that I think is kind of ironic
or humorous is the title of the insurance that we all talk about
called medigap, the operative word there is gap, it is a gap. I mean,
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it's not a gap filler. And that leads to a lot of misunderstanding.People- -
Senator SHELBY. It's very misleading to a lot of people?
Mrs. HEATH. It is. They think they filled the gap, so it's a very

unfair name. So many people approach this problem as they getolder and they have as you said earlier, thinx that they are cov-ered or that somethingsomehow they're going to be covered and
they don't plan. Part of the problem then is the hysteria and the
misunderstandings that arise as additional family problems. So we
really want the solution to be not just another isolated little seg-ment that deals with a small, fairly, untypical situation.

We would really like for the people at the congressional level to
understand what the word "catastrophe" means to old people. AsBarbara was mentioning, very few people stay in the hospital past
60 days. There are a lot of things, about the new legislation, that
doesn't really relate to older people as a large group. We would
like to see more realistic goals set. We would like to have more rec-ognition that long-term care is not synonymous with final care.Senator SHELBY. That's a good statement.

Mrs. HEATH. Yes. We see a cycle, your pie chart is a circle, cir-cles are very popular. We see people in their homes, we see them
in the hospital, we see them in long-term care institutions, nursinghomes, et cetera and then we see them back home. Older people
want to be at home, they need to be at home. I don't want to see asystem that's designedas the system we have in designed, that anursing home is a dead end.

Senator SHELBY. Barbara, you did a good job on summing up aminute ago. Briefly, tell us your top priority, if you have one.
Mrs. BONFIELD. The one thing I want to see is that we build sys-

tems for long-term care so that we can meet this crisis that I de-
scribed earlier. And that we have the means and the leadership to
begin to put in place models that can provide quality of life at alower cost to all of us for our older people and those who are notquite elderly.

Senator SHELBY. One last question for this panel. What can yourecommend to his committee that we do, possibly, on the Federal
level, and the State and the local community levels, while we wait
for Congress to act on the various proposals? Our elderlywe needto make sure that our elderly are receiving as much as possible inthe way of community services.

Mrs. BONFIELD. Well, I think we have to put in place just asmuch as we possibly can. As an Area Agency director, we havebeen trying to do that for the last 10 years, bringing together all
kinds of funding to put together the kinds of programs that Ameliaand I have been talking about, the assisted living, and volunteer
programs. That's the kind of programs that can mean so much to
an older person. I think until we get some other things hi place,this is what we must work on.

Senator SHELBY. Dr. Layton.
Dr. LAYTON. I think we have some resources available locally

that may be eligible for Medicaid. If you look into it, here in Jeffer-
son County and other places, it might save some money on a 3 to 1basis that we're not going to put those people whoabout 50 per-cent of them are eligible for Medicaid who are not on Medicaid. I
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think the money is already here, it's just a matter of to ge4 them
allowed to use it in time.

Senator SHELBY. Dr. Walter, do you have a comment?
Dr. WALTER. Yes. The comment that I have, Senator Shelby,

deals with Government agencies. The Allen McGee case, he is a
disabled World War II veteran, yet the Government's hospital will
not take him. I do not know the details, I have some of the details,
but I don't know why they will not take him.

Senator SHELBY. I don't know why either. And it might be that
he does not come under what they call the criteria. But if he is a
World War II veteran they ought to take him. And I would like to
work with you. My staff is here. If you meet Mr. Dearman who is
here, and some other people on my staff after you leave this panel,
we will try to help you.

Dr. WALTER. I think that there is money available. I would like
to also say that from my point of view at least, I may not be ex-
pressing NARFE's complete philosophy on this, but we have pri-
vate institutions, churches, and other social organizations that can
help, if not necessarily in money, money is not the only thing that
we need in these cases. We need sympathy, we need encourage-
ment, we need visitation and I can go on down a whole list of
things here. But most of this is outside the realm of Government.
It's in the realm of just being a good citizen and a good person and
caring for your neighbor. And this is something that I think we can
do.

Senator SHELBY. Thank you all. I want to again express my
thanks to you on behalf of the Special Committee on Aging of the
U.S. Senate for appearing here with us today.

We have another panel, this will be our last panel, they're a very
important one. Dr. Allan Goldstein, Mrs. Beverly Friedlander, Ms.
Karen Hermanson, and Mr. Joseph Bolen. And while they're
coming up to the witness panel table, I want to share some of the
backgrounds on these people.

Dr. Allan Goldstein. Dr. Goldstein has been a practicing physi-
cian for 15 years here. He specializes in pulmonary disease and in-
ternal medicine. A great many of the patients of Dr. Goldstein's
are older adults. And as a result, Dr. Goldstein is quite familiar
with the health coverage problems that many of the elderly face.

Dr. Goldstein, I want to thank you for giving your time to us
today, to be with us and fir sharing with youwith us the physi-
cian's perspective into this issue of catastrophic health care.

Mrs. Beverly Friedlander. Mrs. Friedlander is here. Mrs. Fried-
lander has for the past 5 years been the social work manager for
St. Vincent's Hospital, a major hospital for many, many years here
in Birmingham. Mrs. Friedlander is a discharge planner responsi-
ble for assuring continuity of care for acute care patients. In prac-
tice that means that she does her best to assure that when patients
leave the hospital, they receive the type of follow-up care, whether
that be through a home care agency, a rehabilitation hospital or a
nursing home, that they require. I look forward to Mrs. Friedland-
er's testimony along with the others.

Another panelist that we have here is Ms. Karen Hermanson.
Ms. Hermanson has been the director of the Birmingham Visiting
Nurse Association since 1983. In addi+ion to her work with VNA,
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Ms. Hermanson was formerly a vice president of a hospital for 7years, she has been very involved in health care. She is now re-sponsible, with the limited resources available to her, for providingnursing and home care services to the frail and elderly in theirhomes. These services are known as home health care services.And it is my hope that we will be hearing a lot more of these and
their expansion in the months to come.

M:: Joseph Bolen. Mr. Bolen, I would like to welcome you to thehearing. He is the vice president of Provider Affairs for Blue Cross-Blue Shield of Alabama. If there is any one insurer here whoknows a great deal about the Medicare Program, it's certainly BlueCross-Blue Shield. At this moment, Blue Cross-Blue Shield under-writes 45 percent of all Medicare, supplemental or medigap policiesin the entire Nation.
Before we begin, Mr. Bolen, because I understand you have beenrecently promoted, I would like to take this opportunity to con-gratulate you on your new job.
Mr. BOLEN. Thank you.
Senator SHELBY. Although this is a new job to you, I'm awarethat you're not a new person in the field, as you have been in-volved in the health care delivery and the insurance industry forthe past 18 years. I'm sure you have much to offer us in this fieldhearing. I welcome all of you as I have said.
Dr. Goldstein, do you want to lead off. Your written testimonywill be made part of the record in its entirety for the Special Com-mittee on Aging for the U.S. Senate. You may proceed.

STATEMENT OF DR. ALLAN R. GOLDSTEIN, PRACTICING
PHYSICIAN, BIRMINGHAM, AL

Dr. GOLDSTEIN. Mr. Senator, I appreciate having the opportunityto be here. I have submitted my written statement.
Senator SHELBY. It will be made part of the record.
Dr. GOLDSTEIN. I will just summarize and add a few points. Myname is Allan R. Goldstein, I am a physician practicing in Bir-

mingham, Alabama. My comments today are based on, one, myprofessional experience as a practicing specialist in internal medi-cine and pulmonary diseases who sees the patient regularly who issuffering from catastrophic illness; and two, my own personal expe-rience of having both my parents die of cancer.
I define catastrophic illness as an acute or chronic illness requir-

ing hospitalization and/or nursing home care and/or the regularuse of medication that leads to an inability to be gainfully em-ployed and/or perform the activities of daily life.
There are many examples of people who have had to pay moneyout of their pockets because whatever insurance they had did ordid not cover the services they needed. You have heard numerousexamples of that today, and I will not belabor the issue because theexamples that you have already heard, I can't impress upon theSenator and the people in this room any more than that which hasbeen said. There is a problem with those people having to pay forit.
The real problem, as far as I'm concerned, is the method in

which we are going to try to reimburse the care of people with cat-
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astrophic illness. It's very disturbing to me that before this pro-
gram has even been passed by the Senate and the House of Repre-
sentatives, we already have a planned premium increase for years
2 and 3. That's extremely bothersome as a practicing physician
who spends considerable time talking to my patients about their fi-
nancial situation. The DRG system has not adequately reimbursed
for catastrophic illness. And unless that system is altered, it will
continue to discriminate against the seriously ill patients.

The CMP has been looked at as a possible answer. However, the
recent experience with the Marshfield Clinic is very sabering. De-
spite an efficient system which decreased hospitalization by 252 per
1,000 days, a loss of $3 million was realized because of an inad-
equate reimbursement system.

The private insurance industry has not done all that it can do
either. Most medigap programs cover only the services, allowed by
Medicare. And what most Medicare recipients don't understand,
and what most of the public does not understand, is the Medicare
allowance does not necessarily have any direct relationship to what
a fee is as far as being reasonable. A reasonable fee will vary with
every single insurance company. So that we have a problem under-
standing what allowable means. The uncovered service and the
portion above the allowable is paid for by the patient unless the
physician and the patient, which is not an uncommon problem, sit
and talk about the patients' financial situation. I know in our prac-
tice, if the patient has a financial problem, we waive whatever they
can't pay. But we do that as a personal discussion between doctor
and patient so that we remain their advocate, not their adversary,
which I think is extremely important in whatever program that we
develop.

The concept of retrospective denial is terrible. It's something
that the Government needs to look at very carefully. For those who
do not understand what this means, it is very simple. I provide a
service that the patient and I have decided is necessary based on
the evaluation that is done in my office based on information that
the patient has given to me. Sometime in the future after the serv-
ice has been delivered, the insurer decides that this is uncovered
and, therefore, either refuses to pay or recoups money. That is only
to the benefit of the third party insurer, it is not to the benefit of
the system. The argument has been used that this will stop unnec-
essary care. I don't totally believe that being involved in utilization
review, it would stop unnecessary care. I think we have systems
available already called utilization review pre-admission certifica-
tion which do work. And unfortunately, Medicare stopped pread-
mission certification because "it was costing too much," but now
they can deny retrospectively after the patient has been treated.
And I have just received one of those little notices on a patient
that I get nothing for her care. The patient later died with her ill-
ness, and one of her admissions was denied by a reviewing board
who absolutely could not have looked at that record nor any previ-
ous record, but it is to the advantage of the system not to pay after
the patient has been treated.

It has been suggested that catastrophic illness be covered under
the capitation program of HMO's, PPO's or other private insurers.
Under capitation, I feel that we are going to have regular denial of
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services. Most of the data that is available on capitation is based onyoung healthy people. We are not dealing with young healthy
people. We're dealing with people who have chronic illness; who
have reason to go to the doctor; who have reason to take medica-tion.

We have already seen that the major cost is nursing home care;it is not the cost of their medication; it is not the cost of their phy-
sician visit. If we go ahead and base a system of capitation on
young healthy people we will inadequately reimburse and we will,
therefore, have people uncared for again. And the whole purpose ofthis is to get people cared for, not to see how much someone canmake. And by fair reimbursement, I do not wish to be misread. I
am not saying whatever anybody wants to put down as a fee, Itruly mean, fair, based on what services are necessary.

There is no doubt that some form of catastrophic health care isnecessary. It would be irresponsible for any physician or anyhealth care organization to oppose in principle this type of cover-
age. However, we must be extremely careful how we finance the
programs, so as to avoid denial of care, supposedly in the name of
cost containment, but in reality, to the financial benefits of anyprovider or insurers. But in trying to determine what service
should be covered and what reimbursement is fair, might I suggestto the committee that you carefully compare the plan that you areasking our senior citizens to accept with that plan which is nowavailable for Federal employees or retired military personnel. And
having had direct experience with that, I wish I could have insur-
ance coverage that would be as adequate and I would feel very
secure. I do net wish to say that those people are getting too much.I do that as a point of reference.

Since submitting my written remarks to you we have had moreexamples of people who cannot get into nursing homes becausethey don't have money. We have one man right now in the hospital
who is 93-years old who has been in and out of the hospital at an
extremely high cost. Because he is indigent, the hospital foots thebill on an indigent care plan which they have and which they areobligated to provide. This man has for 3 months now been on a
waiting list at a nursing home, and we accidently got ahold of the
administrator of that nursing home and he was embarrassed to re-alize that we knew that this man was being pessed over regularly
because no money was available. And we see that over and over.I practice medicine because I consider myself a professional. Ihave tried to give my patients adequate care. I do not want to seeany system that causes me to be an adversary or denies patientsthe care to which they are entitled. Within a few years I probably
am going to be on the other side of the coin. And I want to make
sure that while I had the opportunity that I took some part inhelping to shape something that was reasonable and gave us all achance to go on in our later years in a respectable manner.

I appreciate very much having had this opportunity. And I amavailable to the Senator at any time.
Senator SHELBY. Thank you, Doctor.
[The prepared statement of Dr. Goldstein follows:]
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Mr. Senator and Members of the Committee:

My name is Allan R. Goldstein. I am a physician pr....tieing in

Birmingham, AL. My comments today are booed on: (I) My professional

experience as a practicing specialist in internal medicine and pulmonary

diseases who secs patients regularly who suffer from catastrophic illness,

and (2) My own personal experience of having both of my parents die of

cancer

Catastrophic illness can be defined as any acute and/or chronic

Illness requiring hospitalization and/or nursing home care and/or the

regular use of medication that leads to an inability to be gainfully

employed and/or perform the activities of daily living.

For those with catastrophic health problems the availability of

services is not the problem. Rather, the financing of those services

limits the care that is received by the patient. Let me give some

examples: (1) A 75 year old man with recurrent lung infection responsive

only to injectable antibiotics. His f mil,/ was taught how to give the

medication and the patient had an intravenous line surgically placed

into a large vein in his ,hest. Medicare would not pay $75.00 per day

for home medication but would pay for three visits to a hospital

emergency room for the same medication at a cost of $105.00 per day.

Besides the increased cost to the system, the patient had to travel

twelve miles one way to reach the emergency room. The only alternative
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was hospitalization at a cost of $3500.00 for a tin das couro of

antibiotics or the patient would have to pay 5750.00 out of his can
pocket for that same treatment.

(2) A 70 year old man with replacement of a cardiac valve becm.e

of endocarditis. A post-operative course of antibiotics of six weeks
was indicated. Home care was possible but payment for antibiotics

was denied. The choices - continued stay in the hospital or a six to

seven thousand dollar cost to the family.

(3) Han), patients are denied coverage for continued care in

nursing homes for less expensive, but necessary services. These patients

then leave the acu-e hospital for their home where they receive

inadequate care an, are back in the hospital in a matter of weeks.

(4) Failure of t,t Medicare system to reimburse for influenza

vaccine, despite data documenting the increased morbidity, mortality

and hospitalization in senior citizens who do not receive the vaccine.

The result, preventable catastrophic illness.

The real problem is what method will be used to finance the

proposed catastrophic !lealth plan. It is very disturbing to me that

before the program i_ even in place, annual premium increases are

already planned for years two and three. The DRC system has not

adequately reimbursed for catastrophic illness and, unless it is altered,

will continue to discriminate against the seriously ill patient. The

CHP has been looked at as a possible answer. However, the experience of the
Marshfield Clinic is very sobering. Despite an efficient system

which decreased hospitalization by 252 per 1000 days, loss of $3,000,000

was realized because of inadequate reimbursement to the system. The

private insurance industry has not done all it can. Most Medigar

programs cover only the services and fees allowed by Medicare. This

leaves a significant gap in the amount charged vs. the amount paid.

This leads to increased costs to the senior citizen. The concept of

retrospective denial is also troublesome and may lead to increased costs

to our Medicare recipients. In retrospective denial, services already

provided are judged to be unnecessary and therefore not subject to
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had no direct contact with the patient. Not onl. ,ill i..t st, in ..,1 ill

increase in cost of heaitncare occause of rctrospective den.).. but th,

quality will decrcasc.

If catastrophic coverage Is paid for by capitation of 1i1f0',. ,10',

or private insurers, I fear we will see regular dental of servicet

because of the profit motivation. Capitation for Senior citizens .nd

as a way to prevent and reimburse for catastrophic illnesses Is il/o,2cd7

and cannot be based on any data obtained from insuring young, health.

people under a capitation program. To rake matters even worse, we hiv,

already seen examples of third party carriers changing billing Codes

so as to pay less for the services rendered to a patient. This, ultinatel),

leads to an increased cost to the patient.

There is no doubt that some form of catastrophic healthcare

-overage is necessary. It would be irresponsible for any physician or

healthcare organization to oppose, in principle, this type of coverage.

However. we must be eutremel) careful in how we finance this program

so as to avoid denial of care supposedly in the name of cost containment

but, in reality, for the financial benefits of any provider or insurer.

When trying to determine what services should be covered and what

reimbursement is fa:r, might I suggest to the Committee that vou care-

fully compare the plan that vou are asking our senior citizen, to accept

with the plan that is now avuilable for Federal employees and retired

militar) personnel.

Thank you vet, much for allowing ma to testify before you. I

hope that the final plan will place the medical needs of the citizens

of this county) ahead of politics or the vested interest of the feu.

122



119

Senator SHELBY. Mrs. Friedlander, your testimony of course
your written testimony will be made part of the record without ob-jection. And if you want sum up your Eitatement now for me, youmay.

STATEMENT OF BEVERLY L. FRIEDLANDER, SOCIAL NVCRK
SERVICES MANAGER, ST. VINCENT'S HOSPITAL, BIRMINrHAM,AL

Mrs. FRIEDLANDER. Thank you Senator Shelby. I would like to
say that I app:- 'iate very much having the opportunity to expressmy profession's perspective regarding the problems addressed heretoday. I represent St. Vincent s Hospital where I am employed asthe manager of the Social Work Services Department. As youknow, St. Vincent's Hospital is a part of the Daughters of CharityHealth Care System. Their mission for the next few years, begin-ning now, is to give top priority to the needs of the poor and elder-ly.

My department at St. Vincent's is responsible for assuring conti-nuity of health care for our hospital's patients. Because of that role,I feel that I'm very much an advocate for the elderly in addition torepresenting my institution here today.
I would like to address the long-term health care needs of the el-derly as the issue of importance today. Acute catabaophic illnessstrikes only 2 percent of the elderly population. For the other 98percent, it is the cost of long-term care that drains their individual

finances and strains the overall health care system.
Chronic disability among our Nation's elderly resulting from ar-thritis, cardio-vascular problems, lung disease, hearing and visionimpairments and mental disturbances causes this population tobecome increasingly dependent upon other people for assistance intheir daily lives. The disabled elderly require long-term sustainedand continuous care that includes monitoring of medications, mealpreparation, housekc .,ping and chore services, shopping and er-rands, intermittent or continuous personal care, rehabilitation andskilled nursing care. Approximately 30 percent of people over 65years of age require some assistance to function in their daily lives.About 18 percent of the elderly require major help from anotherperson. An additional 5 percent of the elderly need to be institu-

tionalized. Because of a rapid increase in the population over 65years of age, and particularly in those over age 85, our health caredelivtry systei must begin to address chronic disability as an ex-pectable condition for which provision must be made. It is projectedwhat one out of four adults over age 80 will require long-term careand that long-term care costs for those 80 and over will increasefivefold by the year 2030.
One of our primary goals in medical social work is to help ourelderly disabled patients postpone or avoid uninzessary nursinghome placement. The desire of ..nost older peopi,.. to remain in their

homes and communities, coupled with the high co..,t of institution-alized care, has created an increased demand for home and commu-nity based supi..4rtive services. Unfortunately, under the present
system, Medicare covers only a few of these servicesintermittent
personal care, rehabilitation, and flkilled nursing visits. TIe Medic-
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aid waiver program has made it possible for some people to obtain
other home based services including homemaker services, respite
care and case management; but there are only a limited number of
slots available under the Medicaid waiver program and the delays
in service implementation impede the continuity of care that is so
critical for patients leaving the hospital. In addition, only patients
covered under Supplemental Security Income are eligible for the
Medicaid waiver program, that is patients who have low income.
Only 4 percent of the elderly who need assistance with activities of
daily living, that any part of it is paid for by the Government.

Who then is providing for the long-term care needs of our aging
population? As the "informal" system of care, families provide the
vast majority of medically related supportive health and social
services. We have heard testimony today from two of those fami-
lies. Families take the disabled elderly into their homes when they
are no longer capable of independent living. These families respond
in emergencies, provide intermittent care, implement rehab proce-
dures and give emotional support; but at what cost? They also
suffer economic strain and as many as 50 percent experience signif-
icant mental health symptoms.

I would like to cite some representative cases from my hospital
experience to illustrate these points.

Mrs. M. is the granddaughter of a 93- year -old patient with severe
vascular disease. She is the only surviving family member left to
care for this aging patient. Mrs. M. has spent $40,000 over the last
4 years in trying to provide for the long-term health care needs of
her grandmother. She candidly admits that she feels much resent-
ment mixed in with her obvious concern and affection.

The second case is that of Mrs. C. who is the daughter of an 83-
year -old Alzheimer's patient. Mrs. C. is now in desperate need of
inpatient psychiatric treatment herself as a result of the emotional
strain of trying to hold down a job in order to provide for her moth-
er's daytime care and then providing total care for her after work-
ing hours. She wonders how she can afford or find the full-time
caregiver that she will have to provide for her mother when and if
she decides to be admitted to an inpatient psychiatric treatment
program. There are also opportunity costs incurred when spouses
and adult children have to leave the work force and focus on the
caregiving responsibility. In spite of the emotional and economic
strain, families will continue to provide for their aging relatives in
their homes until they can be convinced that their own health is at
risk or that the patient could be provided with more appropriate
care in an institution.

Unfortunately, when the patient enters the nursing home the
family's responsibility does not stop. In 1985, Medicare covered less
than 2 percent of the $35 billion spent on nursing home care last
year. Private insurance paid even less. Families paid more than
half, $18 billion, with Medicaid picking up the rest for those whose
resources were exhausted. Nursing home patients are expected to
"spend down" to Medicaid poverty levels. Now, let me state, that in
Alabama this means assets totaling nn more than $1,800 and that
includes your home and car. They re also expected to deplete the
inheritance they had intended to leave for their children. The
spouse that remains at home is lent with diminished resources from
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which to draw if he or she should become disabled and need long-
term health care services also.

As an advocate for the elderly and from my work in a hospital
setting, I would like to speak for those elderly disabled individuals
who do not have family. There is a real tragedy here as the situa-
tion becomes even more comilex and difficult in trying to obtain
long-term care. For the m9.;urity of our elderly patients whose hos-
pital stay extends well beyond the acceptable length of stay, there
is one simple reasonthere is no place for them to go. With no
family to sponsor them, patients cannot be admitted to most nurs-
ing homes with the exception of the County Home which has a
waiting list 6 months long. Given the limitations of home care serv-
ices covered by Medicare, returning home is not a feasible continu-
ing care option unless the patient can afford to hire full-time care.
Domiciliary care is an option only if the patient is not considered
bedbound", but the average cost of this type of care is $900 a
month. For most of our patients living on Social Security, this type
of care is simply not affordable. In most cases, the medical social
worker must seek court-ordered guardianship in order to appropri-
ately assess the patients' needs and get them into a nursing home
where they hopefully will be eligible for Medicaid coverage. The
guardianship process takes a minimum of 1 month. For these pa-
tients, the frustration of knowing that they will never return home
is compounded by the anxiety associated with nursing home place-
ment.

Our elderly patients and their families are continuously sur-
prised and dismayed to learn that Medicare and private insurance
coverage for long-term care is very limited. A 1984 study by the
American Association of Retired Persons found that 79 percent of
the potential aged consumers reported that they thought Medicare
covered them for long-term care, although it does not. Media mar-
keting methods perpetuate the myth by featuring well-known tele-
vision personalities who convince consumers that certain private
insurance policies will cover them for long-term care. Almost 70
percent of the elderly are covered by some form of medigap policy,
almost none of which cover continuity of care beyond the acute
stage This lack of awareness by aging families is the barrier to the
perception of long-term care as an economic catastrophe that
should be anticipated and insured against.

Many lawmakers realize that the current medigap policy propos-
al will affect only a small portion of the larger problemlong-term
care. Recently, several pieces of legislation that support improved
home health care coverage and incremental changes in nursinv
homes have been introduced. What is still needed is legislation that
will truly provide the elderly and their families with the "last full
measure of security" against the risk of catastrophic long-term
care. Several solutions should be included in any comprehensive
plan that addresses the problem of catastrophic illness.

Loosen the intermittent and homebound criteria for Medicare
home health care and institute a lase management function to
ensure that benefits are provided in the most cost-effective manner.

Explore the possibility of converting the Medicaid 2176 waiver
program into a State option under Medicaid with a requirement for
case management services.
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Explore options to prevent spousal/dependent impoverishment
under Medicaid such as a Federal/State loan program.

Authorize research and demonstrations for studying incentives
for increasing the availability of long-term care insurance and the
use of managed care approaches for improving long-term care bene-
fits under Medicare and Medicaid.

In closing, I would like to stress that protection for long-term
care needs will help families to do what they have been doing and
want to do to help the elderly, and would prevent family break-
down that results from the emotional and physical strain somany
experience. The issue, in terms of public policy, is to protect the
aging family as well as the disabled elderly individual from cata-
strophic need.

Senator SHELBY. Mrs. Friedlander, thank you very much for your
concern.

[The prepared statement of Mrs. Friedlander follows:}
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My name is Beverly L. Friedlander. I an the Manager of Social Work
Services at Sc. Vincent's Hospital in Birmingham,Alabama. My department
is responsible for assuring continuity of quality health care for our
hospital's patients - be it oupatient hospital care, home health care,
adult day care, assistance with basic physical and home management acti-
vities or nursing home care. I would like to address the real cata-
strophic issue of long term health care for our aging population.

You have heard testimony regarding the significant gaps in healLh
care coverage provided by Medicare and other insurance plans that are
now being gi" greater attention as the nation's population ages and
becomes more dependent on the health care delivery system. Given these
facts we should then turn to the basic truth of the problems that need
most to be addressed. First, acute catastrophic illness strikes only a
small percentage of the elderly, Medicare population. For the other 98
percent, it is the cost of long-term care that drains their individual
finances and strains cue health care system.

Chronic disability among our nations's elderly - resulting from
arthritis, heart and vascular problems, lung disease, hearing and vision
impairments and mental disturbances - causes this population to become
increasingly dependent upon others for assistance in their daily lives
for prolonged periods of time. The disabled elderly require long-term,
sustained and continuous care that includes monitoring of medications,

meal preparation, housekeeping and chore services, shopping and errands,
intermittent or continuous personal care, rehabilitation and skilled
nursing care. Approximately 30 percent of people over 65 years of age
require some assistance to function in their daily liven. About 18
percent of the elderly require major help from another person. An
additional 5 percent of the aged are institutionalized. Because of the
increase in the population over 65 years of age, and particularly in
those over age 85, our health delivery system must begin to address chronic

disability as an expectable condition for which provision must be made.
It is projected that one out of four adults over age 80 will require
long-term care and that long-term care costs for those 80-and-over will
increase five-fold by the year 2030.

Oae of our primary goals in medical social work is to help our elderly
disabled patients postpone or avoid unnecessary nursing home placement.
The desire of most older people to remain in their homes and communities -
coupled with the hign cost of institutionalized care - has created an
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increased demand for home and community based supportive services.
Unfortunately, under the present system, Medicare covers only a few
of these services - intermittent personal care, rehabilitation and skilled
nursing visits. The Medicaid waiver program can supplement these services
with homemaker services, case management and respite care, but there are
only a limited number of slots available under the waiver program and the
delays in service implementation impede the continuity of care that is

so critical for patients leaving the hospital. In addition, only patients
covered under Supplemental Security Income are eligible for the Medicaid
waiver program, i.e,pacients who have low incomes. Only 4 percent of the
elderly who need ADL assistance have any part of it paid for by the

Government.

Who then is providing for the long-term care needs of our aging
population? As the "informal" system of care, families provide the vast

ma3ority of medically related supportivc health and social services.
Families take the disabled elderly into their homes when they are no
longer capable of independent living. These families respond in emer-

gencies, provide intermittent care, implement rehab procedures, and give
emotional support; however, they also suffer economic strain and as
many as 50 percent experience significant mental health symptoms.

*Mrs. M., the granddaughter of a 93 year old patient with
severe vasular disease, is the only surviving family
member left to care for this aging patient. Mrs. M states

that she has spent $40,000 over the last four years in
trying to provide for the long term health care needs of

her grandmother. She candidly admits that she feels much
resentment mixed in with her obvious concern and affection.

*Mrs. C. is the daughter of an 83 year old Alzheimer's
patient. Mrs. C. is now in desperate need of inpatient
psychiatric treatment herself as a result of the emotional
strain of trying to hold down a job in order to provide for
her mother's daytime care and then providing total care for
her after working hours. She wonders how she can afford or
find the full-time caregiver that she will have to provide
for her mother when and if she decides to be admitted to an
inpatient psychiatric treatment program.

There are also opportunity costs incurred when spouses and adult children
are forced to leave their jobs to focus on the caregiving responsibility.
In spite of the economic and emotional strain, families will continue to
try to provide for their aging relatives in their homes until they can
be convinced that their own health is at risk and that the patient could
be provided with more appropriate care in an institution.

Unfortunately, the family's responsibility does not stop when the

patient enters the nursing home. In 1985, Medicare covered less than 2

percent of the $35 billion spent on nursing homes that year. Private

insurance paid even less. Families paid more than half, $18 billion, with
Medicaid picking up most of the remainder for those whose resources were
exhausted. Nursing home patients are expected to spend down to Medicaid
(poverty) levels (in Alabama, this means assets totalling no more than
$1700 including your home and car) and expected to deplete the inheritance

they had intended to leave for their children. The spouse that remains

at home is left with diminished resources from which to draw if he/she
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should become disabled and need long-term health care services also.

*Mrs. B. is the wife of a 75 year old chronic lung disease
patient who has recently been diagnosed with terminal cancer.
Mrs. B. realizes chat she will no longer be able to care
for her husband ac home but worries about spending half of
their combined savings on hit nursing home care until he is
"Medicaid eligible" because she still has an adult retarded
son at home to care for.

For those elderly, disabled patients who do not have families, tre
problem of obtaining long term care services becomes even more complex.
For the majority of our elderly patients whose hospital stay extends
well beyond the acceptable LOS based on intensity of service and severity
of illness criteria, the reason is simple -- there is no place for them
to go. With no family co sponsor them, patients cannot be admitted co

most nursing homes with the exception of the County Home which has a
waiting list six months long. Given the limitations of home care services
covered by Medicare, returning to the home is not a feasible continuing
care option unless the patient can afford to hire someone around the
clock co assist with activities of daily living (ADL, i.e., bathing,
feeding, dressing, mobility, cransfe-ring and toileting ). Domiciliary
care is an option only if the patient is not consiaered "bedbound," but
the rates for this type of care average around $900 a month. For most
oc our patients living on fixed Social Security incomes this type of care
is simpl not affordable. In most of these cases, the meoical social
worker mist seek court - ordered guardianship in order to appropriately

assess the patients' assets and get them into a nursing home where they
hopefully will be eligible for Medicaid coverage. The guardianship process
cakes a minimum of one month co finalize. For the patients who retain
some of their cognitive abilities, the frustration of knowing that they
cannot return home is compounded by their anxiety associated with the
dread of the musing home placement and the anticipated boredom and loss
of dignity and control that they fear will come with it.

Our elderly patients and their families are continually surprised
and dismayed to learn that the Medicare and private insurance coverage for
long-term care is very limited. A 1984 study by the American Association
for Retired Persons found that 79 percent of the potential aged consumers
reported that they thought Medicare covered chew for long-term care,
although it does not. Media marketing methods perpetuate the myth by
featuring well-known television personalities who convince consumers chat
certain private insurance policies will cover them for long-term care.
Almost 70 percent of the elderly are covered by some form of Medigap policy,
almost none of which cover continuity of care beyond the act.ce stage. This
lack of awareness by aging families is the barrier to the perception of
long-term care as an economic catastrophe that should be anticipated
and insured against.

There is general consensus that society's response to the needs of the
in_ividual and the family for continuity of care has been inappropriate and
inadequate. Many lawmakers realize that the current additional medigap
policy proposal providing protection against catastrophic extended hospital
stays will affect only a small portion of the 1-rger problem -- long term
care. Subsequently, several pieces of legislation that support improved
home health care coverage and incremental changes in nursing home and
other long-term care services have been introduced and are receiving some
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attention. What is still needed is legislation that will truly provide
the elderly and their families with the "last full measure of security"
against the risk of catastrophic long-term care. Protraction for loner
term care needs will help families to do what they have been doing and
want to do to help the elderly, and would prevent family breakdown that
results from the emot_onal and physical strain so many experience. The
issue, in terms of public policy, is to protect the aging family as well
as the elderly disabled individual from catastrophic need. The following
solutions should be included in any comprehensive plan that addresses
the problem of catastrophic illness:

* Loosen the intermittent and homebound criteria for Medicare
home health care and institute a case management function
to ensure that benefits are provided in the most cost-
effective manner;

* Explore the possibility of converting the Medicaid 2176
waiver program into a state option under Medicaid with a
requirement for case management services;

* Explore options to prevent spousal/dependent impoverishment
under Medicaid such as a federal/state loan program through
which a family could "borrow" against the beneficiary's estate
to weer he cost of long term care;

* Authorize research and demonstrations for studying incentives
for increasing the availability of long term care insurance
and the use of managed care approaches for improving long
tern care benefits under Medicare and Medicaid.
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Senator SHELBY. And next we will hear from Ms. Hermanson.
And may I say, that the record will remain open until April 30 if
you have anything else you would like to add.

STATEMENT OF KAREN HERMANSON, DIRECTOR, VISITING
NURSE ASSOCIATION, BIRMINGHAM, AL

Ms. HERMANSON. First of all, I want to express my gratitude to
you, Senator, for having us here for this hearing. I have been very
impressed with the testimony we have heard so far. I read the tes-
timony that was held at the joint committee hearings earlier this
year and I tried to read as much as I can about it.

One of the things I am struck with is the complexity of the issue
as demonstrated in the diversity of opinions. But the one thing I
want to mention is that there are a lot of similarities. So I restrict
my comments to, maybe, some of the newer points, the main
points.

Senator SHELBY. Like Dr. Goldstein pointed out. You have got to
cover a lot of ground because there are a lot of situations.

Ms. HERMANSON. Yes, there are. But there is a lot of complexity
and diversity, but there is also a lot of similarity. So I'll try to re-
strict my comments to the main points. as perhaps, I have already
submitted in my testimony.

The main thing that I read about and hear about is how much
will this thing cost? But my main point is how do we know how
much it is going to cost until we develop a system which is most
cost effective? If you are looking for how to fund the program, first
find the most cost-effective program and then fund that program.
What is cost effective? I think, cost effective is restoring that
victim of catastrophic illness back to a maximum level of a func-
tioning in the shortest time and at a reasonable cost. Whether it's
independence, or not, you need to restore the patient/family back
to their maximum level of independence. I think someone men-
tioned about the revolving door, let's just not just look at cata-
strophic illness as ending with a person being in a nursiiig hAme or
acute care setting, let's look at restoring them and bring them back
into the mainstream of life.

How do we do that? I think that we should focus on producing a
winning outcome for both the patient family and also the public at
large. Non-institutional programs that restore not only a patient,
but the family back to maximum functioning will reduce the over-
all cost of the system. I think the system should be approached by
producing a positive return on our health care investment. We
have to look at this in terms of an investment in many ways. Fun-
damentally, we believe that the return on our health care invest-
ment results from restoration of a patient/family unit back to func-
tioning as opposed to subsidizing the cost of institutional care. The
catastrophe as we see it, is in designing a system which promotes
dependence on the system as opposed to returning people to useful
and productive lives.

So how do we design a system like this? I think one of the things
we should do is build on the progress we have already made. From
a practical point of view, a catastrophic health plan doesn't need to
be built a-new, but rather should improve upon and eliminate the
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obstacles to the many and creative and cost-effective systems that
currently exist. There are examples of such programs taking place
across the Nation, where they can maintain a patient in the home
at 50 percent of the cost that would be incurred if the patient were
placed in a nursing home. Perhaps those programs could be the
foundation upon which we can develop a truly meaningful and cost
effective delivery system.

Right here in Alabama, our VNA, working with our e a agency
on aging, has used the concept of case management and home
based services to keep people in their homes and out of institu-
tions. This approach isn't very unique, but it is very practical in
maximizing the care of patients and minimizing the cost of the pa-
tient on the system. Over the past year, for instance, our communi-
ty based Medicaid waiver program has kept 144 individuals out of
the nursing home at a cost of less than $500 a month.

There are some problems we need to overcome first. One, which
has already been mentioned, is the need to close the widening gaps
in our cumat acute health care system before they become cata-
strophic in themselves. The U.S. General Accounting Office on Jan-
uary lOth of this year issued a report which shows that Medicare
bene'.iciaries are currently being deprived of the services that they
neeit and to which they were originally intended to receive. r AO
states in its report that Medicare beneficiaries are not receiving
the home care benefits to which they are entitled because the De-
partment of Health and Human Services and its contractors, the
intermediaries, have applied the rules too stringently.

We must address the fact that beneficiaries are currently not re-
ceiving coverage that Congress had intended for them to receive.
And I think you have heard some of that today. These gaps in the
system, as we call them, particularly, affect me as a home health
care provider. For instance, we now operate on a cost/minus
system and we struggle with reduced cost limits, increased denials,
restrictive and conflicting interpretation of Medicare regulations,
delayed payments and increasingly costly paperwork. I think Dr.
Goldstein already mentioned that with respect to denials of pay-ment to providers.

Although Medicare claims to have made no change in home
health care benefits, these problems, in effect, restrict a provider's
ability to render the service, thereby, restricting care to their cli-
ents in the Medicare and Medicaid Programs.

It seems that at the same time the Medicare prospective pay-
ment system (the DRG's) has pushed patients out of hospitals in a
"quicker and sicker" modeMedicare is depriving its beneficiaries
of their only alternativehome health services. As one spokesper-
son put it in previous testimony, "patients are now being dis-
charged from the hospital and into oblivion."

I think one of the things we need to do also, Senator, is to
remove the obstacles and disincentives to using multiple funding
sources to create effective and innovative forms of health care. The
ability to combine or offer multiple sources of funding enable the
health care provider to offer the necessary continuum of care you
have heard about today. This continuum will ensure that the pa-
tient receives no more and no less service than they really need.
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You might be surprised to find out that Medicare certified agen-
cies such as the VNA are penalized for providing cost based grant
programs to our communities. The cost finding procedures that
Medicare uses to allocate or, in my opinion, misallocate, overhead
to non-Medicare departments cost our agency $32,000 last year.

For instance, the Medicaid waiver program we have mentioned
earlier cost my agency an additional $24,000 in misallocated over-
head due to the Medicare costing procedures.

There is very little motivation for an agency to seek community
dollars to provide supportive services such as those which have
proven so helpful as mentioned earlier in my testimony. To me this
seems pennywise and pound foolish. We are able to maintain indi-
viduals in their homes, and it costs less than half of what it would
be for institutionalization.

Without these programs, specifically, Medicaid waivered services
and homemaker services (through the Older Americans Act), these
individuals have few options, if any, other than direct institutional-
ization or abandonment, which has also occurred. This would be
catastrophic indeed.

I think we should re-direct our spending priorities before we
reach the point of no return. The wave of our growing number of
older Americans will fit our Nation with unyielding force within
the next three decades. We don't have a whole lot of time to waste.

Health care needs brought on by environmental factors, cancer,
AIDS and debilitating diseases such as Alzheimer's disease will
consume disproportionate and catastrophic economic resources.
Yet, the amount of funding allocated to Alzheimer's disease, for in-
stance, is equal to what this country spends on one B-1 bomber.

Catastrophes may be avoided, not only by developing an effective
system of sickness related reimbursement, but also by directing
funds toward research and prevention of such devastating illness.

In summary, I think that a catastrophic health insurance plan
for Americans should: (1) Approach the issue as a return on our
health care investment by restoring or maximizing the potential of
patients for independent living through the use of home health
care, community based alternatives and supportive services. (2)
Build on the progress that we have already made in less costly,
non-institutional care models. (3) See the wisdom in structuring a
continuum of care by first closing the gaps in the current acute
care system before it undermines the total system. (4) Remove ob-
stacles and disincentives to using multiple funding sources to estab-
lish creative and innovative forms of health care. (5) Re-direct our
spending priorities so that solutions maybe found while they still
may be achievable.

I appreciate the opportunity to speak on behalf of community
based and home health care providers.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Hermanson follows:]

133



130

TESTIMONY OF KAREN HERMANSON

BEFORE THE FIELD HEARING OF THE U.S.SENATE

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON AGIqG

APRIL 16, 1987

U. S. COURTHOUSE - BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA

"THE CATASTROPHIC STATE OF CATASTROPHIC HEALTH CARE COVERAGE"

We commend Secretary Bowen and the Administration for the great strides
they have taken to initiate solutions for those who will become victims
of catastrophic illness. I have read the Bowen plan, as well as the
testimony held in the joint House and Senate Committee hearings earlier
this year and I have studied and reviewed articles to get a sense of
public reaction. The complexity of this issue is revealed in the diversity
of opinions, solutions and questions generated. Realizing this complexity,
I hope to approach this matter from the viewpoint of those of us in the
healthcare system who actually provide care for victims and their families
who have suffered a catastrophic illness.

FOCUS ( COST EFFECTIVE, NON INS'ITUTIONAL PROGRAMS TO RESTORE PATIENTS
AND THtift FAMILIES TO MAXIMUM FUNCTIONING

The approach to the system should he structured to focus on positive

financial and societal outcomes necessary to produce a positive return on
our health care investment. Fundamentally, we believe that the return on
our health care investment results from the restoration of a patient and
family to health and independence--not in the extension of costly
institutional care. The catastrophy, as we see it, is in not providing a
means for people to gain their maximum potential for returning to the
mainstream of life. The system should produce a win/win outcome, both
for the patient/family and also the public at large.

BUILD ON THE PROGRESS WE HAVE ALREADY MADE
From a practical point of view, a catastrophic health plan should not
build anew, but rather improve upon and eliminate obstacles to the many
creative and cast effective systems which currently exist. There are
examples of such programs taking place across our nation. Perhaps these
programs should be the grass roots upon which we can develop a foundation
for a truly meaningful and cost effective health care delivery system.

New York's Nursing Home Without Walls Program has shown that a patient
can be maintained in the home at 50% of the cost that would be incurred
if the patient were placed in a nursing home. Right here in Alabama our
agency, working with our Area Agency on Aging, has used the concept of
case management and home based services to keep the frail and categorically
needy in their homes and out of institutions. This approach is not
unique, but has been practical in maximizing the care and minimizing the
cost of people who otherwise would be institutionalized at greater and
catastrophic expense. Over the past year, our community based Medicaid
Waiver Program has been able to keep 144 individuals out of nursing homes
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BUILD ON THE PROGRESS WE HAVE ALREADY MADE (continued)

67-providing case management, home makers, personal care, respite care,
day cam and housekeeping services to clients at an average cost per case
of under :400 per month. Although these services are not considered to
be skiliad in nature, in comparison to a $1,400 average cost per month
for nursing home care, this alternative represents a significant return
on our health care investment.

CLOSE THE WIDENING GAPS IN OUR CURRENT ACUTE HEALTH CARE SYSTEM BEFORE THEY
BECOME CATASTROPHIC IN THEMSELVES
The U. S. General Accounting Office on January 10, 1987, issued a report
which shows that Medicare beneficiaries are being deprived of the services
that they need and to which they 'ere originally intended to receive. GAO
states in its report that Medicare beneficiaries are not receiving the
home care benefits to which they are entitled because HHS and its
contractors, the intermediaries. have applied the rules too stringently.
We must address the fact that beneficiaries are currently not receiving
the coverage that Congress had intended for them to receive. This coverage
has been eroded to the point that it is undermining the current Medicare
program. Medicare home health providers who now operate on a "cost minus"
system struggle with reduced cost limits, increased denials, restrictive
and conflicting interpretation of Medicare regulations, delayed payments
and increasingly costly paperwork. Although Medicare claims to have made
no change in the home health benefit, these problems in effect restrict a
provider's ability to render the services. At the same time that the
Medicare prospective payment system (DRG's) has pushed patients out of
hospitals in a "quicker and sicker" mode, Medicare is depriving its
beneficiaries of their only alternative. As one spokesperson put it,
the patients are now being discharged from the hospital into oblivion".

REMOVE OBSTACLES AND DISINCENTIVES TO USE MULTIPLE FUNDING SOURCES TO
ESTABLISH CREATIVE AND INNOVATIVE FORMS OF HEALTH CARE
The ability to combine or offer multiple programs enables health care
providers to offer a continuum of health care services. This insures that
patients receive no more or no less service than they actually need.
Most of you will be surprised that agencies such as the VNA are penalized
for providing cost based entitlement programs to our communities. The
cost finding procedures Medicare uses to allocate (or in this case,
misallocate) overhead to non Medicare departments cost our agency S32,000
in 1986. There is very little motivation for an agency to seek community
or entitlement dollars to provide supportive services such as those which
have proven so helpful as mentioned earlier in my testimony. "lo me this

seems penny wise and pound foolish. Ue are able to maintain individuals
in their homes and it costs less than half of what it would be for a
nursing home. Without these programs, specifically Medicaid Waivered
Services and Home Maker Services through the Older Americans Act, these
individuals would have few options, if any, other than direct institutionalization
or abandonment. This would be catastrophic indeed.
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REDIRECT OUR SPENDING PRIORITIES BEFORE WE REACH THE POINT OF NO RETURN
fine wave of our growing number of older AmelTaiii-OIT-FII-adi nation
with unyielding force within the next three decades. We do not have much
time to waste. Health care needs brought on by environmental factors,
cancer, AIDS and debilitating diseases. such as Alzheimer's disease, will
consume disproportionate and catastrophic economic resources. Yet the
amount of funding allocated to Alzheimer's disease, for instance, is
equal to what this country spends to buy one R-I bomber. Catastrophe may
be avoided not only by developing an effective system of sickness related
reimbursement, but also by di-ecting funds toward research and prevention
of such devastating illnesses.

In summary, the catastrophic health insurance plan for Americans should'
1) Approach the issue as a return on our health care investment

by focusing on restoring and/or maximizing the potential of
patients for independent livigg through the use of home health care,
community based alternatives and supportive services.

2) Build on the progress that has been made in our health care system,
especially those less costly, non institutional alternative care
modes.

3) See the wisdom in structuring a continuum of care by first closing
the gaps in the current acute care programs before they undermine
the total system.

4) Remove obstacles and disincentives to use multiple funding sources
to establish creative and innovative forms of health care.

5) Redirect our spending priorities so that solutions may be found
while they still may be achievable.

We appreciate the opportunity to speak on behalf of community based and
home health services and express our gratitude to those who solicit public
response regarding catastrophic health insurance.
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Senator SHELBY. Mr. Bolen, you may proceed.

STATEMENT OF JOSEPH BOLEN, VICE PRESIDENT OF PROVIDER
AFFAIRS, BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD OF ALABAMA

Mr. BOLEN. Thank you, Senator Shelby. I appreciate the kind re-
marks you made previously and I am honored that you invited me
here today.

I am Joe Bolen, vice president of Provider Affairs for Blue
Cross and Blue Shield of Alabama. I apdreciate the opportunity to
testify on catastrophic health care coverage. And we also share
your concerns about America's and Alabama's families from finan-
cial ruin of catastrophic health care.

Most Americuts who are confronted by high medial bills are
somewhat cushioned against the full financial impact of these ex-
penses by private insurance or public programs such as Medicare
and Medicaid. However, we understand that a large number of
people do not have such coverage. Even people who have health
care coverage can be confronted by catastrophic health care bills
for services that are not coveted or because there are expenses that
exhaust their benefit. Although catastrophic illnesses affect all age
groups, my comments will be limited to protecting the elderly from
financial catastrophic health care cost.

The elderly t onstitute in the population group the greatest risk
of incurring high health expenses. And instances of acute and
chronic illness is high among the elderly. They have the highest in-
stance of large medical expenses of any age group. Medicare pro-
vides basic coverage, but is limited with regard to coverage of nurs-
ing home care, long hospital stays, and physician coverage Given
that many of the elderly have relatively low fixed incomes, large
out-of-pocket medical expenses places a severe burden on them and
their family. The Medicare Program, at best, does not provide full
comprehensive protection aga'ast cost resulting from acute and
chronic illness. For acute illness the Medicare Program leaves the
beneficiary liable for substantial deductibles, co-payments on cover-
age services, and for a wide range of noncovered services such as
prescription drugs. For long-term care, the Medicare Program es-
sentially provides no coverage. The benefit of limitations of the
Medicare Program places bene;7ciaries at a risk for catastrophic ex-
r snses. The need of the elderly , T more comprehensive protection
is apparent.

We feel that private insurance such as medigap policies do dro-
vide somewhat of a cushion for acute care illnesses. They provide a
supplement to the traditional Medicare policies. However, they do
not address the long-term care aspect.

We also realize that there is a gap for the low income elderly,
the one that cannot afford medigap policies, a-ad this is a problem
that they are faced with in acute care catastrophic illnesses be-
cause they do not have medigap type policies. As I mentioned pre-
viously, the biggest gap we see is in long-term care coverage while
Medicare and medigap provide the elderly with reasonable protec-
tion from catastrophic acute care expenses. Long-term care is the
elderly's largest single out-of-pocket health care expense.
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There is a proposal in Congress now to incorporate catastrophic
coverage with Medicare. We feel this is a good first step in looking
at acute care catastrophic insurance. We would support this ap-
proach if the program -.3 designed so that the funding mechanism
does not create a burden on the low income beneficiary. Also we
feel that with this proposal in the Congress there needs to be a spe-
cial effort to be made in the area of beneficiary education to avoid
the confusion about the program. I think we're all aware that
there is so much confusion now that exists with the Medicare and
medigap policies about what is covered and not covered. We feel
the Congress should look at this and we should work together with
the local senior citizen agencies, churches, State and Federal Gov-
ernments to explain what Medicare covers and does not cover in
this new catastrophic plan.

It would not, necessarily, replace the medigap policy. We think
that it would be a disservice to the elderly if they felt that. the nevi
catastrophic plan in Congress would replace the medigap coverage.

In conclusion, we do feel that Blue Cross and Blue Shield and the
medigap policy does provide protection in acute catastrophic care.
There are other medigap policies that we feel also provide suffi-
cient coverage in this respect. However, WP do realize that there is
30 or 40 percent of the population that cannot afford medigap cov-
erage and this needs to be addressed to somehow providing assist-
ance for the purchase of some type of medigap gap coverage for
these type people. Also we feel that if Congress should incorporate
catastrophic benefits into the Medicare Program and should not
burden the cost on the low income elderly, then we will support
such a program.

In regards to long-term care, we feel that private long-term in-
Qurance can provide a system in which all parties would benefit.
Although the problem of protecting the elderly in catastrophic cost
is difficult and complex, we feel, that through a combined effort of
the public and ,he private sectors, solutions can be found. We look
forward to working with you Senator Sholby, thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Bolen follows:)
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Mr. Chairman. I am Joe Bolen. Vice President of Provider Affairs of

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Alabama. I appreciate this opportunity

to testify on catastrophic health care coverage and share your concern

about protecting America's and Alabama's families from the financial

ruin of catastrophic health care cost.

Most Americans who are confronted by high medical bills are cushioned

against the full financial impact of these expenses by private

insurance or public programs such as Medicare and Medicaid. A large

number of people, however, don't have such coverage. Even people who

have health care coverage can be confronted by catastruphic health

care bills for services that are not covered or because their expenses

exhaust their benefits. Although catastrophic illness affects all age

groups, my comments will be limited to protecting the elderly from

financially catastrophic health cost.

The elderly constitute the population group st greatest risk of

incurring high health expenses. The incidence of acute and chronic

illness is high among the elderly and they have the highest incidence

of large medical expenses of any age group. Medicare provides good

bas.: coverage, but is limited with regard to coverage for nursing

home care, long hospital s, and physician coverage. Given that

many of toe tiderly latively low fixed incomes, large

out-of-pocket medical exp. an place a severe burden on them and

their families.

1.1H



137

The Medicare program at present does not provide full conT;-ehensive

protection against costs resulting from acute or chronic illness. For

acute illnesses, the Medicare program leaves beneficiaries liable for

substantial deductibles and copayments on covered services, and for a

wide range of non-covered services. such as prescription drugs.

For long term care, the Medicare program essentially provides no

coverage.

The benefit limitations of the Medicare program places beneficiaries

at risk for catastrophic expenses. The need of the elderly for iaore

comprehensive protection is apparent.

Private Insurance Protects Most _Elderly from Acut, Care

Catastrophic Expense

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Alabama believes that the private market

has functioned well in providing protection against major financial

loss for acute care expenses of the majority of Medicare

beneficiaries. Most Medicare beneficiaries are protected against

excessive out-of-pocket costs for hospital and physician care by

private coverage whic-1 supplements Medicare benefits Medigap.
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Mai0X...Catfloh.aPzLOILIncOme_Eldotly
Without Supplemental Coverage

While we believe that the Medigap program offered by Blue Cross and

Blue Shield of Alabama and by some other companies is a "good buy" for

most beneficiaries, there are people who cannot afford this coverage.

Host of the beneficiaries without supplemental coverage say that they

simply cannot afford it. This has been confirmed by a Congressional

Budget Office analysis showing that low income beneficiaries are the

ones most likely to lack supplemental coverage. Thus, a major

coverage gap by Medicare, Medicaid, and private Medigap programs is

the failure to provide adequate coverage of acute care expenses for

the low income elderly.

L.ongTermLare -AnatherGau

The largest health care coverage gap for the elderly is the lack of

adequate protection for long term care. While Medicare and Medigap

provide the elderly with reasonable protection from catastrophic acute

care expenses, long term care is the elderly's largest single

out-of-pocket health expense.

ReepmendeslSolltions

The escalating cost of med:kcal care is putting more and more families

at risk for large out-of-pocket expenses. The cost of health care has

increased at a faster pace than has the cost of all other goods and

services. Cost containment techniques to keep the Medicare program

3
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solvent must be employed. Unless health care cost can be contained.

medical care coverage will not be affordable, either by government or

private sources for millions of Americans.

Recently. Medicare beneficiaries were permitted to opt out of

traditional Medicare coverage and join private Health Maintenance

Organizations (HMOs) or Competitive Medical Plans (CMPs). These plans

operate on a capitated, or "so-much-per-patient" basis. When a

Medicare beneficiary enrolls in such a plan. Medicare pays the Plan an

amount equivalent to 95% of what Medicare would have spent on behalf

of that individual had he or she remained under standard Medicare.

In exchange for this payment, the Plan must provide its members with

the basic services covered by Medicare. If it can provide those

services for less than the 95% of the amount, it earns a surplus that

it must share with the enrollees either in extra benefits or in

reduced cost sharing. If it can't, it must absorb the loss.

Many HMOs and CMPs are more comprehensive than Medicare. With an HMO

or CMP the deductible and copayment amounts are generally much smaller

than with Medicare or even may be nonexistent. Many such Plans offer

extra benefits such as eye exams and prescription drugs, which also

are not covered by Medicare.

Understandably, many benericiaries find CMPs and HMOs appealing. They

offer convenient, comprehensive, "one-stop" health care coverage,

which they cannot get through Medicare.

4
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Inurizorating_CatastrQphic Coorage_inisatzdic6ra

It has recently been proposed to incorporate acute care catastrophic

insurance protection into the i,:edicare program. We support this

approach if:

1. the program is designed so that the funding mechanism

does not create a burden on the low income beneficiaries;

2. a special effort be made in the area of beneficiary education

to avoid confusion about the program benefits.

In regard to the financing mechanism for such a new benefit, we

recommend against taxing a portion of the actuarial value of Medicare

benefits. We urge you to explore other options that wou:'d protect the

low income beneficiaries from the cost of such a benefit. Such

alternative financing mechanisms include:

1. an income related premium surcharge added to the tax liability

of beneficiaries who must file tax returns;

2. scaling out-of-pocket expense limits to the beneficiaries'

income or ability to pay.

5
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Beneficiary Education

Legislation to create such a benefit will result in some beneficiary

confusion. Studies indicate that many Medicare beneficiaries

presently feel that the Medicare benefits are greater than they

actually are. We are concerned that such a new program may give

beneficiaries an additional false sense of security that could lead

them to drop private coverage for the remaining acute care coverage

gaps and discourage public interest in long term care protection. A

special effort will be required by all concerned to minimize

beneficiary confusion over any new legislation for catastrophic cost

protection.

Effect of (?1Ps and HMOs

The effect that such a program may have on the development and growth

of alternate delivery systems should also be considered. If consumers

mistakenly feel that this new benefit provides complete or

comprehensive protection against the cost of acute illness, they may

be disinterested in comprehensive benefits that most HMOs or CMPs

offer. If such a benefit impedes the growth of Medicare QfP or HMO

enrollment. incentives for joining alternative delivery systems should

be explored by the Congress. If a catastrophic benefit added.

capitation payments to HMOs and QIPs must be adjusted upward to

reflect the estimated costs of such a benefit.

6
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LongTermiare

The largest coverage gap in protection against catastrophic health

care cost is long term care. This problem has been intensified due to

the effort to reduce length of stay in the acute hospital care

setting.

Host payment for acute care is covered through Medicare. Medicaid, and

private insurance, leaving out-of-pocket expenditures an almost

insignificant source. In contrast, however, nearly one-half of all

nursing home expenditures are paid from personal resources. Medicaid

pays nearly all of the rest.

A common misconception among the elderly and the public is that

payment for nursing home care is covered by Medicare. Medicare pays

for only about 2% of all nursing home care. This is due to the

extremely restrictive conditions for qualification and the limited

number of nursing home beds certified by Medicare.

Nursing home bills, upwards of $22,000 per year, can quickly deplete

savings and home equity. Many nursing home patients originally enter

these facilities as private pay patients, quickly exhaust their

personal financial resources, and then qualify for Medicaid coverage.

7
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Education in the area of Medicare and Medicaid benefits regarding long

term care should be intensified. The elderly need to realize that

Medicare and supplemental insurance do not cover long term care.

Also, the elderly must understand the financial implications of an

extended nursing home stay.

The public's perception that the government will assume the costs for

long term care must be changed. Individuals should be encouraged to_

assume more responsibility for their own potential risks of needing

long term care services.

Given that Medicare and Medicaid are not likely to incur greater

portions of long term care expenditures, long term care insurance

appears to be c solution to the problem. Blue Cross and Blue Shield

of Alabama is developing such a long term insurance product to assist

in this area by combining Home Care and Nursing Home Care on a service

basis to a Life Insurance product to attract the younger population to

the Program. This will allow long term funding and interest

comp)unding to provide a meaningful benefit. It is hoped that both

the state and federal government will lend support in our effort to

offer this product to the citizens of Alabama.

Providers, insurers, consumers, and government payers would benefit

from the availability of long term insurance.

8
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concluaim

In conclusion, Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Alabama believes we have

functioned flell in providing acute health care protection against

major financial loss for many of Alabama's Medicare beneficiaries

through our Medicare supplemental insurance program. We recognize

that there is a segment of the pop,.ation which simply cannot afford

this private protection. Therefore, we would urge you to consider

methods of special financial assistance for the purchase of private

coverage.

All third party payers must continue in their efforts to contain the

rapidly escalating cost of health care through utilization review,

preadmission certification processes, and other proirams. Unless

health care cost can be contained at a reasonable level, adequate

health care coverage will be too expensive for government, private

business, and individuals to purchase.

If catastrophic benefits are incorporated in the Medicare program, and

the low income elderly are not burdened with the cost of such a

program, we would support such legislation.

In regard to long term care, we feel that private long term insurance

can provide a system in which all involved parties would benefit.

Although the proble,, of protecting the elri,rly from c2'.astrc,phic rest

is difficult and complex, we fecl that through a co-tined effort of

the public and private sectors, solutions can be found. Blue Cross

and Blue Shield of Alabama looks forward to working with you on this

most unportant issue. I .ppreciate the opportunity to share our views

with you.
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Senator SHELBY. I thank all ofyou.
Dr. Goldstein, how many of your patients supplement their Medi-

care coverage with private supplemental insurance or a medigap
plan in your best judgment?

Dr. GoLnerEni. In my best judgment, probably, 85 to 90 percent
of them.

Senator SHELBY. 85 to 90 percent?
Dr. GOLDSTEIN. Yes.
Senator SHELBY. Do you find that a lot of your patients are cogni-

zant to what is and what is not covered under their plans?
Dr., GOLDSTEIN. Oh, they're not. I can tell you right now, I'm not

aware of what's covered. In fact, in this folder I keep with me all
the time what Medicare benefits are. I can't keep track of what allof the

Senator SHELBY. And you're a practicing physician dealing with
it everyday?

Dr. GOLDSTEIN. If I didn't have the ladies in the insurance de-
partment I would be in major trouble.

Senator SHELBY. Dr. Goldstein, since you're the physician at the
panel, I'm directing a few questions to you. What has been your
experience on home health care? Do you find that quality of serv-
ice of both home health care agencies and nursing home facilities
to be okay, to be mediocre, to 1-e improved? I would like to have
your judgment.

Dr. GOLDSTEIN. You have hit my favorite topic and I appreciate
that. In general, we have had good results with home health care
agencies. The problem that I find is that I don't have any contact
directly with the individual, in most cases, gcing out to see my pa-
tient. I have no idea whether the individual has a lot of qualifica-
tions, no qualifications, whether they understand exactly what I
want done. I get phone calls regularly. Most of the phone calls are
from the nurses who visited the patient and are very appropriate. I
get good information. Occasionally I don't, but I think that is true
of any system. I think there is a major lack in the system, that of
not working together. There is no continuum of the acute care pa-
tient who is seen by social service discharge planning, hospice
nurse or whatever it happens to be in the hospital, and then the
continuum of the home health agency and then rehab, et cetera, et
cetera. One of the concerns I have is there is some rumor now that
we may be getting ready to see third party carriers drop financial
supoort for rehab. That would be a disaster. We might as well just
not let people go on home who are chronically ill because they
cannot be taken care of at home. The restrictive rules at home are
terrible. We had one patient who couldn't get dialysis because if
she left the house to get her dialysis she wasn't homebound. If she
was homebound she could get her nursing care.

Senator SHELBY. Those are ridiculous rules, aren't they?
Dr. GOLDSTEIN. That's right. And the rules are restrictive and

some of the problem, and I mean this with all sincerity. Laws are
passed, somebody writes rules and regulations and down the line
somebody interprets those.

Senator SHELBY. That's right.
Dr. GOLDSTEIN. And in my experience recently so many interpre-

tations have been less than acceptable. And Joe and I talk a lot
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and write letters to each other a lot and have some debates that I
think both of us are trying to obtain the same thing.

Senator SHELBY. What we're really wanting is the system to
work, isn't it?

Dr. GOLDSTEIN. That's correct.
Senator SHELBY. Doctor, one last question. In your opinion, do

you believe that patients do better physically, mentally, and spir-
itually at home receiving home care er in a nursing home?

Dr. Cromerm. Well, I think that is easy from the standpoint of
the patients I care for and what happened to my parents. People
want to be in their own home. My mother took on a giant bill for
herself just to have the privilege, and that's what she calls it, a
privilege of dying in her own bed because she knew the illness that
she had could not be cured. And she approached death in a very
dignified way and she taught me a lot in her illness. And I apply
that everyday to the patients that I see. People don't want to be in
nursing homes, it takes ay.-ay the dignity that you and I live with
everyday.

Senator SHELBY. Thank you. Mrs. Friedlander, as you're very
aware, Medicare's Prospective Payment System, PPS, provides an
incentive for hospitals to release patients sooner than was the case
under the old open-ended reimbursement system. it's not always
bad that this is true, as long as we have adequate and quality post-
hospital services available. You're involved in this. However, since
the enactment of the Prospective Payment System, hospital dis-
charges have increased by 37 percent, but the growth of home
health services since then has slowed. In January 1987, the Gener-
al Accounting Office, the watchdog for Congress, surveyed hospital
discharge planners, and found that 97 percent of 850 of the Na-
tion's hospitals discharge planners, are having problems placing
Medicare patients in skilled nursing facilities. And 86 percent of
this group reported problems with some home health care place-
ment. According to the report and I quote "Medicare program rules
and regulations were cited as the most important barrier to placing
Medicare patients in both skilled nursing facilities and home
health care." Do you agree with that?

Mrs. FRIEDLANDER. Definitely. Thank you for saying it.
Senator SHELBY. That's what Dr. Goldstein is also saying. Do you

agree with that?
Ms. HERMANSON. I certainly do.
Senator SHELBY. What about you Mr. Bolen?
Mr. BOLEN. Yes.
Senator SHELBY. And you're dealing with thisyou as a practic-

ing physician are dealing everydayyou're dealing at the hospital,
you're dealing with a nursing aspect and you're dealing as provid-
er, are you not, in every aspect of health care?

Mr. BOLEN. Yes.
Senator SHELBY. So like Dr. Goldstein pointed out, oftentimes it's

the interpretation of the laws and/or regulations that cause more
trouble than anything, isn't it?

Mr. BOLEN. Yes, sir.
Senator SHELBY. If you had a one priority and you could sum it

up in just a minute, each one of you, what would your priority be?
You have heard the witnesses. We have got to have a comprehen-
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sive approach. And yet, all the elderly don't need the same thing.
What would you recommend to this committee that we do?

Mr. Bolen, we'll take you. Since you have been coming last, we'll
take you first.

Mr. BOLEN. The first thing I would -ecommend to the committee
is we need to spend more time on .,ducation of the beneficiary
about exactly what they have. There is just so much confusion
about when they go to the physician or to the hospital. They think
everything is covered and it's not and there is some misinterpreta-
tion there.

So my main priority at this point is to somehow, through the dif-
ferent agencies available, try to make them understand exactly
what they have and need at a early age in life so they won't be
faced with uncovered expenses such as long-term care.

Senator SHELBY. And that's the dissemination of information andthat's harti.
Mr. BOLEN. Yes. It's real hard, I realize.
Senator SHELBY. Mrs. Friedlander, what P. Jour No. 1 priority.
Mrs. FRIEDLANDER. I think if I had just one thing to emphasize it

would be that the committee please consider the issue of long-term
care; that it is not the bottomless pit that so many people seem to
think it is We have tiready heard today from people who have ex-
plained that a continuum of care is so critical for our natients. If
we can work on developing and ensuring communit :nd home-
based support services, we can ....Ave money in the lop., an, and the
care that the elderly need in order to remain in theu homes and
communities can be provided in a cost effective manner.

Senator SHELBY. Thank you. Dr. Goldstein.
Dr. GOLDSTEIN. I would like to see a system that looks at cost

,ise, efficient care of people and not based on budgetary restraint
or the GNP.

Senator SHELBY. Ms. Hermanson.
Ms. HERMANSON. What Mrs. Friedlander said is what I would

say. in addition, we need to identify the current problems in our
system such as Medicare restrictions on home health care. Ther
are barriers to providing care now in our current acute care syl-
tems which need to be rectified before we add on more problems.
So I would like to cite Beverly and fix the current system and then
add on to it so that it all makes sense.

Senator SHELBY. I want to thank this panel particularly, the last
panel, for appearing here, taking off from your schedules and your
various professions to add ycur testimony and your experiences to
this field hearing.

And I Is° want to thank the other people that preceded you
here today. And lastly, I want to thank all of you that came to the
hearing because you're concerned about health care in America
and, particularly, catastrophic health care.

This is, I believe, good for me and it was good for Senator Heflin
and I wished he could have aged, but he couldn't do that, he had
a busy schedule.

I am going to take this testimony and it will be a part of the field
hearing record on this issue and it will help me better understand
the problem. I think if we had more field hearings in the United
States from Members of the House and Members of the Senate, it
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would give us a firsthand appreciation of the real problems and,
perhaps, how to solve them. I think we need to come home more
often and learn something.

Thank you again, everybody.
'[Senator Shelby would like to make his concluding statement a

part of the hearing record at this point:]
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CLOSUG STATEMENT BY SENATOR RICHARD SH...DY

Thank you all for being here this morning and for giving of
your time and your expertise. I nk the victims, who have
told their stories straight from the heart. As they say,
nothing speaks like experience. I thank the advocates: from

AARP, NARFE, Jefferson County Office of Senior Citizens and
Focus On Senior Citizens, who give of their time each day to see
to it that the needs and comforts of thousands of Alabama's
older citizens are met. I thank Dr. Bridgers and Dr. Schnaper
of UAB, for sharing with us their knowledge acquired after many,
many long days and nights of dedicatec, research. And finally,
thank you to our providers: Dr. Goldstein, Mrs. Friedlander, Ms.
Hermanson and Mr. Bolen, for their hands on and realistic
approach to this issue.

Today, we have learned that there are some very serious

gaps in the health care coverage of the Medica s program. These
gaps leave the elderly susceptible to the devastation of
catastrophic illness. Added to that problem, we know that, at
any given time, over 30 million Americans under age 65 are
without health insurance. If we, in Congress, can work together

with the private sector on many of the ideas we discussed today,
I believe we will be able to formulate a catastrophic illness
plan that will make all of us proud. Thark you all again for
assisting us in reaching our goal.

The official record for this hearing will be kept open
until the 30th of April for any additional written testimony.
This field hearing is hereby adjourned.
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MATERIAL RELATED TO HEARING
ITEM

ALABAMA STATE CHIROPRACTIC
ASSOCIATION

134 High Street
Montgomery, Alabama 36104

(205) 262-2228

April 16, 1987

The Honorable Richard Shelby
516 Hart Senate Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Senator Shelby,

On behalf of t'e Alabama State Chiropractic Association may
I express our appreciation for your kind invitation to be apart
of your first hearing for the United States Senate Special
Committee on Aging in Birmingham.

Enclosed are some thoughts on the issue of Catastrophic
Health Care Coverage, Hopefully, they will high-light problems
of the aging as well as expand your pool of information on the
issue.

Thank you for allowing us to be a part of this hearing.

Sincerely,

/

P. Regin4ld Hug, D.C.
National Legislative Chairman
P. O. Box 43547
Birmingham, Al 35243

CLYDE L. SHOWN, D.C. RICHARD COOK, D.C. MARGARET RAKER, D.C. HAROLD MERGE. D.C.PRESIDENT GUNMAN OE THE OCIARD TECEETART-TREASURER PAIILMMEHTAIIIAN

WILLIAM D. GODIEY, D.C. JOHN R. PEACOCK D.C. P. REGINALD HUG. D.C.mum mina mum
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* At retirement, most Americans now face what amounts to a whole
new generations of life. A man turning 65 can look forward on
average to 15 more years; a woman 19 more years.

* Since 1900, life expectancy at birth has gained 26 years,
almost as much as had been accumulated in the preceding 5,000
years.

* Five of those years are attributable to reduced death rates in
those over 65.

* Hence, the Longevity Revolution -- causing major social and
political shifts.

* If present trends continue, the number of elderly will double
to about 60 million by the year 2020.

* Though the poverty r...e for the elderly has dropped in the
last 20 years, many more are considered economically
vulnerable. But, still, there are many more children in
poverty than there are elderly Americans. This sets up a
possible future conflict between generations.

* People over 85 are one of th9 fastest growing segments of the
population -- the group amount the elderly which tends to
be the sickest and the poorest.

* A recent HHS survey of Medicare beneficiaries '.ound that
between 17% and 33% of elderly Americans have more that one
health insurance policy to supplement Medicare coverage.

* Although as many as 1/3 of the elderly purchase Medigap
policies, the government cannot determine whether the
coverage is duplicative or complementary.

* Consumer knowledge of insurance benefits varies according to
frequency of use. Although knowledge of physician office
visit benefits was high, knowledge of skilled nursing
coverage was low.

* Less than half understood what was covered when it came to
skilled nursing facilities or custodial care, but more than
half understood prescription drug and Part B coinsurance
requirements.

* HHS says it "sees no need" fJr federal oversight of Medigap
policies, preferring state regulation instead. HHS says
states can improve beneficiary understanding by setting
minimum benefit standards and loss ratios, dispensing buyers'
guides, requiring labelling of non-Medicare supplemental
policies, and by publicizing incidents in which companies
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agents are found guilty of misconduct.

* As creatures of state licensing procedures, chiropractic
physician have always relied upon state regulation and have
successfully looked to state regulation and state legislative
initiatives to guarantee state equality.

* This system has worked admirably for many decades.

* The system was frustrated to a very large degree by the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, and ERISA's
preemption of state insurance regulatory law.

* Where the states have fought to provide a degree of freedom of
choice of health care provider to all insurance beneficiaries,
ERISA preempts these state laws as well as state mandate,
benefit laws, and offers no such :ommensurate protection
through federal regulatory mechanisms.

* Therefore, the Chiropractic profession looks with some
skepticism at a federal effort or oversight of insurance
policies -- be they Medicap or any other type of policy. This
is particulary true if it means tinkering with state law-
making authority -- through preemption by federal law.
Although well-meaning in a search for national uniformity,
federal action in this regard too often neglects the
complexities involved with federal preemption of state laws
and fails to see the full ramification of its effort --
again, witness the ERISA preemptions.

* Certainly, we believe there should be some uniformity from
state to state in the minimum requirements a state should
impose -- and perhapstIn lies the federal role -- but
oversight and regulation of insurance should remain within the
province of the several states.

* Whether we are talking about Medicare, Medigap coverage,
federal emrloyee health-care coverage, catastrophic and/or
long-term care coverage, the federal government ,hould be the
first to encourage, through legislation and regulation, the
tenets of freedom of choice -- a beneficiary's right to choose
who will provide health-care services to that patients.

* The Social Security Act providing for the basic Medicare
system provides for Medicare beneficiaries freedom to choose
the physician of choice. (Section 1802, SSA - "Freedom ky,
Patient Guaranteed. Any individual entitled to insurance
benefits under this title may obtain health services from any
institution, agency, or person qualified to participate under
this title of such institution, agency, or person undertakes
to provide him such service.")
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* Unfortunately, as it pertains to the services of several
physician providers, limitations of Medicare coverage
frustrates the real goal of freedom of choice. Medicare does
not provide for full-service reimbursement for the services of
many licensed health-care providers; this is an economic
barrier co the beneficiary which dilutes his or her real
freedom to choose and negatively governs the patient's actions
in seeking health care.

* Medicare reimbursement for chiropractic services, for
instance, is limited to only one service!

* Chiropractic physicians ?Le educated, trained and licensed to
provide a wider range of hcalth-care services, including
adjunctive physiotherapy services, all without hospitalization
or prescription drugs -- two of the real high cost items in
the care of the elderly.

* The elderly do avail themselves of these non-covered services.
Doctors of chiropractic treated 12 million patients in 1980,
and of those, about 15.1% were estimated to be over 65 years
of age. This cost Medicare only about 8100 million.

* Those over 65 received chiropractic treatment over and above
that reimbursed under Medicare. It was financed either by
individual health benefits insurance or out-of-pocket
expenditures. But is was demanded.

* Some elderly are unable to independently pay for the full
treatmeat they need from a chiropractor, so they either don't
receive it, or they go to a physician defined under Medicare
as capable of receiving -eimbursement for the required
treatment. Although in most instances a chiropractor can
provide the same services at a lower cost, because of
financial restraints the elderly patient is forced to seek out
more expensive care that can be reimbursed under Medicare.

* Reimbursing a patient for services rendered by one qualified
class of physician and not for those rendered by an equally
qualified alternative class of physician interferes with a
patient's freedom of choice -- again, it is an economic
disincentive to freedom of choice which stiffles health-care
practitioner competition and leads to increased cost in
health-care.

* Those disincentives need to be removed from law, by assuring
that a Medicare and Medigap beneficiary may be reimbursed for
diagnostic and treatment services for any particular condition
covered by those public and private insurance policies when
provided by any licensed physician of the patient's choice.
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This allows the patient the options associated with being able
to "shop around" for not only the highest quality of care, but
care at a reasonable cost which is performed by a practitioner
with whom the patient can feel at most ease -- a quality in
elderly health care that cannot be overlooked.

* If a chiropractor can, under his or her specific state
licensure law perform the services required to treat a
condition, the chiropractic patient ought not be forced for
economic reasons to seek those identical services from another
physician who may be allow to receive reimbursement undt-r the
law.

1 In addition, the laws need to be changed and standards set to
prohibit situations where the federal government mandates
dangerous and expensive diagnostic procedures -- as
stipulations to further health-care treatment -- giving no
discretion to the attending physician as to whether to employ
the procedure and, most importantly, not reimbursing the
patient for the federally-mandated diagnostic services.

* At present, Medicare law requires that a doctor of
chiropractic take an x-ray of a Medicare beneficiary before
further treatment may proceed. There is no consideration
yi"en to the advisability of such an x-ray -- itF necessity or
the impact of needless radiation on an elderly patient -- and
the D.C. is given no flexibility to use alternative diagnostic
measures -- in his or her judgment, for the benefit of the
patient -- and does not take x-rays, such behavior jeopardizes
his patient's reimbursement under Medicare.

* Such requirement impose on a physician's diagnostic and
treatment protocol, and when the requirements are not
reimbursed, they impose on the patient not only the risk of
over- or needless exposure to radiation, but an increased
financial burden, as well for the privilege of being exposed -
- at the federal government's direction -- to the x-ray.

* The chiropractic x-ray requirement contained in law really is
like an "admission fee" or "pool tax" for chiropractic
services. The patient pays the admission fee -- through the
non - reimbursable mandatory x-ray --(that may or may not be
necessary for further treatment) before further treatment may
even be considered. Its also akin to the government re
quiring Birmingham to tmild a new sewage treatment plant --
but not putting any federal funding toward the new facility's
planning or construction.

* Public and private insurance do not take into adequate
consideration the need for preventive health-care maintenance
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and attention to nutrition, either.

* That portion of the elderly plagued with poor nutrition are
also those least likely to be able to afford the type of
services or counseling necessary to alleviate their plight.

* Good nutritional status not only keeps an elderly patient's
health , it improves a patient's overall well-being and
enhances the effectiveness of health-care treatment.

* Only 1% of all federal health dollars are ent on prevention.
A small increase in this investment alone cou - save billions
of dollars that ordinarily would be spent not only on the
elderly, but on infants and children and all other segments of
the national population as well. Poor Richard is not out of
fashion -- an ounce of prevention is still worth a pound of
cure. And where traditional medical care may not be geared to
deal with "human preventive maintenance", it is nonetheless
critical to present-day and future health -care requirements.

* The profile of our Nation's health -care needs has changed
since Medicare was enacted in 1965. It is now as important to
insure against the risk of chronic illness as that of acute
illness.

* Although today's elderly, as a group, are significantly better
off financially than their parents, and are expected to
improve their financial situation even further over the next
25 years, the blows associated with long-term care concerns
come at a time when the elderly are already paying
significantly more out-of-pocket medical costs than their
counterparts were when Medicare was first enacted. They are
also plagued by a general acceptance today that one who is
eld -ly must first ruin themselves financially by providing
their own care before turning for public help.

* The Longevity Revolution has collided with a health care
system geared to treat 40-year-olds.

* Older Americans may be the country's biggest consumer of
medical services, but Medicare does not cover i.hat some older
people need the most: long-term care. About 1/3 of health
care spending is for 12% of the population - those over 65.

* Although 80% of the elderly will never have to go to a nursing
home, there is nonetheless a high lever anxiety among all the
elderly as it relates to this possibility.

* Congress has its eyes on the wrong catastrophe. The real
financial disaster that lurks for may older Americans lied not
in hospitalization, but with long-term care -- the prolonged
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care of the chronically ill in nursing homes or in their own
home.

* "Trying to solve the catastrophic illness problem by better
hospital coverage is like solving the cost of automobile
accidents through better air-travel insurance." -- Dr. Robert
L. Kane, Dean of the Univeristy of MN School of Public Health.

* The goal should be better coverage for long-term care that
includes a full range of health and social services needed by
people with chronic disabilities which impair their ability to
perform basic tasks of daily living.

* Unless we are able to achieve greater continuity between acute
and long-term care services, we will never have an effectively
managed health-care system. For example, incomplete
rehabilitation from an acute hospitalization may result in
long-term dependency.

* Insurance coverage is often tied to institutional care and
forces many people into a difficult choice -- moving into an
Institution versus little or no care at all.

* Coverage for home care under Medicare and Medicaid is quite
limited and is tied to expenditures ordered by physicians for
those on a clear path to recovery; coverage is more oriented
to equipment and institutions than to custodial needs.

* The irony is that despite roughly $120 billion dollars per
year in federal and state outlays for Medicare and Medicaid,
they are often not there when you really need them. Those
programs have always reflected a bias toward front-end
coverage, with back-end exposure to unusually-high outlays;
this is just the opposite of what insurance is supposed to
do. And, the programs have always reflected a bias against
care outside the institution. Finally, they originally also
reflected a poorly-conceived cost-based reimbursement system.
Here, at least, the federal government can poil,b with pride to
some real progress in recent years although there are battles
left to be fought, as anyone who examines the way Medicare
pays doctors realizes.

* Parenthetically for a moment on the topic of physician
reimbursement. Public and private entities must keep in mind
one inalterable fact. When it comes to patient treatment, the
doctor is alone out there with his or her patient. Regardless
of what the care costs in the minds of any entity -- public or
private -- it is the physician who by ethics and legal
requirements must afford the highest possible care to that
patient, regardless of cost. With all due respect _o peer
review -- and that certainly is necessary to police any
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profession from abuse -- it is the individual attending
physician who must still make the calls and be able to live
with him- or herself after all is said and done. It will
continue to be very difficult to place the services of a
physician within the constraints of cost-containment without
the serious possibility of erosion in services. Afterall,
physicians are human, too.

* While no one can certai^'y continue to allow health-care costs
to increase at the rated they have in years past, those who
look to contain costs cannot continue to look only to the
physician as a means to that end.

* The government only mimicked the system it found in the
private sector when it established Medicare and Medicaid. In
fact, transporting that system, lock, stock, and barrel, from
the world of private insurance into the new public programs
was a part of the deal that brought them to life.

* Private insurance for long -term care is also quite ltmAted;
generally speaking, it rounds out and fills in what Medicare
covers, but does not real'y complement Medicare and Medicaid
in any meaningful sense. Private coverage mirrors public
programs in many ways, adopting many of the same coverage
restrictions found in the public sector. There is very little
private coverage for home care, particulary of a custodial
nature.

* Both public and private health coverage, then, are tied to the
standard medical model and to health-care in an institutional
setting. Yet, we know that increasingly the need is occurring
outside of institutional setting and outside the traditional
medical model. Of course we need standard medicine and basic
research, but we also need much more emphasis on gerontology,
social services, and support for families providing long- term
care to a relative, and the alternatives to standard medicine
available today to provide these services.

* Even a few weeks of visiting nurses, home health care, or paid
companionship can amount to a sizable amount of money.
Medicaid does not help until resources are totally dried up.
And, many of these home care services, as noted earlier, are
not covered by private insurance.

* Out of pocket expenditures for health-care accounted for 20
percent or more of annual income for an estimated 4.3 percent
of all Americans, according to one estimate (Berki, Health
Afairs, Winter 1986). But, among those with incomes-b7M7
$12,000 a year, the corresponding figure .'1s 8.7 percent, or
twice as high. Indeed, according to the figures presented by
Berki, based on the NEMCES Survey, 18.4 percent of those with
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incomes equal to or below the federal poverty threshold spent
20 percent or more of their incomes on out-of-pocket medical
expense. This is a stark reminder that catastrophic level
medical expenses might be as "low" as $3,000 (not necessarily
the $50,000 or $100,000 often depicted as the catastrophic
problem) if the family's income is around the poverty line
level.

* Ideally, Medicare should be expanded in a service-neutral
approach, with the identification of services provided based
on the elderly person's need rather than what Medicare will or
will not pay for. If the federal government chooses instead
to expand specific services, the focus should be on services
needed to remain at home, recognizing the quasi-medical or
non-medical nature of many of these services. Such services
might be funded through the Social Services Block Grant and
could include:

-- meals
-- personal hygiene
-- assistance with intravenous feeding
-- home safety to avoid accidents
-- transportation to physicians'
-- in short, assistance with daily living

* The Reagan Presidency, while not performing particularly
spectacularly in the reduction of the Federal deficit, has
instilled, nonetheless, a new concern for austerity and for
knowing how we are going to pay for "new" or "expanded"
federal programs.

* We have no magical ideas on how to pay for expanded coverage
for the elderly, except to say that whatever mechanism is
finally fashioned it must be predictable so that adequate
planning can be done not only by the government, but, most
importantly, the elderly beneficiary. '

* The twilight of life is no time to impose unpredictability or
additional anxieties.

16`)4,
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ITEH 2

Alzheimer's Disease
and Related Disorders Association, Inc.

P 0. Box 9272, Mobile, Alabama
3669W221)6.18-455I Ext 520

1981 APH 23

April 14,, 1987

Senator Richard She' ./
516 Hart Senate Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Senator Shelby:

I was pleased to learn that you are holding a hearing In Birmingham
on April 16, 1987 on "The Catastrophic State of Catastrophic
Health Care Coverage". Since I will be unable to attend, I
would like to voice my concerns to you by letter.

I have served as President of the Alzheimer's Disease and Related
Disorders Association, Inc. - Greater Mobile Chapter for the
past three years. My interest in Alzheimer's disease cares
from the fact that my Mother was a victim for 17 years. There
are presently an estimated 39,000 victims in the State of Alabama
and 3,000 in Mobile and Baldwin Counties. Alzheimer's disease
victims live from 2-20 years. The average length of time they
live is 8-10 years. There is currently no help for Alzheimer's
disease victims except for the Medicaid programs which serve
only impoverished persons in need of skilled nursing care.
Unfortunately, although an AD victim can be totally incapacitated-
not able to walk, talk, or feed themselves, the care is considered
to be custodial. The families of the 21 million victims are
for the most part footing the 40 billion dollar per year costof caring for the patients. Families are being financially
devastated as they care for their loved one. I am very much
in favor of a Catastrophic Health Care Bill, but one that will
pay for nursing have care--not one that will pay for care in
a hospital only. Why should thousands of our elderly citizens
pay $5.00 per month to help pay for catastrophic care in a hospital
for a few individuals when they themselves are privately paying
for the care of their family mdiker in a nursing hone. This
issue is of utmost importance to all of us as we are all "getting
there".

Thank you so very much for your concern and consideration of
this vital issue.

Sincerely,

;,5

Bunnie E. Sutton

A r4,(4,01( Cnancabl. tax O. 01/.... WOOOft ECIKabon AOrocecv sr+, lymaftn
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ITEM 3

Statement
of the

American
Pharmaceutical
Association
The National Professional Society of Pharmacists

CN "THE CATASTROPHIC STATE OF CATASTROPHIC

HEALTH CARE COVERAGE"

PRESENTED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE

HEARING HELD BY THE

U.S. SENATE SPECIAL °MIME CN AGING

BIRtlINGHAM, ALABNA

CN

APRIL 16, 1987

Simms) BY

JAMES A. MAIN, APIA PAST CHAIRMAN
SUITE 301 ANISOUTH BANK BUILDING

931 NOBLE Sr.
ANNISTCN, AL 36201

American Pharmaceutical Asse,clation
2215 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20037

APIA (202) 628-4410
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MY NAME IS JAMES A. MAIN. I AM A PRACTICING ATTORNEY IN THE

STATE OF ALABAMA. PRIOR TO MY LAW PRACTICE, I PRACTICED

PHARMACY HERE IN ALABAMA. I AM PAST CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF

TRUSTEES OF THE AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION (APHA), THE

NATIONAL PROFESSIONAL SOCIETY OF PHARMACISTS. APHA SUPPORTS

EFFORTS TO REDUCE THE OUT-OF-POCKET MEDICAL EXPENSES OF OUR

NATION'S ELDERLY. BY CONDUCTING A FIELD HEARING ON "THE

CATASTROPHIC STATE OF CATASTROPHIC HEALTH CARE COVERAGE," YOU

Aft, TAKING A STEP FORWARD IN ADDRESSING THE NEED FOR MORE

ADEOlIATc COVERAGE OF EXPENSES ASSOCIATED WITH CATASTROPHIC

ILLNISS.

IN ALMOST 20 YEARS OF EXPERIENCE IN ALABAMA AS A PHARMACY

PRACTITIONER, COUNSELOR AND HEALTH CARE ADVOCATE, I HAVE SEEN

FIRSTHAND THE NEEDS OF THE SENIOR CITIZENS FOR ASSISTANCE IN

PAYING FOR PRESCRIPTION DRUGS. WE URGE YOU TO SEEK ENACTMENT

OF LEGISLATION WHICH WOULD PROVIDE COVERAGE OF OUTPATIENT

PHARMACEUTICAL PRODUCTS AND SERVICES UNDER 4q)ICARE. FOR THREE

OUT OF FOUR ELDE °LY AMERICANS, PRESCRIPTION JG: REPRESENT

THEIR LARGEST OUT-OF-POCKET EXPENSES. THE ELL.RLY PAY MORE

THAN $b BILLION ANNUALLY ON DRUGS. PAYMENTS FOR DRUGS

REPRESENT 20 PERCENT OF THE ELDtRLY'S TOTAL OUT-OF-POCKET

HEALTH CARE COSTS AND AVERAGE $340 PER PERSON A YEAR. MEDICARE

DOES NOT COVER PRESCRIPTION DRUG COST... OUTSIDE OF THE
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HOSPITAL. MOST MEDIGAP PLANS PROVIDE LITTLE OR NO COVERAGE OF

PRESCRIPTION DRUGS. FORTY-ONE STATES HAVE NO ASSISTANCE FOR

PRESCRIPTION DRUG COSTS FOR THE ELDERLY.

DESPITE THE SERIOUS LACK OF COVERAGE FOR PHARMACEUTICAL

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES, DRUo THERAPY HAS BEEN 3HOWN TO

SIGNIFICANTLY REDUCE THE OVERALL COS' OF CARE. MEDICARE COULD

PROVIDE MORE COST-EFFECTIVE HEALTH CARE COVERAGE THROUGH THE

REIMBURSEMENT OF OUTPATIENT PHARMACEUTICAL PRODUCTS AND

SERVICES.

THE TREATMENT OF ULCERS AND TUBERCULOSIS WITH DRUGS OFFER TWO

EXAMPLES OF HOW DRUG THERAPY CAN DRAMATICALLY REDUCE IHE COSTS

OF TREATMENT. THE INTRODUCTION OF THE DRUG CIMETIDINE IN 1777

RESULTED IN SAVINGS OF BETWEEN $3.2 BILLION AND $4 BILLION

ANNUALLY IN THE TREATMENT OF DUODENAL ULCERS. THE DISCOVERY OF

STREPTOMYCIN IN 1947, AND SUBSEQUFNTLY OTHER DRUGS, LED TO THE

VIRTUAL ELIMINATION OF Tull°CUL0e1S. TUBERCULOSIS HAD BEEN THE

SECOND LEADING CAUSE Oi DF".-1H IN THE UNITED STATES AND

ACCOUNTED FOR MORE THAN 50,000 DEATHS IN 1947. THE NET

ECONOMIC BENEFITS FROM DRUG TREATMENT OF TUBERCULOSIS FOR THE

YEARS 1947 THROUGH 1981 ARE ESTIMATED AT MORE THAN $15

BILLION. DRUG TREATMENT HAS ALLOWED MOST PERSONS WHO BECOME

INFECTED WITH TUBERCULOSIS TO BE TREATED AS OUTPATIENTS.

I 66
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ALONG WITH THESE WELL-KNOWN EXAMPLES, IT SHOULD BE REMEMBERED

THAT IN COUNTLESS OTHER INSTANCES SIMPLE MEDICAL PROBLEMS ARE

OFTEN KEPT SIMPLE BECAUSE OF THE APPROPRIATE DRUG THERAPY. ONE

PNEUMOCOCCAL PNEUMONIA INNOCULATION PROGRAM LED TO A

PER- PITIENT COST REDUCTION OF $64.

YOU HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO HELP PROVIDE COVERAGE FOR MUCH

NEEDED DRUG THERAPY FOR MILLIONS OF AMERICA'S ELDERLY. SUCH

COVERAGE COULD REL'EVE THE EXTREME BURDEN MANY ELDERLY ON

LIMITF :'COMES MUST FACE IN MEETING OUT-OF-POCKET EXPENSES FOR

PRESCRIPTION DRUGS. COVERAGE OF PHARMACEUTICAL PRODUCTS AND

SERVICES UNDER MEDICARE COULD ALSO HELP SAVE FUNDS SPENT ON

OTHER HEALTH CARE COSTS,

AMA ALSO SUPPORTS EXPANSION OF MEDICARE COVERAGE TO OTHER HOME

HEALTH CARE AREAS E.G. HOME IV DRUG THERAPY. HOME IV DRUG

THERAPY VIA CATHETER IS PRECLUDED FROM COVERAGE BY SECTION

18b1(S) OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY ACT, WHICH LIMITS COVERAGE UNDER

MEDICARE PART B TO DRUGS AND BIOLOGILALS WHICH CANNOT BE

SELF-ADMINISTERED. THE FACT THAT A FAMILY MEMBER ADMINISTERS

THE IV THERAPY DOES NOT VOID THE STATUTORY PRECLUSION. DRUG s,

AS A BENEFIT, ARE COVERED ONLY IN CONJUNCTION WITH PHYSICIAN'S

SERVICES OR AS AN OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL BENEFIT INCIDENT TO A

PHYSICIAN'S SERVICES, AND ONLY IN THE CONTEXT THAT DRUGS CANNOT

BE SELF-ADMINISTERED.
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COVERAGE OF PHARMACEUTICAL PRODUCTS AND SERVICES UNDER MEDICARE

SHOULD INCLUDE ADEQUATE REIMBURSEMENT. UNFORTUNATELY. THE

MEDICAID PROGRAM PROVIDES AN EXAMPLE OF THE PROBLEMS THAT

RESULT FROM INADEQUATE REIMBURSEMENT. THERE IS CONSIDERABLE

COST SHIFTING AS BOTH CASH AND PRIVATE-PAY THIRD PARTY

CONSUMERS ARE SUBSIDIZING THE MEDICAID PROGRAM BECAUSE OF

INADEQUATE MEDICAID COMPENSATION TO PHARMACISTS FOR

PRESCRIPTIONS. MEDICAID ALONE ACCOUNTED FOR 74 PERCENT OF THE

TOTAL COST SHIFT SUBSIDY PAID BY CASH-PAYING CONSUMERS IN THE

UNITED STATES. THE REMAINING COST SHIFTING EFFECT WAS CAUSED

BY OTHER GOVERNMENT AND PRIVATE THIRD PARTY PROGRAMS. MEDICAID

PRESCRIPTION PRICES WERE FOUND TO AVERAGE $1.10 BELOW THE

OVERALL MEAN (ALL-PAYER) PRESCRIPTION RATE. THIS COST SHIFT

EFFECT HAD A MAJOR ADVERSE ECONOMIC IMPACT UPON PRIVATE.

CASH-PAYING CONSUMERS WHO HAD TO PAY. ON THE AVERAGE. AN

ADDITIONAL $0.48 EVERY TIME THEY HAD A PRESCRIPTION DISPE'2ED

IN AN INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY PHARMACY.

PRESCRIPTION DRUG REIMBURSEMENT UNDER MEDICARE WOULD BE MOST

EFFECTIVE IF IT UTILIZED THE EXISTING DRUG DELIVERY SYSTEMS.

(HE NETWORK OF PHARMACIES AND PHARMACISTS IN THE UNITED STATES

PLAYS A CENTRAL ROLE IN MAKING THE DRUG DISTRIBUTION SISTEM IN

THIS COUNTRY THE ENVf OF (HE WORLD. MOST PHARMACISTS MAINTAIN

SOME TYPE OF PATIENT RECORD SYSTEM AS AN AID IN ANSWERING

PATIENT INQUIRIES AND TO PREVENT POTENTIAL ADVERSE DRUG

REACTIONS. ELDERLY PERSONS MAY TAKE AS MANY AS 15 TO 18 DRUG
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SUBSTANCES ROUTINELY, INCLUDING PRESCRIPTION AND

OVER-THE-COUNTER DRUGS. THE PHARMACIST'S REVIEW OF ALL

MEDICATIONS TAKEN BY A PATIENT PLAYS AN IMPORTANT PART IN

AVOIDING SERIOUS DRUG INTERACTIONS WHICH MAY RESULT IN COSTLY

HOSPITALIZATIONS.

THE NEED FOR COVERAG: OF PRESCRIPTION DRUGS HAS BEEN RECOGNIZED

BY LEADING ASSOCIATIONS REPRESENTING THE ELDERLY. THE AMERICAN

ASSOCIATION OF RETIRED PERSONS SUBMITTED A STATEMENT MARCH 4

BEFORE THE HOUSE WAYS AND MEANS SUBCOMMITTEE ON HEALTH WHICH

CALLED FOR PRESCRIPTION DRUG BENEFITS FOR THE ELDERLY. THE

NATIONAL COUNCIL OF SENIOR CITIZENS ALSO SAID IN ITS STATEMENT

TO THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON HEALTH THAT THERE IS "AMPLE

JUSTIFICATION FOR THE INCLUSION OF A PRESCRIPTION DRUG BENEFIT

FOR THE GENERAL MEDICARE POPULATION." THE COUNCIL ADDED THAT

THERE WOULD BE SOME OFFSETTING SAVINGS TO THE MEDICARE PROGRAM

3Y OFFERING PRESCRIPTION DRUG COVERAGE. A NUMBER OF YOUR

DISTINGUISHED COLLEAGUES HAVE VOICED THEIR SUPPORT FOR COVERAGE

OF PRESCRIPTION DRUGS UNDER MEDICARE.

APHA HAS LONG RECOGNIZED THE NEED FOR COVERAGE OF

PHARMACEUTICAL PRODUCTS 10.0 SERVICES UNDER MEDICARE. FOR YEARS

WE HAVE SOUGHT LEGISLATION THAT WOULD PROVIDE COVERAGE OF

OUTPATIENT PHARMACEUTICAL PRODUCTS AND SERVICES UNDER MEDICARE.
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LAST MONTH, APHA's HOUSE OF DELEGATES APPROVED POLICY IN WHICH:

APHA SUPPORTS COMPREHENSIVE CATASTROPHIC ILLNESS INSURANCE

COVERAGE THAT RECOGNIZES THE ESSENTIAL NEED FOR

PHARMACEUTICAL PRODUCTS AND SERVICES IN ALL PATIENT CARE

ENVIRONMENTS, INCLUDING THE HOME.

APHA ENCOURAGES INCLUSION OF PHARMACEUTICAL SERVICES, THE

MOST EFFICIENT AND READILY ACCESSIBLE SYSTEM OF DRUG

DELIVERY, IN ANY INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR CATASTROPHIC

ILLNESS THAT MAY BE ENACTED,

WE ARE GREATLY INTERESTED IN WORKING WITH YOU TO ENACT

LEGISLATION WHICH WOULD GIVE ELDERLY AMERICANS URGENTLY NEEDED

COVERAGE OF PRESCRIPTION DRUGS. PLEASE CONTACT US IF WE CAN BE

CF ASSISTANCE.

: 1 7 0
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ITEM 4

Statement by

FAYE S. BAGGIANO, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT

ALABAMA NURSING HOME ASSOCIATION

on

"THE CATASTROPHIC STATE OF CATASTROPHIC
HEALTH CARE COVERAGE"

before the

Special Committee on Aging

of the

United Stat.s Senate

Birmingham, Alabama

April 16, 1987
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STATEMENT BY FAYE S. RAGMAN°

ALABAMA NURSING HOME ASSOCIATION

APRIL 16, 1987

The Alabama NUrsinc; It Association (AURA), Inc., is a statewide
trade association dedicated to serving the needs of the nursing home
industry in the state of Alabama. In order to serve the needs of this
industry, we must examine how we serve its clients, the elderly and
disabled. We are charged with the responsiblity of quality care and
quality of life for the most frail of our nation's population. We
presently are falling short of our goal because of a growing need for
long-term care protection for the elderly.

There can be no r.)re catastrophic health care "costs" than those
incurred under long-term care in a nursing home. For too long, these
costs have been overlooked by the public and private sectors.
Middle-class America is suffering from the burden of long-term care
costs and families are forced to face impoverishment. A solution must
be found to cover "catastrophic long-term health care" expenses. It is
a very real need for present-day society, as well as for generations to
care.

In 1988, Medicare will outlay for services totalling About $84.5
billion. Less than one percent of this figure will cover the cost of
Skilled nursing home care (SW) and only about three percent will be
used to reimburse home health care services. The only other alternative
is Medicaid eligibility. To qualify for Medicaid, families are forced
co deplete a lifetime of savings. Even with Medicaid's contribution, in
1984, elderly individuals contributed over $12.5 billion cut-of-pocket
expenditures for long-term care. These figures reflect about 50 percent
of all spending for this type of care.

Families are discoving long-term care averages $22,000 a year.
With Medicaid and private insurance paying only a portion of this cost,
the alternative is for the family to pick up the difference. Changes in
society and the economy make this financial responsibility an even more
difficult burden. Surveys indicate after only about 13 weeks of
long -tern care, many families have run through their life savings.
Because there is no protection against the risk of catastrophic
long -tenor care expenses, America's middle class faces economic ruin, and
more are doing so daily.

What are the factors calling for "catastrophic long-term care coverage?

- As the "baby boom" generation reaches elderly status, the need
becomes even more obvious. Fewer and fewer children have been born to
the "boomers." With fewer children comes the awesome truth that someone
will have to provide care for this aging society.
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- Society has become more mobile. Fewer and fewer adults live in
close geographic proximity to their families. The elderly are more
mobile. Their Children are no longer nearby to provide care.

- The structure of society has changed. More females have entered
the work force, many out of economic necessity. These women have
traditionally provided "care" at home for the aging. This group of
"care-givers" simply does not exist as it once did.

- Another important change in society has been divorce. With more
divorces taking place nationally, children of these marriages have taken
a dimmer view of accepting responsibility for step-parents and aging
parents, for a variety of reasons.

These are just a few examples of the many factors contributing to
the need for the development of a program which protects citizens with
"catastrophic long-term care" needs.

What does the future hold?

Our society is aging. According to the National Center for Health
Statistics, the nursing home population today totals some 1.4 million
citizens. By the year 2003, this population is expected to increase 58
percent.

In 1985, nursing home expenditures of $35.2 billion were financed
About equally by public programs and private sources of payment. Public
programs financed about $16.5 billion of the total, and private sources
$18.7 billion. Of total private spending for nursing home care in that
year, less than two percent was paid by private insurance coverage.
Ninety-seve percent was paid directly by the consumer, cut-of-pocket.
The Medicaid program paid 42 percent, or $14.7 billion, of the nation's
total expenditures for nursing home care in 1985. This total also
represented nearly 90 percent of public spending for nursing have care.

But what about the future? If we are to adequately plan for our
future health care needs, we must consider the existing gap in health
care coverage for long-term care in a nursing home. The clock is
ticking...time is running out. By the year 2000, over 13 percent of the
population of American citizens will be over 65, while the number of
elderly over 85 will have more than doUbled.

Summary

Today's elderly grew up in an age when the average annual income
was less than $500 per year. In those days, the cost of living was less
and the family was the center of all care. Today, with rising health
care costs, we have been forced to rely on government to assist in
bearing long-term care costs. But, as we have seen, this assistance is
limited and in same places, lacking.

We foresee a future of frail, aging citizens not receiving the
long-term care services they desperately need if the issue is not
addressee. If we are to assure generations to come quality of life, we
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must address the "catastrophic health care" costs of the long-term cage
patient and be prepared to provide protection to families who ored it.

The average citizen does not realize the danger threatened by
long-term care. In a survey conducted by the American Association of
Retired Persons in 1985, it was found that "some elderly believe they
are adequately covered for long-term health coverage under Medicare."
Others think they have coverage for long-term care through their pur-
chase of a "medigap" policy. In the survey, 79 percent of the elderly
polled believed Medicare would cover most of the cost of nursing home
services. About one-third (35%) mistakenly believe that their medigap
policies included extended nursing home coverage.

%bat an awakening Vim these sane families sit in the
administrator's office .3f their local nursing home and find they must
either spend their loved one's life savings for just a few months of
care, become impoverished to become eligible for Medicaid, and then take
on the difference of what government is willing to pay and what must be
paid privately...Something must be done.

The Alabama Nursing ELme Association, Inc. 01080 would like to go
on record in support of legislation designed to protect the elderly
against "catastrophic" long -term health care expenses. We must face the
needs of increasing numbers of elderly who require long-term nursing
hone care if we are to carry out out ,erpcnsibility to our aged and
disabled.
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ITEM 5

BIRMINGHAM PODIATRY, P.C.
PODIATRK MEDKINE FOOT SURGERY

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 2012 EIGHTH COURT SOUTH ISO? APR 1 9 F;4 2 03
BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA 35205 1205) 324-8511

April 15, 1987

The Honorable Richard Shelby
516 Hart Senate Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Senator Shelby:

Dr Thomas 5 Godfryd
Or Waller 0 C'ark

Dr Steven /1 Grunfek1
Dr George E Clark

With regard to the field hearing you have scheduled for
Thursday, April 16, in Birmingham, I am pleased to file this
statement for the official record. The "Catastrophic State
of Catastrophic Health Care Coverage" is a subject of vital
concern to all Americans, and one which is deserving of a
public response. On behalf of doctors of podiatric medicine
in Alabama, I commend the committee for its leadership in
this critical area and welcome this opportunity to offer
suggestions on its behalf.

As each of us knows, the Congress and the Administration are
committed this year to a partial solution to the problem.
Based on happenings in the Nation's Capital, it seems cer-
tain that a beginning step will be taken this Session to
address the catastrophic acute care needs facing Medicare
beneficiaries. While the pending legislation on Capitol
Hill does not address the two largest categories of out-
of-pocket expenditures, namely, long-term care and prescrip-
tion drugs, it does lay a useful foundation on which to
build. Indeed, each of us would like to do more, NOW, in
response to these problem areas; but finding the ways and
means to accomplish the same in an era when deficit reduc-
tions dominate the Federa scene is a challenge of gigantic
proportions. But I am hopeful, indeed confident, a solution
can and will be found in the foreseeable future.

What that specific solution might be is something I will
appropriately defer to ones more knowledgeable and experi-
enced in long-term care financing. But the Alabama Podi-
atric Medical Association is convinced that the answers will
not be found within only the public or private sectors. A
true partnership effort will be required to both devise and
Implement an effective remedy. As a minimum, that partner-
ship should include the following:

2011 OCA(TH COVRI SOWN
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BIRMINGHAM PODIATRY, P.C.
PODIATRC MEDICINE FOOT SURGERY

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 2312 EIGHTH COURT SOUTH

BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA 35205 (205) 324-8511

The Honorable Richard Shelby
Letter - Page 2

Dr Thomas S Goth.,1
Dr Walter 0 Clark

Of Steven M Crunfeld
Dr George E Clark

- Public policy initiatives to encourage greater private
sector involvement in the delivery and financing of
long-term care.

- Public policy initiatives to provide positive incen-
tives for private sector experimentation in the finan-
cing of long-term care.

- Broader education of the general public concerning its
potential long-term care needs should be an integral
part of comprehensive retirement planning.

- Public policy Initiatives to encourage individual and
family responsibility in this area.

- Continued state level responsibility, with improved
Federal incentives, for indigent individuals in need
of long-term care services.

- Creation of a regulatory environment conducive to the
development and marketing of long-teem care plans.

Financial protection against the costs of long-term care may
well become the dominant financing issues of the 1990's. This
compelling fact dictates the need for a public-private response
to the issue. Government, the health insurance Industry, and
providers and consumers of health care services must compose
this essential partnership effort. Without it, a successful
remedy will be significantly impeded.

Finally, we look forward to working with the Committee and
other interested parties in researching and applying solutions
to the growing problem of catastrophic health care protection
for all Americans. Meanwhile, we appreciate again this oppor-
tunity to share our views with the Committee.

2012 tiGffill MAT SOulli
PAMmC.,HAVA At ISM

120S, 324-4511

Sincerely,

Thomas S. Godfryd, DPM
President, Alabama
Podiatry Association
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Mrs. Gowan attached .everal bills and additional information
which substantiated h,r poeition on the high cost of nursing home
care,, as presented in hc.. observations.
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The Honorable Pichard C. Shelby
The United States Senate

Washington, D.C.

1960 Old 280
Chelsea, AL 35043
April 17, 1987

My dear Senator:

4.3 promised to Mr. Dearman of your staff, I am submitting the

fall ring for inclusion in the report of the Aging Committee hearing
held in Birmingham, Alabama, April 16, 1987.

It has became obvious to my wife and myself that the most important
event possibly facing us is senility, cmpared with which the lucky
ones may well be those of us who die quickly before extended hospital
treatment, nursing he or other medical care make paupers of u-.

This lesso- has been brought he by my wife's excruciating pain

from the rare disease of arachnoiditis, deepening into every fiber of
her bod7 even as she passes frail a trembling paraplegic to the utter

helplessness of a quadriplegic. Strong addictive drugs help deaden the
pain for a time, but soon become dangerously toxic, requiring constant
adjustments even while concentrating their pain-killing strength. Too

crxl.ck17, mental alertnezu miccuitbs to this inexnrabi combination of

drugs and spreading inflamation of t'3 spinal cord, while surgery can
do no more than cut growths and drain cysts from that vital organ.
Complicating medical factors include .serious heart-valve and blood -

pressure rroblems requiring hospital, surgical and other extensive

medical treatment.

Home care of the victim quickly becomes the primary activity of
the twomeMber family, absorbing all available energies and resources.
The husband becomes the only one to plan, drive, repair, maw, shop,
pay, cook, "babe" sit, even to host, write and otherwise to weep in
touch with children, family and friends - all in addition to managing

the finances, and earning a living when still so active. He quickly
finds that he must have help, and hires part-time cleanirg assistants
at considerable costs. He then finds himself unable to work, to shop,

do yard work, or even to attend important business or other necessatt
meetings, as he cannot leave his helpless -life alone. He then hires,.
a full-time(40 hours weekly) nursing aid with training and or ewperimr_

ence, then adds the chores of learning, recording, paying and reporting
the details of Social Security deductions for his new household staff:
The extra costs quickly approach $10,000 annually and go up frog: there;

In the meantime, medical costs grow with many thousands of dollaA6

required for special treatments, hame equipment, facilities for wheelcti4r,

special bed, new bathroom facilities, etc. All the while, the new routine

is interrupted with increasing trips to doctors, emergency roan visits
and more frequent hospital stays for longer periods of time.



184

-2-

My wife and I are indeed fortunate in having Medicare insurance
plus supplemental group coverage, which pay the bulk of our direct
medical bills. But nothing covers the extra costs for home care, such
as structural changes in housing for wheelchair access, acquiring a
suitable vehicle to handles sate, or most hone medical treatment. For
a short time we received assistance when a county specialist gave my
wife baths, and when she was recovering from related spinal surgery
we were reimbursed for temporary home therapy - which it took me two
years to recover from the Medicare agent.

Thus far, we have bsen able to pay our regular and extra bills.

The future is less ware, particularly as my wife's condition worsens,
requiring intensive care, as all the doctors predict. Further, as 1
age into my seventies with the usual unintended consequences from
living so long, our problems and related expenses will expand. We
have two responsible sons with their own hoses and families, but
unfortunately they live far away in Washington, D.C., and New York,
so we feel we must plan for ourselves.

To the extent possible, we hope to avoid nursing homes, not only
because of the requirement to first bankrupt ourselves, but because
it offends oar sense of family responsibility. We realize that such
homes may indeed be necessary as the only way to take care of some.

However, we strongly believe that the first priority should be to keep
the family together at home whenever possible - not only because this
would be the preference for most, but because it can be done at a
fraction of the cost to the immediately family and for others as well.

Yes, we urge approval, with improvements if possible,for the

Administration's proposal for catastrophic medical insurance. Second,
and even more important, we urge that provision be made for long-term
care, whenever possible to be provided in the home.

Respectfully yours,

WIC t.

William C. Holcombe
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The Honorable Senator Richard Shelby
Hort Senate Building, Room 516
Washington. D.C. 20510-6050

Dear Senator Shelby:

I am an "at-risk" person for Huntington's Disease,
that means 50% chance of having this horrible disease.
I have seen several members of my immediate family -
father, brother and three sisters - die from this
genetic disease. Oniv one sister is still living
(not really living but a vegetable in a nursing home
at the age of 39). All the deceased ones died before
the age of 50. So you can see why the "Catastrophic
Health Care Coverage" should be revised to include
victims of terminal illnesses under the age of 65.

When an early detection becomes available for
this disease, we will need the government's her, in
order to secure health care insurance. This is just
one family, there are several thousand "at-risk" in
the United States that will need this coverage.

I appreciate the job you are doing and I hope
your comittee wilt see the need for changes and
additions to this program.
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The Honorable Senator Richard Shelby
Hart Senate Building, Room 516
Washington D.C. 20510-6050

Dear Senator Shelby:

While we feel it is imperative that legislation
must be passed to protect our senior population from
the ravages of catastrophic illness, and while we
appreciate the efforts of Dr. Otis Bowen, the secretary
of HHS, to initiate such legislation, we feel compelled
to protest that the bill doesn't go nearly far enough.
As proposed, the bill would provide coverage for pro-
longed hospital stays, with no provision for nursing

home care. Catastrophic illness affects all age groups

and this bill does nct address custodial nursing home
care of home health care and respite which is needed
by many more people than acute care. This is unfortu-
nate,as the significant drain on finances of the
elderly as well as the young comes from confinement
in nursing homes, not in hospitals. This proposed
bill in its present form does not solve the problen
of most families.

We also feel that something should be done for
those under the age of 65, who suffer from chronic
maladies that can be devastating from a financial,
as well as from an emotional point of view. One

should not find it necessary to lose one's life sav-
ings to a disease, nor should it be necessary to
break up a family in order to qualify for state or

federal aid. It is our unnesstanding that the state
of Washington has such a law, i.e., a person may
nualify for state assistance in treating a catastroph-
ic disease, without being financially destitute. This

is a very humane approach to a terrible problem, and

it behooves us to work toward federal involvement in

such a project.

I 9 4
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The Honorable Senator Richard Shelby
April 25, 1987
Page 2

On February 9th, 1987, Illinois became the first state to
put into effect a comprehensive health insurance plan (CHIP).
Starting in July of this year, anyone residing in Illinois will
be able to buy health insurance coverage, no matter now "unin-
surable" they may be. The insurance companies in the state
have been instructed to form a "pool" to provide coverage for
these people. It will be at a higher cost in premiums than
similiar coverage for "insurables", but for the first time
the "uninsurable" will be "insurable "! Under this plan, many
many families should be able to avoid the anguish of financial
disaster which often accompanies serious injury or illness,
such as Huntington's Disease. Hopefully, through the increased
premiums the insurance companies will also profit from this
plan. This plan can work on a national level, what Illinois
bath wrought can also be wrought by our federal government.

IN SUMMARY

1 We agree with President Reagan that there's got to be a
plan to help people in a catastrophic situation.

2. We feel that this plan does not go nearly far enough.
Even Rep. Claude Pepper of Florida called it a timid plan.

3. We feel that the plan should include those under 65 who
suffer a catastrophic illness.

4. We feel the plan needs to address the long-term care in
nursing homes and include custodial care, home health
care and respite.

5. We feel that legislation needs to be introduced in Con-
gress to have the federal/state government of private
sector insurance companies to offer and allow anyone
to buy catastrophic insurance at a reasonable rate,
that we don't have to be financially destitute or lose
one's life savings to get assistance.

6. Last but not least--the Catastrophic Insurance Act of 1987
is "fighting fires",i.e., what will the cost be? How do
we finance it? Who is to be covered? What kind of cover-
age is needed? Should individual insurance companies
cover more? How sill it change the medicare and medicaid
programs? Should nursing homes be included? When should
4.t become effective and list goes on. These are the fires
that we are fighting today and we'll be fighting them
tomorrow and well into the future, unless we start working
harder and faster on our fire prevention program, which is

193
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The Honorable Senator Richard Shelby

April 25, 1987
Page 3

simply genetic research. Until we cure the problem (genetic
disorders), all1W9Tiver be doing is putting out fires!

"Let's get out of the fire fighting business".

It is our sincere hope that your public hearings will

bring forth needed creative solutions on these issues--

the good news is that at least people are talking about the

issues instead of sweeping them under the rug.

0. V. Lantrip, Jr.
Chairman of the Board of Trustees
Alabama Chapter/HDSA
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Statement of
Andrew P. Hornsby, Jr., Commissioner
Alabama Department of Human Resources

Senator Shelby, thank you for the opportunity to submit a statement
representing the views of the Alabama Department of Human Resources regarding
catastrophic health care coverage. My name is Andrew P. Hornsby, Jr. and I am
Commissioner of the Alabama Department of Human Resources.

Alabama's elderly population is steadily increasing. According to the
latest Population Report released from the Center for Demographic and Cultural
Research, Auburn University at Montgomery, the number of Alabama resilents, aged

60 plus, has increased approximately seven-fold since the turn of the century,
now amounting to over 16 percent of the total state population. According to the
U.S. Bureau of the Census, the elderly (defined as aged 65 plus) are expected to
comprise nearly one-fifth of the total U.S. population by the year 2020. Such
projections are not available for Alabama, but similar trends can be expected
within the stare. We can only expect that problems currently identified in health
care of the elderly will be magnified as the percentage of aged population increases.

We appreciate the concern and attention being given by the Reagan administra-
tion to the problems associated with catastrophic illnesses. As we understand the
proposed legislation supported by President Reagan, for a minimal monthly premium,
Medicare would cover an unlimited number of days in a hospital with a $2,000.00
annual cap on coinsurance and deductible payments. Based on our Department's
experience with the indigent elderly and the elderly of other socio-economic groups,
we believe that many elderly people do not have sufficient resources to pay a
$2,000.00 co-payment or deductible at any one time. The Reagan supported legisla-
tion apparently calls for nc payment for prescription drugs, dental care, or routine
eye care, which we have found to be badly needed changes.

Based .n our contacts with clients, we can document the need for increased
coverage for long and short hospital stays, home care, and nursing home care. We
also see a need for clearer definition of county government's responsibility for
uncompensated care, increased eligibility for Medicaid, and increased employee
insurance coverage for longer periods of time. Most of these measures require
additional revenue on state and county levels.

Alabama currently has a serious gap in public and private health insurance
coverage of expenses associated with catastrophic illnesses. The most serious
problems appear to be associated with long-term institutional care of the elderly.

There is considerable competition for available nursing home beds in Alabama.
Nursing homes generally maintain waiting lists for available beds and accept the
patient who has the greatest financial resources and the greatest probability of
being able to pay for all services he receives in the nursing home. Costs of
nursing home care in Alabama currently ranges from approximately $1,200.00 - $1,500.00
per month. Few individuals can afford this expense for very long. While there are
some insurance policies available that pay for nursing home care for up to four years,
these are expensive and are not generally affordable by our clients. We are receiving
an increased number of neglect reports in which families abandon their elderly rela-
tive in the hospital because of the family's inability to financially sponsor nursing
home care or assume any additional responsibility for at-home care.
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While the Medicaid program pays for certain nursing home services for those
who qualify, it does not pay for ail expenses. Expenses not covered by Medicaid
must be paid by a patient sponsor or absorbed by the nursing home facility.
Problems such as these have made it increastasly difficult to ..ocate nursing home
placements for Medicaid patients who have no one to serve as patient sponsor. The
Alabama Department of "uman Resources does not have funds to act as patient sponsor,
nor do most city and county governments.

On the other end of the illness spectrum is tht. elderly person who is ill but
wishes to remain at home and could safely do so with some community support services.
The individual with a catastrophic illness must meet the needs criteria estaolished
for Supplemental Security Income (SSI) or State qupplementation (SUP) to be eligible
for Medicaid which, in many cases, pays fir' m.tre community based services than does
Medicare. Those who qualify for Medicaid are eligible for payment for most prescrip-
tion drugs after paying a small co-payment, visits to physicians, and a limited
number of days in the hospital. There is no mechanism for an exception to exceed
the limited number of hospital days. Therefore, when Medicaid patients require
further hospitalization, ttw cost must be absorbed by the hospital or county govern-
ment through quickly depleted Hill-Burton funds or other local resources.

Our state is facing many problems related to health care and we have fewer
and fewer dollars to meet those needs. It seems imperative that we make changes
in both the Medicare and Medicaid programs in order to provide ncedA care and
services to our elderly citizens. How those changes are made requires considerable
deliberation. We are hopeful that hearings such as this one will enhance the knowl-
edge of all decision makers so that the most equitable plans can be developed for
providing quality health care to all elderly citizens.

19t$
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On April 16, 1987, the Senate Special Committee on Aging held

a field hearing in Birmingham, Alabama, on the subject of "The

Catastrophic State of Catastrophic Health Care Coverage." As

Commissioner of the Alabama Medicaid Agency, and on behtlf of

Governor Guy Punt, this statement is presented for inclusion in the

record of that hearing. The Medicaid program in Alabama pays for

health care of more than 300,000 individuals annually. The program

serves low income citizens, including mothers and children, the

elderly and the disabled. Without Medicaid, these individuals

would not have access to basic health care.

People who are 65 years of age and older comprise 26 percent

'f those who are eligible for Medicaid in Alabama. These

individuals are high users of health care; services to this

population represent 44 percent of total payments for medical

services. Last year, Medicaid payments in Alabama totalled $410

million, and payments on behalf of the elderly population totalled

$181 million.

Nursing home care, which, by far, represents the greatest

single expenditure for Medicaid in Alabama, comprises 31 percent of

total expenditures. Since Medicare does not cover long-term care,

this service is funded primarily by Medicaid. Very few insurance

companies--including those providing "MediGap" policies--cover

long-term care. An estimated 62 percent of those living in nursing

homes in Alabama benefit from Medicaid. Elderly people who enter

nursing homes as private-pay patients often become eligible for

Medicaid through spending-down of resources.
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As our population ages, our nation faces the challenge of

designing and delivering services that meet the needs of the

elderly. The needs of people 65 and older are as varied as the

individuals themselves, and government cannot be the only or even

the primary source of funding. Elderly people and their families

have responsibilities, as do volunteer and private organizations

such as insurance companies.

Very likely, tnere will always be a need for nursing homes,

but alternatives to institutionalization are coming to the

forefront as the preferred means of care. Home- and

community-based services, as well as residential services such as

those offered by domiciliaries, are among the already available

alternatives that could be expanded to serve more people. Services

at home snd in the community have demonstrated cost effectiveness

as administered through Medicaid. Domiciliaries, though not

governmentally financed, are beneficial for people who do not need

nursing home care but, for whatever reason, cannot live at home.

At the end of the 1986 fiscal year, Alabama had 121 licensed

domiciliaries; the number of these facilities has increased

dramatically in recent years, and that trend is expected to

continue.

Alabama's home- and community-based program for the elderly

and disabled provides five services: cese management by social

workers, homemaker services to assist with household tasks such as

cooking and cleaning, personal care to help with activities such as

eating and bathing, respite care to give relief to those usually in

2
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charge of care, and adult day health care in approved facilities.

This program, made possible by a federally approved waiver, serves

about 4,200 Medicaid eligibles who meet the state's medical

criteria for nursing home care. Now in its third year of

operation, the program will be renewed for five years with federal

approval. Whereas care in a nursing home costs the Medicaid

program almost $800 a month, home- and community-based services are

currently delivered for just over $300 a month for each individual.

As long as services at home continue to demonstrate cost

effectiveness, and as long as the quality of care continues to be

high, the Alabama Medicaid Agency will support this method of

service delivery. The program is extremely popular, and mary areas

of the state have waiting lists. People usually want to stay at

home if at all possible. Most of those served by Alabama's waiver

are over 75 years old, and they have a variety of health problems,

ranging from arthritis to heart di-ease. Most live with someone

who takes a great deal of responsibility for their care, but a

surprising number live alone.

Because of the demonstrated cost effectiveness of home- and

community-based services, and t cause of the evidence suggesting

that people prefer home care, national health policies should take

into account the need for non-institutional methods of service

delivery. A recent study by the General Accounting Office found

that 3.2 million Americans need home care in order to avoid

institutionalization. While many of these citizens receive all the

home care services they need, many do not. The GAO study, which

3
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focused on the characteristics of Medicare beneficiaries, found the

greatest unmet needs involved getting assistance to improve

mobility. The most frequently reported unmet needs involved

assistance in getting in and out of bed, in getting around inside

the house, in walking around outside the house and in

transportation. The co A study found that only about a fourth of

those with unmet needs are Medicaid eligible, thus Euggestitg that

the nationwide impact of the Medicaid waiver program is limited

The study definitely shown that the 1.eed for services at home is

largely unmet. This finding contrasts with prevailing opinions

focusing on institutional care as the primary means of delivering

long-term care.

Limited as they are, neither Medicare nor Medicaid can carry

the entire burden for the financing of long-term care, whether

inside or outside institutions. A few insurance companies are

beginning to offer long-term care policies, but such coverage by

private insurers is by no means common. Health maintenance

organizations are also a source of coverage in some instances, but

they are not the norm, either. Gcrernment can play a role in

expanding private coverage by exploring the possibility of offering

incentives .Tor companies to develop long-term care policies and for

individuals to purchase them.

Two of the measures proposed by President Reagan to deal with

the high cost of catastrophic illness definitely deserve serious

consideration in alleviating public misconceptions and encouraging

savings for long-term care. One of these measures calls for a

4
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public education program, conducted in conjunction with private

insurance firms and other groups. It would attempt to correct the

widespread and serious misconception that Medicare and private

policies provide comprehensive long-term coverage. Another would

require the Treasury Department to study ways of encouraging

private savings for long-term care. These would include individual

medical accounts (IMA's), which would be similar to individ al

retirement accounts (IRA's). The money in IMA's, however, would be

used to provide for long-term care. Whether through IMA's or

another method, private savings need to play a major part in

solving the long-term care problem. Methods of financing long-term

care need to include provisions for financing both institutional

and at-home services.

Medicaid is often criticized for its spend-down provisions

with regard to nursing home care. This criticism is not justified,

in view of the fact that Medicaid exists to serve those who cannot

afford to pay for their health care through private means.

Spend-down policies nnd resource and income lizdtations exist to

contain costs, prevent abuse, and assure that people meet their own

needs insofar as possible. Unfortunately, the growing reliance on

Medicaid to pay for nursing home care has, in many instances, led

to a deterioration in the sense of family responsibility that

prevailed beforo governnent assumed such a broad role in the

delivery of health care and social services.

Because long-term care for the elderly is so expensive, any

discussion of the cost of catastrophic illness usually focuses on

5
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the varied needs of older people. Obviously, however, catastrophic

illness and its accompanying expense can strike anyone. Advances

in medical technologies and treatment of illness have brought a

mixed blessing. For a chance of survival that might be quite

small, people who are candidates for heart transplants, liver

transplants, bone marrow transplants, lung transplants and other

new and expensive procedures face enormous expense, much of it

uncovered by any insurance, public or private. It is possible that

our nation simply cannot afford to subsidize some of the complex

and costly new procedures and technologies. If new and

experimental techniques are subsidized, standards must be set to

determine who will benefit from these forms of health care

delivery.

For the future, an emphasis on preventive health for all

Americans may offer part of the solution to the problem of

catastrophic /linens. Publi,: education programs have srcceeded in

reducing the number of people who smoke, although stepped-up

efforts are needed if a "smoke-free" society is to become a

reality. Public education stressing the benefits of nutrition,

diet and exercise has become more prevalent than it was a few years

ago, and many people are taking heed of advice designed to help

them live fuller, longer, healthier lives.

The Alabama Medicaid Agency and the Alabama Department of

Public Health are co-sponsors of a Preventive wealth Council

composed of prestigious health professionals and representatives cf

interested groups from throughout the state. Through this Council

6
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and educational efforts such as conferences and media campaigns,

Alabama is striving to encourage health.er lifestyles among its

citizens. Specifically for the Medicaid population, emphasis has

been placed on increased utilization of the health screening

program for children, and the Preventive Health Council has been

asked to make a study of the probable costs and benefits of a

screening program for adults. Preventive health offers a realistic

and sensible means by which people can assume a great dea,, of

responsibility for their own care. In the long run, money can be

saved as people remain healthier longer.

In planning for a national approach to catastrophic or

iong-term care, public funding must not be viewed as the only or

the primary solution. Private insurers, volunteer organizations,

individuals an their families have significant responsibilities.

Government can play a major role in educating people to the

limitations of Medicare and Medicaid and encouraging all Americans

to adopt healthy lifestyles. Proposals such as the idea of

Individual Medical Accounts should be explored as possibilities for

encouraging savings for long-term care. People need to plan for

their old age when they are young, before the need for care arises.

7

2 4



202

ITEM 12

STATEMENT OF

GEORGE E. HUTCHINSON

OF THE

ALABAMA ASSOCIATION OF HOME HEALTH AGENCIES

BEFORE THE

U.S. SENATE SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON AGING

APRIL 16, 1987

2U5



203

Mr. Chairman and Members of the United States Senate
Special Committee on Aging.

I am George Hutchinson, President of the Alabama Association
of Home Health Agencies. I am also Executive Director of Central
Alabama Home Health Services. Inc. of Montgomery. Alabama.

The Alabama Association of Home Health Agencies (AAHHA)
is a state assoc,ation representing the majority of home health
providers in Alabama. Its members are government operated,
hospital based and free standing agencies and are both non-
profit and for profit entities. Our Association is dedicated
to assuring the availability of humane, cost effective, high
quality home care services to all who require them.

I am pleased to have the opportunity to present a state-
ment to this Committee on the issue, "The Catastrophic State
of Catastrophic Health Care Coverage". AAHHA and the national
associatinnsrepresenting home health support the concept of
catastrophic coverage and benefits for those whose medical
needs exceed the present Medicare, Medicaid and private
insurance coverages. We recognize that budget resources foL
such a program are extremely limited. It is therefore essential
that Congress draft legislation to stretch the limited funds
as far as possible. To achieve this. AAHHA strongly urges
you to support inclusion of a cost-saving home health provision
as you consider proposals currently before your Committee.

tie are pleased that discussion of proposed Catastrophic
Health Insurance proposals has increased public awareness
about the actual "catastrophic" health needs of the elderly.
However, the fundamental health care need of elderly Americans
is not coverage of costly "catastrophic" acute illness, but
rather the coverage of the far more costly care needed for
chronic conditions. Granted that acute illnesses can be very
costly. But, with the average stay nationally of a patient
in a hospital being now in single digits and the emphasis
Congress has placed on health care delivery systems to implement
more cost effective, non-institutional alternatives, we submit
that improved long term care coverage will more effectively
alleviate catastrophic hardships of the elderly.

While Congress addresses the needs of the elderly con-
fronted with catastrophic nealth and financial burdens. It
should also correct the existing problems that beset the
elderly in the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Such corrective
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action would reduce the number of recipients needing cat-
astrophic health coverage in the long run.

On January 23, 1987. the General Accourting Office
submitted its report, "Discharge Planner, Report Increasing
Difficulty in Placing Medicare Patients', wherein it stated
that based on its survey Medicare program rules and regulations
were the most important barrier to posthospital care for
patients.

We concur with their findings and submit that if Medicare
Home Health Benefits were broaden to cover more acute care
needs and chronic care needs then there might be less cat-
astrophic hardships endured by the elderly.

Immediate corrective measures that could be enacted
by Congress are clarifying definitions in the present law,
expanding services to include care of chronic illnesses and
improving the quality of care. All of which would remedy
problems in the current Medicare Home Health Benefit that
are limiting access to the benefit for many Medicare beneficiaries.

Further, we submit that the Catastrophic Health Care
Program should include the following:

* That the private sector be encouraged to offer long-
term care insurance policies which supplement Medicare.
in addition, consumer savings to meet long-term care
needs should be encouraged through tax-deductions or
tax-deduct,ble individual medical accounts.

* Home care benefits for those not already receiving
home health care.

* Home care services for those who would have to be
or remain, institutionalized without home care services.

* A screening process for determining the needs of the
patients and selecting the appropriate alternative
level of care when feasible leaving institutional
care as the last resort.

* Financial support adequate to fund the program

* Elimination of coinsurance and deductibles

* Elimination of the spell of illness concept

* Provisions for hospice services
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Provisions for coverage of certain drugs, avrilable
by prescription only.

In summary, we thank you for the opportunity to make our
concerns known. We :rge this Committee to consider these
positive suggestions 11 establishing a Catastrophic Healt
Program. We suggest that there are measures that can be
taken to move health care away from the costly institutional
model contained in Medicare. Providing expanded home health
benefits within a comprehensive long term care program will
establish a basis for doing this.

Here is an opportunity for Congress to point the way to
less costly alternatives to institutional care. i hope this
Committee is in agreement.

ectfully submitted

(111:4041,240:L.S100
George E. Hutchinson
President
AAHHA
1017 Ann Street
Montgomery, AL 36107
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ITEM 13

The Medical Association
of The State of Alabama

S Lcn Conner
Executive Director
(205) 263-6441
1.800-392-5668

19 S Jackson
Box 1900-C

Montgomery. Alabama 36197

April 13, 1987

The Honorable Richard Shelby
516 Hart Sete Office Building
Washington, D.-. 20510

Dear Senator Shelby:

This is in response to your co:dial invitation of April 2 to
comment on catastrophic health care coverage in advance of
the public hearing of the U.S. Senate Special Committee on
Aging in Birmingham April 16.

Try:: title of the hearing, "The Catastrophic State of Catas-
teophic Health Insurance," seems to imply a conclusion has
already been reached in the matter, and there remain only
the problems of defining coverage, beneficiaries and solu-
tions, by which is meant federal solutions.

The problem, narrowly defined, is of course very real and
one with which virtually all physicians must deal from time
to time. But in all the national discussions we find
considerable disagreement on a definition of catastrophic.
Obviously, some Medicare recipients would be devastated by
an illness costing several thousand dollars while others

would not be. Additionally, it appears that the
catastrophic concept is still expanding to cover other than
the aged, as witness Rep. Claude Pepper's recent
announcement that he will introduce a bill shortly to insure
that all Americans, regardless of age, will be able to
afforc' catastrophic care.

He and others also believe that any catastrophic bill
should, sooner or later, cover long-term care, since the
financial impact of such care is often as devastating, over
time, ac catastrophic acute illness.

More taan 20 years ago organized medicine supported what was
essentially a catastrophic alternative to Medicare, which
was called Eldercare. It lost. At the time, the greater
popular interest was in first-dollar coverage, which would,
medicine argued, bankrupt the system at some point.

If, as presently defined, catastrophic health coverage would
be limited to a few Americans -- one number mentioned has
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been 39,000 -- that would be one thing. If the number is
millions, obviously this would be quite another. What are
we really talking about?

Congress may have put the cart before the horse in enacting
the present Medicare before some kind of catastrophic bill,
which would have fitted the insurance concept of protection
against major losses much more rationally than does
Medicare, which advances the notion that everyone over 65 is
entitled to some care.

In this way our resources were spread about in a manner that
seemed, to Congress, to satisfy the Jeffersonian catechism
of doing the most good by the ,cost people. True
catastrophic coverage, as we understand it, seeks to do good
by a minority and to somehow fit this into a self-sustaining
program of voluntary premiums by Medicare beneficiaries.

The history of medical cost prediction in this country is a
history of vast underestimation and overpromising. Congress
has not, and probably will not, adequately fund exiscing
Medicare to that level sufficient to guarantee all it has
promised. As a consequence, conventional Medicare benefits
are now rationed in the United States, although no one uses
that term, because demand has outstripped the national re-
sources that we, as a people, are willing to commit.

It is against this background that we confess to some un-
easiness about the catastrophic proposal. If enacted, it
can be predicted with some confidence, it will be expanded
far beyond its capacity to suppor', and will accordingly he
rationed, just as Medicare is now. Within a few years oE
passage, perhaps even immediately, it will be discovered
that utilization exceeds available resources and that ectu-
arial predictions were far off the mark.

These reservations may seem heartless but physicians have
seen the faces of many, many Americans who thought Medicare
covers far more than it does. Almost certainly this will be
the fate of catastrophic care.

If this were an ideal world of infinite resources, catas-
trophic add-on to Medicare might be entirely appropriate.
Certainly, most people in the risk group would like to have
it. Certainly, physicians have seen many cases of elderly
Americans swamped by costs of a major illness. But in a
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time of fiscal retrenchment, a time when Medicare is, year
after year, subjected to the budget-cutting ax -- is this a
time to enact legislation to expand the federal obligation,
when present obligations are not being met?

In determining the threshold of catastrophic illness and
whether or no means-testing is a valid factor in that
threshold, the Congress may ultimately be forced to consider
present Medicare as a program for the poor only. This would
effectively disqualify many millions of aged Americans who
have been led to believe federal health care after 65 is
both an insurance contract and rn entitlement. The politi-
cal fallout from such an about-face would be massive, as
Medicare became, in substance, a national Medicaid program.

In sum, we believe that catastrophic aid-on will inevitably
add to the acute fiscal problems of the Medicare program.
We place little faith in predictions that it can be financed
out of a small monthly surcharge to beneficiaries. Cost
overruns in Medicare forecasting eclipse even those in de-
fense allocations.

In addressing any national proposal of this magnitude, it is
instructive, we believe, to reflect on a warning by the Gen-
eral Accounting Office in another context: the American
people often confuse wants with needs. Obviously, many mil-
lions would want catastrophic coverage but only a few thou-
sand may actually need it.

If the program could be held to genuine cases of catas-
trophic illness, the few thousand that occur annually, we
would be disposed to favor it. But if the catastrophic
yardstick is to be subject to change to accommodate more
cases of want rather than need, that is plainly something
else.

One commentator has pointed out that a major element of the
demand for catastrophic coverage is from younger generations
who want to protect their potential inheritances from dissi-
pation on the health care needs of their aging parents. It
is not the function of government to protect legacies.

While none of the above may appear germane to your meeting
title, "The Catastrophic State of Catastrophic Health Insur-
ance," it may touch obliquely on the catastrophic debate
that has emerged on this issue. Catastrophic seems to mean
different things to different people. Our fear is that it
will, in the legislative process, be expanded into another
empty promise of all things to all people. And that would
be a disaster for the already troubled Medicare program.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide some of the think-
ing of Alabama doctors on this issue.

Sincerely,

r ,!1.;J/, / ( I

S. Lon Conner
Executive Director
Medical Association of the State of Alabama
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